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           1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

           2             MR. MAY:  I did have one final comment on the

           3        PowerPoint presentation, just so everyone is clear,

           4        and I think the record needs to be clarified.

           5        First, the first 12 slides have nothing to do with

           6        Aqua Utilities Florida.  The slides I believe

           7        misrepresent what's happening in other states and

           8        irrelevant to what's happening here.

           9             The other slides regarding Aqua's quality of

          10        service monitoring reports I believe distort what

          11        those reports do.  He mixes and matches from the

          12        PSC complaint reports, and then the --

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Could you put that mike up

          14        just a little bit?  I'm sorry.

          15             MR. MAY:  Mr. Reams mixes and matches the data

          16        reflected in the quality of service monitoring

          17        reports which Aqua supplied, and categorized it --

          18        or implies that those are complaints.  Those are

          19        calls coming in to a call center.  The vast

          20        majority of those calls are routine utility

          21        questions, like, I'd like to establish my service.

          22        I'd like my bill changed to this address and things

          23        like that.  There are -- so I think to say that

          24        those are complaints is entirely inaccurate.  And I

          25        would ask that, as you review that -- that -- the

                                                                        169

           1        slides, that you keep that in mind and look at the

           2        staff recommendation.

           3             I think staff's recommendation is extremely

           4        thorough, particularly Attachment 2.  Attachment 2

           5        to that recommendation, which is a very long

           6        recommendation; I frankly admit that I didn't read

           7        it the first time.  But it goes on, I think it's

           8        about 20 pages long, to explain in detail what

           9        those reports that Aqua supplied during the QSM.

          10        It's -- I think it's a very clear and concise and

          11        informative report, and it shows that Aqua is

          12        committed to customer service, and the level of

          13        customer complaints and level of customer concerns

          14        regarding quality of service has significantly

          15        dropped over the past two years.

          16             Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

          18             Okay.  So we're now going to get into this

          19        going issue by issue.  Before we do that, we're --

          20        I'm going to give you an idea of what's going to

          21        happen as we move forward.  We're probably going to

          22        about a five-minute break here, get everybody ready

          23        to start with Issue 1 and go through.  I'm guessing

          24        sometime around 7:00, maybe 7:15, we'll be taking a

          25        dinner break, and then from then we're going to
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           1        charge on until we're done.

           2             So you guys can kind of gauge yourselves

           3        appropriately, but we're going to take about a

           4        five-minute break now.  We'll be back here by about

           5        5:15 by that clock there -- I'm sorry -- 5:18 by

           6        that clock back there on that wall.  Thanks.

           7             (Break taken.)

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Guys, let's get

           9        started again.  Okay.  Let's get the show on the

          10        road.  Let's get started here.

          11             Commissioner Edgar.

          12             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          13        And let me begin by saying that I have spent many,

          14        many long evenings in this room in the past,

          15        having, you know, crackers and granola bars for

          16        dinner so that we could work our way through all of

          17        the issues that we need to, and I am absolutely

          18        willing and able to do that tonight and to stay

          19        with my friends and all of those that are here

          20        interested in the business that we do for the

          21        evening.

          22             But also, as I was listening to all of the

          23        presentations from the customers and also from the

          24        attorneys involved in the case, and thinking back

          25        to the past rate cases that I have had -- that I
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           1        have participated in in the past years and the

           2        information we have before us, kind of in my mind,

           3        and I don't have it completely crystallized, but is

           4        what I'm going to very loosely call a proposal or

           5        maybe even more of a suggestion that I'd like to

           6        put out there for discussion and see if there's any

           7        interest, and then I fully expect that the staff

           8        may have some questions for me if I'm not clear,

           9        and I probably would have some back to them.

          10             So, Mr. Chairman, may I give it a shot?

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          12             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Looking at the issue that

          13        we have -- the item that we have before us as a

          14        whole, Issue 1 of course is very, very important

          15        and helps to set the tone for everything else that

          16        comes after it.  I do agree with our staff

          17        recommendation, that it would be useful to go ahead

          18        and close out the monitoring plan from the previous

          19        rate case, recognizing all of the good work that

          20        has been done there.

          21             I also recognize that we have had a lot of

          22        customer discussion that centers around a small

          23        subset of the systems that are actually all

          24        included in what is before us.  And from my notes

          25        and my reading, those would be Jasmine Lakes, Lake
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           1        Gibson Estates, Gibsonia Estates, Arredondo, Palm

           2        Terrace, and Zephyr Shores.

           3             And so with that in mind, what my thinking is

           4        at this point is that we would find on Issue 1

           5        satisfactory for all other systems that are before

           6        us, but for those systems make a finding of

           7        marginal, and there is some precedent for that from

           8        the previous rate case, and then ask our staff, the

           9        company, OPC, and, yes, to jointly together work

          10        towards a monitoring plan on a go-forward basis for

          11        just those systems.  And again, we have precedent

          12        from the last rate case on that.

          13             For -- looking at the document that OPC gave

          14        us, which is titled Citizens' Adjustments, May

          15        24th, 2011 Agenda Conference, I would suggest that

          16        we consider moving to the OPC position on Issue 26,

          17        which has to do with salaries and wages, and Issue

          18        28, which is rate case expense.  And then I would

          19        propose that we retain the rates for the systems

          20        that I named at the level prior to interim rates.

          21        Again, pulling those out and giving them different

          22        consideration from the other systems.

          23             I recognize that, for exact numbers, that our

          24        staff would need to do some other calculations.  I

          25        don't know if having those exact numbers is
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           1        critical or not.  I welcome -- I welcome your

           2        thoughts.  But I put this out there as a -- what I

           3        intend to be a well-intended and thoughtful way of

           4        putting us in a position to move forward, but yet

           5        also recognizing some of the unique circumstances

           6        with some of the case -- or some of the systems,

           7        the concerns that have been raised by the public

           8        officials and by the customers, but also

           9        recognizing that the company has -- has the right

          10        to certain things under the statutes, and certainly

          11        the need to go forward and conduct business in the

          12        manner so that they can provide -- continue to

          13        provide good service.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, Commissioner

          15        Edgar.

          16             Commissioner Brown.

          17             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And I appreciate

          18        Commissioner Edgar's comments, and I like the path

          19        that you're going on, and it was a shorter path

          20        than I originally anticipated.  I -- particularly

          21        with regard to Issue 1, I do have a substantial

          22        amount of questions that I wanted to get vetted

          23        through, not only for the record, but -- and as

          24        part of the rate case, but as well as part of the

          25        monitoring program.  So I did want -- I do want to

                                                                        174

           1        go through those.  But I like the path that you're

           2        on.

           3             So, that being said, if we can continue

           4        discussion on Issue 1.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Maybe the easiest way to get

           6        into this is to start on Issue 1 and work our way

           7        in and through Issue 1 and some of the concerns and

           8        questions that are there, and then see if we're

           9        seeing a better vision for the path after Issue 1.

          10             Commissioner Edgar?

          11             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          12        And I'm glad to do that.  I certainly was not

          13        trying to circumvent any discussion at all, because

          14        so many of these -- very few of these issues are

          15        finite in and of themselves.  They all, you know,

          16        impact and relate to one another, and also

          17        realizing that, if anything that I've suggested

          18        does seem useful to the body, that I wanted to give

          19        the staff the heads up, that they could be thinking

          20        about that.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

          22             Staff, you guys are up.  Issue 1.

          23             MR. REIGER:  Good afternoon, Commissioners.

          24        I'm Stanley Reiger with Commission staff.

          25             Issue 1 is staff's recommendation concerning
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           1        the quality of service provided by the utility.

           2        This issue combines a consideration of the status

           3        of quality of service for both the utility's

           4        present rate case and its previous rate case,

           5        Docket 080121, which is still open.

           6             It should be noted that consideration of AUF's

           7        Chuluota water and wastewater systems are not

           8        included in the current case. However, review of

           9        Chuluota is included in the quality of service

          10        issue in respect to the phase 2 monitoring plan, as

          11        required in the '08 docket.

          12             Pursuant to Rule 25-30.433(1), the Commission

          13        determines the quality of service by evaluating

          14        three separate criteria:  The quality of the

          15        utility's product; the operating condition of the

          16        utility's treatment facilities and lines; and the

          17        utility's attempt to address customer satisfaction.

          18             Also, relating to the '08 docket, the phase 2

          19        monitoring plan of AUF's customer service was

          20        approved by the Commission last year.  The

          21        parameters of the phase 2 plan were based on a

          22        collaborative effort between the utility, OPC, and

          23        staff.  The plan included review of customer

          24        complaints, meter reading and billing accuracy, and

          25        environmental compliance.
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           1             Also, as part of the phase 2 monitoring plan

           2        in the '08 docket, seven systems were chosen for

           3        review concerning non-health-related esthetic

           4        secondary water quality issues.

           5             Many AUF customers have expressed their

           6        displeasure with the quality of water they receive

           7        from the utility.  This resulted in a Commission

           8        required joint secondary task force, consisting of

           9        representative from AUF, OPC, and other interested

          10        parties.  This recommendation details the results

          11        of the secondary task force and the utility's

          12        attempt to address the unique esthetic concerns,

          13        treatment options, and associated costs.

          14             It should be noted that the secondary water

          15        quality plant improvement costs are considered in

          16        IssueIssue 3, which is the pro forma plant addition

          17        issue.

          18             Staff is available to answer questions at this

          19        time.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

          21             Commissioner Brisé.

          22             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you.  Thank you,

          23        Mr. Chairman.  And thank you for that presentation.

          24             I have a few questions that sort of go back to

          25        lay the ground -- the baseline for where we are and
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           1        how we can address the issues that are before us.

           2             You mentioned that there were seven systems

           3        that were selected.  I want to know who selected

           4        those systems, how we got to that selection, and

           5        with that, there was a task force that was put in

           6        place, what were -- what was the criteria that was

           7        agreed upon to look at by the task force.

           8             Was -- because I'm hearing, as I heard earlier

           9        from OPC, that they looked at what they -- what

          10        they found as results were different from what was

          11        found from staff, so I want to understand why we

          12        have such a deviation, are the parameters and the

          13        criteria the ones that were agreed upon, and then

          14        how we ended up with that difference.  And I think

          15        that will be the first set of questions that I want

          16        you to answer before we move on with anything else.

          17             MR. REIGER:  Very good.  The task force, in

          18        addition to the seven systems, I can speak

          19        primarily on the seven systems, starting off with,

          20        which was a decision made, a collaborative decision

          21        made between AUF and OPC and the concerned parties

          22        on that, which they got together and they chose the

          23        seven systems that they believed were of most

          24        immediate concerns at that time.

          25             And they -- they got themselves together as
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           1        far as to develop with meetings with the parties to

           2        identify what the specific concerns were and how to

           3        go about resolving those issues.

           4             Are you interested in the actual systems that

           5        were talked about or whatever?

           6             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Yes.  I'm interested in

           7        the actual systems, and I'm more interested in the

           8        criteria that was agreed upon, that, if we're going

           9        to evaluate systems, what was agreed upon by all

          10        parties as to what we're looking at so that we're

          11        all looking at the same thing.

          12             MS. DANIEL:  Commissioner, Patti Daniel.

          13             With respect to the criteria for review of the

          14        seven systems in particular, that decision was left

          15        to Aqua and OPC and the selected customer

          16        representatives.  Aqua's instructed to meet with

          17        those customers and OPC to discuss what the

          18        problems were, what the esthetic concerns were with

          19        those seven systems, to talk to the customers about

          20        what the cost -- what the treatment options would

          21        be and what the associated costs would be, and that

          22        was the criteria that was given to Aqua that OPC

          23        agreed to.

          24             As far as what happened, why we're seeing

          25        different results, it's difficult for staff to say.
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           1        We did not participate in those meetings.  Aqua did

           2        report to us on February 28th.  They gave us a

           3        summary report of all of the compliance monitoring

           4        issues, and in particular, with respect to those

           5        seven systems, they addressed what happened with

           6        respect to meeting with customers, with each of the

           7        seven systems.  It was a short summary for each

           8        particular system.

           9             OPC did not respond in their comments at the

          10        end of March with respect to any of those meetings,

          11        so we were not clear that there were issues with

          12        respect to the understanding of what happened in

          13        terms of addressing esthetics with those seven

          14        systems.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Follow-up, Mr. Jaeger?

          16             MR. JAEGER:  Commissioners, Ralph Jaeger from

          17        legal staff.  I might give just a little bit of

          18        background.

          19             It was on April 6th, 2010 that the Commission

          20        issued an order requiring continued monitoring and

          21        submission of supplemental quality of service

          22        monitoring plan.  And what they said, OPC and the

          23        utility indicated at the agenda conference that

          24        they would sit there and try to work that out.  So

          25        they said, go work it out.
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           1             So we had two meetings after that, trying to

           2        work it out.  We were the facilitators, letting OPC

           3        and the utility work it out.  And then they came

           4        back after those two meetings and they submitted

           5        what they had agreed to.  And that was Attachment A

           6        to the May 10th, 2010 order.  That's when we took

           7        it back to the Commission and said, this is what

           8        they've agreed to, and they -- we issued another

           9        proposed agency action, saying this was the agreed

          10        to monitoring pursuant to a stipulation or a

          11        settlement reached by OPC and the utility.

          12             And so what was agreed to was in Attachment 1

          13        to that May 10th order.  And it's seven pages, but

          14        I could hit the highlights.  And the first one they

          15        agreed -- said, reports should provide staff and

          16        OPC, and there was a management quality performance

          17        report, a cost center monitoring statistics report,

          18        and an estimated read report for that.

          19             And then tracking of PSC compliance, that's

          20        No. 2, will be covered by PSC staff under the

          21        current tracking system.  And we gave them what our

          22        complaints were.

          23             Then Aqua and OPC agreed that the production

          24        of sound recordings and meter logs should be

          25        eliminated.  That's what we spent hours and hours
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           1        listening to it, getting all these tapes, and that

           2        had been the most cost -- most expensive for

           3        everything staff included.

           4             No. 4 was the age service order status report,

           5        and that's where we get an idea of how long it

           6        takes them to respond to a need.

           7             Then -- then in No. 5 it says, in order to

           8        better apprise the OPC of Aqua's commitment to

           9        quality of service, during the phase 2 monitoring

          10        Aqua will provide for an OPC representative to

          11        visit one of its call centers and tour the

          12        facility.

          13             And then -- but Mr. Reiger was talking about

          14        No. 6, was establish joint secondary water quality

          15        task force, and it has a whole list of things of

          16        what that included.

          17             And then that we had a midpoint meeting in

          18        September, and then we had an annual report, by

          19        this No. 7, it was an annual report by Aqua to the

          20        Commission.  That was the February 28th report.

          21             And then during phase 2 monitoring Aqua will

          22        file copies of the reports within one month and ten

          23        days of the end of the relevant period.

          24             So we had seven months where they filed these

          25        reports each month with us on about July 10th.  You
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           1        know, each 10th of the month we got another -- and

           2        that was given to OPC and staff.

           3             And then the last thing was the Commission

           4        will decide whether the docket should be closed

           5        after reviewing all of the data submitted during

           6        the phase 2 monitoring process, and we rolled that

           7        into this rate case, because it's all quality of

           8        service.  That's sort of how we got where we are

           9        today.

          10             And then Ms. Golden did a review -- she was

          11        the one wading through all those special reports,

          12        and Mr. Reiger was doing a lot of the esthetic --

          13        the seven esthetic programs primarily, and the

          14        water -- compliance with water management district

          15        and DEP consent orders.

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Follow-up then.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          18             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So then -- so I think we

          19        agree that -- and maybe I'll ask OPC if I'm

          20        allowed, Mr. Chairman, was that an accurate

          21        depiction of the original conversation with respect

          22        to the criteria and the interaction between OPC and

          23        the company with respect to what was going to be

          24        looked at, what systems were going to be looked at,

          25        and what the expected outcome is supposed to be?
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           1             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, unfortunately

           2        Charlie Beck was our point person for the last rate

           3        case, so he -- we've lost intimate knowledge of

           4        those conversations.

           5             Mr. Poucher, I guess who had some involvement

           6        in those discussions, indicated that, from our

           7        point of view, it was anticipated that those seven

           8        systems that were used for the secondary quality

           9        monitoring issues, those were identified by looking

          10        at the companies -- or at the systems, I'm sorry --

          11        that had the most complaints on secondary quality

          12        issues.

          13             That was developed by Aqua Utility, with the

          14        idea that there would be an ongoing addressing of

          15        secondary quality issues, that it would not just

          16        stop, you know, once they've addressed those, you

          17        know, seven -- those seven most complained about

          18        systems from the last rate case.  It was not

          19        anticipated that that would stop.

          20             And to answer your question about why there's

          21        some disconnect, while the phase 2 monitoring was

          22        going on, we also had customer meetings happening

          23        in each one of the system areas, which was much

          24        wider than what was being monitored per se.  And we

          25        provided in our areas or our response to quality of
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           1        service issues transcripts of those customer

           2        meetings.  And what we were hearing was the same

           3        concerns, the same complaints from across the

           4        systems, not -- not just the systems that were able

           5        to come here today, and I appreciate those

           6        customers coming, but other customers who came to

           7        those six o'clock meetings in their area.

           8             And the customer complaints that we are

           9        hearing today are similar across the system.  Now,

          10        some have more concern with secondary quality

          11        issues, and I'll grant you that.  But the billing

          12        issues, the customer service issues, those issues

          13        are systemic to the company across.

          14             So you're having a disconnect, because we have

          15        a current rate case going on with current customer

          16        meetings happening at the same time you've got a

          17        very discrete phase 2 monitoring program going on

          18        at the same time.  And we did our best in our

          19        response to try and marry the concerns of what was

          20        happening in the last rate case and bring it to

          21        date to what are the ongoing concerns.

          22             And I think, from hearing from the customer

          23        group here today, and they represent a very active

          24        customer group, but they're not the only ones that

          25        are having those problems.
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           1             So I appreciate your letting me address that.

           2             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, could I -- I'm sorry.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It appears that Issue No. 1,

           4        there's going to be a lot of moving parts to it,

           5        and I got quite a few lights on.  You guys can let

           6        me know.  But if we can let staff go, the

           7        intervenors go, and then Aqua conclude, and then

           8        bring it back to the board and start asking

           9        questions.  Will that work a little better?

          10        Because, I mean, we can be -- we can be asking

          11        questions on and off.

          12             So if we let everybody over there go and then

          13        we can bring it back over here and we can go back

          14        and forth, everybody asking a different question,

          15        until we can start unpeeling enough of this onion

          16        that we can figure out the direction we're going to

          17        go on Issue No. 1.

          18             Is that working for everybody?  Or are there

          19        questions that are burning now that you have to ask

          20        before everybody finishes?  That's an open

          21        question.

          22             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Yeah.  I guess I'm trying

          23        to figure out how do they know where to go unless

          24        we ask the questions.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I just want them to
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           1        talk about Issue No. 1, and they can talk from the

           2        40,000-foot level, and then we can start pulling

           3        levels of the onion back.

           4             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  I guess we'll give

           5        that a shot, I mean, from my perspective.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is that okay?  Okay.

           7             Public Counsel.

           8             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, hopefully I answered

           9        your question.  But I think, bottom line with

          10        quality service issue, is, after hearing from the

          11        customers at customer meetings and hearing them

          12        today, looking at the correspondence out of the

          13        docket, which, I mean, has over a thousand

          14        documents in it, these people are not satisfied

          15        with their quality of service.

          16             And it's, you know, it's not just Arredondo

          17        Farms and Lake Gibson and those, and they certainly

          18        have problems, but it's the people in Sunny Hills,

          19        New Port Richey, Gainesville, Palatka, Sebring, you

          20        know, the lake -- Lakeland, where a lot of these

          21        customers were at, Eustis, Green Acres, and

          22        Fort Myers.

          23             I think -- I think the problem is is that you

          24        have a company that does not put customer service

          25        first.  And until this issue gets addressed and
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           1        these people can get their problems timely

           2        resolved, I mean, they need to be able to get a

           3        customer service representative on the phone, have

           4        that person be responsive, helpful, considerate,

           5        and get their problems resolved in a timely manner

           6        and not four hours, four days, or, you know, 407

           7        days later, as we heard from one of the customers.

           8             I think that having them come in and ask for a

           9        rate increase is kind of insulting to these

          10        customers.  I mean, these people should be getting

          11        what they're paying for.  And, you know, I'm not

          12        happy, you know, any happier than anybody else that

          13        we have to continue to find this company has

          14        marginal service.  I wish they would get on the

          15        ball and give these people good quality of service.

          16        And I think that's what we are all trying to strive

          17        for.  I think that's what we tried to do with the

          18        phase 2 monitoring program, but we're not there

          19        yet.

          20             And, you know, our office is committed to

          21        working with the company to make sure that these

          22        customers get the service that they're paying for

          23        and that Aqua can be the company that they should

          24        be.  Thank you.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Arredondo.
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           1             MR. CURTIN:  Thank you, Commissioners.  I

           2        think my speech last time was long enough.  The

           3        quality of service at Arredondo has only decreased.

           4        If you just remember the one customer that was

           5        here, perfect example, was there three years ago,

           6        before they had their first rate increase, service

           7        was good.  After two rate increases, double the

           8        price, he comes back because Arredondo Farms is a

           9        great place to live and the service is down, the

          10        water quality is down, the price has skyrocketed.

          11             That says it all, and that's the way it's

          12        continued, Your -- Commissioners.  And only having

          13        a reduce in their rate of equity is going to get

          14        Aqua to really increase their service.  Thank you.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May?

          16             MR. MAY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          17        Commissioners.

          18             I was part of the discussions and the

          19        negotiations with OPC and Commission staff.  I was

          20        here when we went through the last rate case, and

          21        we heard the Commission.  The Commission found the

          22        service at that time marginal, except for Chuluota,

          23        and they granted a rate increase for all of the

          24        systems except Chuluota.

          25             But they instructed -- the message was very
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           1        clear, there was a concern about esthetic water

           2        quality and other issues with respect to billing

           3        and customer service, so there was established in

           4        that order a phase 1 quality of service monitoring.

           5        We went through that phase 1 quality of service

           6        monitoring, and it was structured in a way where

           7        there was a lot of he said, she said, a lot of

           8        anecdotal information where the utility says we're

           9        doing a good job, the customer said no, you're not.

          10        Let's try to get some empirical information and

          11        make a decision.  So that was the fundamental basis

          12        of the quality of service monitoring phase 1.

          13             At that point in time there was a -- there was

          14        allegations that the customer service

          15        representatives on the phone in the call centers

          16        were being rude to customers, and there was also a

          17        concern that the, quote, meters were not properly

          18        reading.  So the Commission ordered the company to

          19        audiotape every conversation of its CSRs with its

          20        customers.  We provided each one of those

          21        audiotapes, and your staff independently audited

          22        those audiotapes and came back with a

          23        recommendation last March that the customer service

          24        representatives were not being rude, they appeared

          25        to be doing their job.  That was an empirical fact
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           1        that was derived from the quality of service

           2        monitoring.

           3             No. 2, there was a concern that the meters

           4        were not properly registering and that the meter

           5        reads were not being properly translated in a bill.

           6        Therefore, the Commission ordered the utility to

           7        provide the staff with meter reading schedules.

           8        And what the staff did is they followed the utility

           9        around as they read the meters, they went right

          10        behind them, read the meters, and then compared the

          11        bills to the meters.  And again, your staff, based

          12        upon that independent audit, determined that the

          13        meters were accurate and the billing was accurate.

          14             AUDIENCE SPEAKER:  I guess that's why they

          15        replaced my faucets, right?

          16             MR. MAY:  So that staff recommendation was

          17        brought back to the Commission last March.  The

          18        Commission reviewed the status of the phase 1, they

          19        said -- you said -- we've looked at the information

          20        on the accuracy of the bills and the billing,

          21        there's no need to do that anymore.  We're

          22        confident.  They also said, there's no need to

          23        question the demeanor or the performance of the

          24        call service representatives, there's no need to

          25        produce the audiotapes.  And the Commission also
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           1        found Aqua has made, quote, substantial improvement

           2        in its quality of service.

           3             So we started with marginal back in 2009.  In

           4        March of 2010, the Commission looks at -- at half

           5        time, and says, well, looks like you've made

           6        substantial improvement, but there's a couple of

           7        other issues we'd like you to follow up on.  One,

           8        we'd like to continue to monitor your environmental

           9        compliance.  Two, we don't want to incur -- cause

          10        you to incur additional cost, but, you know, how

          11        are you governing yourselves to improve quality of

          12        service?  How are you governing yourselves to

          13        improve your billing practices and ensure bills are

          14        accurate and properly formatted and issued on time?

          15             And, just to make it clear, the Commission,

          16        unlike in the telecommunications industry, the

          17        Commission has never adopted performance metrics

          18        for quality of service for water and wastewater

          19        utilities.  My client has proactively established

          20        its own internal aggressive goals, and we have

          21        provided that to the staff and to the OPC.

          22        Mr. Poucher looked at them and he said, those

          23        internal metrics would be fine.  He said, that

          24        would give us a cost-effective way for us to kind

          25        of keep our finger on the pulse and to make sure
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           1        you're trying your best to improve your quality of

           2        service.

           3             I guess no good deed goes unpunished.  We

           4        provided those reports.  They're internal metrics,

           5        they're aggressive goals.  We met virtually all of

           6        those goals.  There's a couple of them we didn't

           7        meet, but it was very, very slightly that we didn't

           8        meet those goals.  But it's, you know, there were

           9        stretch goals.  And to say that the company is not

          10        trying to address customer satisfaction I think

          11        ignores this long history that I just went over.

          12             Staff and -- you know, I've had my

          13        disagreements with staff, but staff's got it right

          14        this time.  Staff's recommendation is extensive,

          15        it's thorough, it's objective, and it's

          16        independent.  Ms. Christensen has got her point of

          17        view, I've got my point of view.  Independent staff

          18        has reviewed the facts and found that the quality

          19        of service is satisfactory.  And I respectfully

          20        submit that staff has got it right.  And again, we

          21        support staff on Issue No. 1.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

          23             Commissioner Brisé, did you get the answer to

          24        your first question?  If not, continue.

          25             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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           1        I think I got the baseline for where the

           2        conversation began.

           3             And -- and I guess you all can nod and let me

           4        know if -- if I'm sort of where we -- where I think

           5        you all started at.

           6             At the end of the last time that you all --

           7        the company was before the Commission, there was an

           8        issue obviously of quality of service.  Then the

           9        company sort of, as was expressed, laid out some

          10        metrics, as was described by Mr. May, for some

          11        things that needed to be looked at.  OPC,

          12        quote-unquote, signed off on what those parameters

          13        were.  Staff signed off on what those parameters

          14        were.  And I suppose the company began to work on

          15        those.

          16             So if we -- what I wanted to know is was there

          17        an actual agreement as to what those parameters

          18        were, so that everyone is speaking off or working

          19        off the same parameters.  But what I'm hearing from

          20        OPC is that there was never necessarily one set of

          21        parameters that looked at a set of systems that

          22        were going to be looked at.  And that's where I'm a

          23        little bit unclear.  So if maybe OPC can clarify

          24        that for me, then that will give me a little bit

          25        more understanding as to the parameters.
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           1             And then you can answer this question as you

           2        answer that question.  Was there any improvement

           3        from what was seen initially, based upon the agreed

           4        upon parameters, if there are agreed upon metrics

           5        or parameters, however you want to define that.

           6             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  My understanding, and having

           7        come into the second rate case, is that there

           8        were -- for the phase 2, there were parameters that

           9        were set out that were accepted by the Commission

          10        and put forth in an order.  So that I guess answers

          11        that first question.

          12             And -- and to be fair, on some of the metrics

          13        they did show improvement.  On some they did not.

          14        Our summary or our review of the phase 2 monitoring

          15        report, as separate from our commenting on the

          16        quality of service for the current rate case,

          17        showed that there were some improvements in some of

          18        the areas.  But there were also, as Mr. May

          19        acknowledges, some shortfalls on the parameters

          20        that the company adopted for itself, and those are

          21        the things that we brought forth to your attention.

          22        We didn't set those internal standards, the company

          23        did.  So we were just holding them to the standards

          24        that they decided they were going to hold

          25        themselves accountable to.
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           1             My comment regarding the quality of the

           2        customer representatives, there was obviously a

           3        break between the May 2010, when that was

           4        discontinued, and what we were starting to hear

           5        again at the customer meetings.  And there may have

           6        been some overlap from prior customer service

           7        complaints, relating back to the last rate case.

           8        But, to be fair to the customers, those complaints

           9        continued -- we continued to start hearing those

          10        again in the customer meetings.

          11             So you are getting some overlap of

          12        information, and I think that may be what's

          13        creating some of the disconnect.  So while some of

          14        the discrete factors, there have been some

          15        improvements in there, when you're looking at them

          16        in isolation, I think what we also tried to address

          17        was the overall quality of service issues that we

          18        were still hearing in the customer meetings in the

          19        current rate case.

          20             So I hope that answers your question, and I

          21        didn't want to misrepresent that certain things

          22        hadn't improved on some of the criteria.  There

          23        certainly was some improvement, but I think it's a

          24        question of whether or not there's an overall.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis,
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           1        followed by Commissioner Brown.

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Commissioner.

           3        I just have a couple of comments, and I'm glad for

           4        staff's introduction on the three criteria that we

           5        used to evaluate quality of service.

           6             And starting with the first one, as far as

           7        quality of product, let me start with, although

           8        unfortunately or maybe fortunately I wasn't on the

           9        Commission for the previous customer hearings, I

          10        did listen to all the audiotapes, and I do agree

          11        with OPC that, although there's maybe a smaller

          12        representation here, I did hear the same comments

          13        from all the other customer hearings.  So I think

          14        that maybe the same comments are obviously

          15        throughout Aqua's customers.

          16             But, as far as the quality of the product, I'm

          17        looking into detail on each treatment plant and the

          18        type of water they're treating, and most of those

          19        lack water quality treatment.  It's mostly

          20        chlorination, sequestration, and then pump

          21        delivering to the customers.  So I was surprised

          22        that there's complaints about hardness, surprised

          23        about hydrogen sulfide and taste and odor issues.

          24        And, you know, I'm happy to see that Aqua is coming

          25        up with options, at least with Arredondo, on
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           1        different ways to treat it, dealing with the

           2        customers, and the secondary water quality task

           3        force I think is starting to address that.

           4             So, although I agree there are probably

           5        esthetic issues that are serious, it doesn't

           6        surprise me with the type of water and how they're

           7        treating it.

           8             My -- I'm more concerned with the customer

           9        service complaints that are -- that have been

          10        identified, and even in the phase 2 monitoring

          11        report.  I think the data shows that maybe Aqua has

          12        stopped the increase in complaints and kind of, you

          13        know, stopped the downward trend, which shows, you

          14        know, an attempt to increase customer service.  I

          15        think the problem is that, you know, the half time,

          16        if you will, was so recent that it's almost -- we

          17        don't have enough time to implement all these

          18        improvements, you know, because unfortunately they

          19        filed another rate case, so, you know, they're kind

          20        of taking a snapshot before all of their efforts

          21        maybe come to fruition.

          22             So I still think they're taking the right

          23        steps.  However, I don't see a marked improvement

          24        in customer service, which I think is more

          25        concerning than the water quality issues of the
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           1        three things we need to look at.

           2             As far as the treatment systems and quality of

           3        the lines distribution system, reviewing the DEP

           4        records, which are more concerned with that, I

           5        didn't see anything that really jumped out.  But,

           6        you know, I assume that the technical capabilities

           7        of Aqua, they can handle those along with the

           8        regulatory authority.

           9             But, again, I'm concerned with the customer

          10        service issues.  I think they have a plan in place,

          11        I think they have methods in place, but I don't see

          12        the results yet, and maybe because it's too soon

          13        since they implemented it.

          14             And then just an unrelated -- well, it's a

          15        related question, but, you know, a question for

          16        Aqua.  There's a discussion on the policy for how

          17        you deal with customer leaks, and it states in the

          18        recommendation that Aqua reviews the customers'

          19        documentation and grants bill adjustments on a

          20        case-by-case basis, and this is a discussion I had

          21        with staff.

          22             Other utilities have gone through the exercise

          23        to determine, okay, if there is a customer leak and

          24        there's a short-term delivery of water to that

          25        customer, that the utility has gone through the
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           1        exercise of determining what those short-term costs

           2        are, stripping out, you know, the operation and

           3        maintenance issues and more just the people, the

           4        power of the chemicals, and having at least a

           5        policy that's based on cost so that it's fair to

           6        both the customers and the utility on that.  Is

           7        that something that the utility has looked at, or

           8        is it just case-by-case, or how does that work?

           9             MR. MAY:  Commissioner Balbis, I'm going to

          10        defer to Mr. Rendell on that.  The company does

          11        have a policy on leak adjustments, if that's what

          12        you're driving at.

          13             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Yes.

          14             MR. RENDELL:  Yes, Commissioner, we responded

          15        to staff data request that I believe was No. 11 on

          16        our leak adjustment policy.  Although it's not

          17        required by Commission rule, we do have a leak

          18        adjustment policy in place, where if a customer

          19        calls up to CSR and indicates they had a leak on

          20        their property, either service line or within their

          21        house, they're given an opportunity to supply the

          22        documentation where the leak is repaired.  We will

          23        take that documentation, we will compare the

          24        highest month to the average three months, and

          25        we'll give a credit of 50 percent between the
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           1        highest month and the average.  So we do apply a

           2        credit to the customer's bill for leak adjustment.

           3             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  And I

           4        know I've had this discussion with staff.  It might

           5        be something as a Commission we look at, either the

           6        rulemaking process or developing a policy that --

           7        and I'm not sure if the 50 percent is based on any

           8        data or is just arbitrary, but at least so that we

           9        have some uniform adjustment, because I know it is

          10        a problem.  It's a problem with municipal utilities

          11        as well as investor-owned utilities, but maybe it's

          12        another discussion further on.

          13             And I just make this suggestion to Aqua.  If

          14        you do go through that exercise to determine the

          15        50 percent, great.  If not, that's something you

          16        may look at.

          17             MR. RENDELL:  We have actually looked at other

          18        cities within the state of Florida, we've read

          19        their policy, and it does mirror that, and we'll be

          20        more than happy to share that with the staff, of

          21        this is also how other municipalities and counties

          22        do leak adjustments.

          23             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  That's all the

          24        questions I have.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.
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           1             Commissioner Brown?

           2             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           3             A couple of follow-up questions about some of

           4        the customer testimony.  We talked about the boil

           5        water notices.  Has the utility developed a

           6        procedure and has it been following procedure with

           7        regard to that?

           8             MR. MAY:  Yes, Commissioner Brown.  The

           9        utility has a definitive boil notice procedure that

          10        is uniformly followed, and I guess I can let

          11        Mr. Rendell describe it in a little more detail,

          12        but we do have a procedure and a process in place

          13        that we follow.

          14             MR. RENDELL:  Yes, Commissioner, we do follow

          15        the policy that's established by DOH, Department of

          16        Health, Department of Environmental Protection.

          17        Once a leak is determined or -- or discovered, and

          18        if we can isolate that leak through using valves to

          19        a specific area, we will deliver boil water notices

          20        based via a door hanger on the individual homes for

          21        the affected area.  In other words, if we could

          22        shut down the system to a home or like a street

          23        where it affects maybe ten homes, we'll deliver it

          24        to ten homes.

          25             In the case of the Palm Terrace last week, we
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           1        delivered 1200 door hanger tags, and we also

           2        notified Department of -- DEP, and we also notify

           3        the Public Service Commission each time an outage

           4        affects more than 10 percent of the customer base,

           5        which is required by rule.  So we do notify the

           6        PSC, we notify the customers.

           7             We did have a couple of instants where we're

           8        using the swift reach outreach, where we're doing

           9        this telephonic notification.  We are refining it.

          10        We're attempting to gather data from the customers

          11        on accurate telephone numbers so that we can make

          12        sure that that's implemented as most efficiently as

          13        possible.

          14             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

          15             AUDIENCE SPEAKER:  Commissioner, I'd like to

          16        show you, this is -- what is --

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Officer, can you remove that

          18        man, please?

          19             AUDIENCE SPEAKER:  I just want to -- this is

          20        the boil water notice.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sir, we've already listened

          22        to the public comments and that part is done.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.

          24        Thank you.

          25             Obviously there is a disconnect with some of
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           1        the customers and what the policy that the company

           2        is saying that they're abiding by.  And I

           3        understand that there has been a lot of scrutiny on

           4        the quality of service and what the company is

           5        doing.  But I think it is an essential aspect.  You

           6        can hear the customers.  They want that attention.

           7        So there may be -- if the utility company would be

           8        interested in implementing and focusing on

           9        addressing those concerns with regard to those boil

          10        water, because obviously those concerns are not

          11        being addressed uniformly across to the ratepayers.

          12             I do have a few just other questions that came

          13        up from the customers, if I may.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  First, how many systems

          16        have two bills?

          17             MR. MAY:  There is just one system with two

          18        bills, and it's -- I think you're referring to the

          19        Fairways system.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  The newly acquired.

          21             MR. MAY:  It's where there's an irrigation

          22        bill, and then there's the potable water bill, so

          23        there's two bills the company is looking at.  It's

          24        the only system -- and Aqua owns and operates 120

          25        different systems in the state, 87 of which are

                                                                        204

           1        subject to your jurisdiction.  This is the only

           2        system where this anomaly occurs, so the company is

           3        focusing on trying to find a way to have a single

           4        bill, to provide a little more -- be more customer

           5        friendly in that respect.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And just a few additional

           7        questions.  What is the company's policy for

           8        turning water back on after it has been turned off?

           9        A customer testified that her water was not turned

          10        back on for a period of 48 hours, I believe.  What

          11        is the utility company's policy on addressing

          12        those?  Obviously it's a -- water is an essential.

          13             MR. MAY:  Absolutely.  Let me get a consultant

          14        and we'll have...

          15             MR. RENDELL:  I believe the policy is, once

          16        the situation has been rectified, if they've paid

          17        their outstanding water bill and paid the

          18        connection charges, the water is turned back on as

          19        soon as possible.  I can get further clarification

          20        if there's a time period, but it's as soon as

          21        possible, you know, that we can get a service order

          22        generated and get a utility tech out there to turn

          23        the water back on.

          24             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  If I may.  Obviously, 48

          25        hours is completely unacceptable, and I think that
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           1        it may be universally held among the Commissioners

           2        that that's something that the utility company

           3        really needs to address as a priority, at no

           4        expense to the ratepayer.

           5             A couple other questions regarding the

           6        monitoring plan.  This is for the utility company

           7        and OPC.  As we discussed as part of the secondary

           8        water -- I apologize.  And, yes, as part of the

           9        secondary water quality task force, there is -- the

          10        seven meetings occurred.  When the company and OPC

          11        met with customers throughout the various meetings

          12        where the capital improvements were discussed,

          13        particularly the secondary water quality projects,

          14        did either OPC or the utility company discuss those

          15        costs associated with those projects and whether

          16        those costs would be passed on to the ratepayers

          17        through pro forma improvements?

          18             MR. MAY:  Let me -- let me, if I might, with

          19        Mr. Rendell's assistance answer that question.  And

          20        I think representative -- excuse me --

          21        Commissioner Brisé had a question earlier, similar,

          22        and I'm not sure it ever got answered.  How did the

          23        seven systems -- how were the seven systems

          24        selected, and I think Ms. Christensen was correct.

          25        Partially I think the company and OPC looked at the
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           1        systems that were getting the most esthetic

           2        concerns or questions.  But also it was the

           3        systems that were actually exceeding the secondary

           4        water quality standards established by EPA and DEP.

           5        It was those seven systems that were -- where there

           6        was a more acute esthetic issue.  That was the

           7        first seven systems.

           8             So once those seven systems were identified --

           9        there's seven systems plus Chuluota.  Chuluota was

          10        part of that.  Once those seven systems were

          11        identified, there were two meetings.  The initial

          12        meeting was with customer representatives, OPC, and

          13        the utility.  And that was a brainstorming session,

          14        if you will, where we're going to talk in

          15        generalities about the issue, the concerns, and

          16        general possible solutions.

          17             Then there was a second meeting where the

          18        company went back and refined the list or the

          19        designated possible solutions and put price tags on

          20        those solutions and then came back to the customers

          21        and discussed with the customers not only the

          22        solution but also the cost.

          23             It was a process that we thought was helpful,

          24        it was a collaborative process where the company

          25        was actually interfacing with the customers in
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           1        trying to come up with a collaborative solution

           2        that would address their esthetic concerns and be

           3        cost-effective.

           4             So that was kind of the -- that was the plan.

           5             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  My true question is, did

           6        the utility company or OPC address the cost

           7        associated with these projects --

           8             MR. MAY:  I'll turn it over to --

           9             MR. RENDELL:  The short answer is yes, we did.

          10        That was required pursuant to the Commission rule.

          11        We had to go in.  The first meeting was to identify

          12        what the problem was and what the potential

          13        solutions were.  And then we go back and identify

          14        what the potential cost was.

          15             Also during these meetings the staff -- the

          16        customers -- the customers gave ideas to Aqua to

          17        look at other possible -- like, for instance, in

          18        one of the systems, Highlands, we are moving

          19        forward the adage systems, which the customers

          20        fully support.  They wanted just to look at maybe

          21        looping the lines or doing something else.

          22             We went back and did a cost analysis and went

          23        back to the customer, this is what the cost would

          24        be for that, plus it would not satisfy the quality

          25        of service because the hydrogen sulfides would
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           1        still be in the water.  And all of the costs were

           2        fully explained to the customers, as well as what

           3        the potential impact in the rate case based on the

           4        proposal.

           5             I do want to add real quickly on your previous

           6        question on the customer getting the service turned

           7        back on.  One point was I believe Commissioner

           8        Edgar asked about noticing.  Aqua does send out a

           9        ten-day notice before disconnect.  What's required

          10        by the PSC rules is actually five day.  This

          11        customer did receive a notice.  We also called the

          12        customer prior to disconnection.  This customer did

          13        receive a phone call.  Once it was turned off, the

          14        payment was made on November 4th, the service was

          15        turned on the very next business day, on

          16        November 5th, so it was within 24 hours.

          17             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you for the

          18        clarification.  Twenty-four hours is still a pretty

          19        long time to get your water turned back on, but --

          20        and it sounded like she was making every effort to

          21        get that turned back on and pay the expensive bill.

          22             I have just a few more questions.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          24             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  This is a question more

          25        for staff.  And during our briefings we talked a
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           1        little bit about this, so just to refresh your

           2        memory.  While the last rate case appeared to have

           3        nine enforcement issues, the instant case has five,

           4        with three outstanding consent orders, and we all

           5        know what a consent order is here, so it's not at

           6        issue here.  And two outstanding warning letters.

           7             And I recognize that some improvements

           8        certainly have been made, and I'm sure the

           9        customers are very appreciative of that.  However,

          10        I'm just trying to get my arms around why staff

          11        recommended satisfactory in this particular case

          12        when there are still -- we have five enforcement

          13        actions, three consent orders.  One of the warning

          14        letters is going to turn into another consent

          15        order.  And I'm trying to -- I'm grappling with why

          16        staff's recommendation on the satisfactory nature.

          17             MR. REIGER:  Well, of course we also spoke

          18        about what the condition was in the last rate case,

          19        and that we noted that there was improvement in the

          20        numbers of enforcement actions going on, like it

          21        was nine cases in the last case and now it's five.

          22             Primarily we're seeing improvements.  And we

          23        also discussed when we had our briefing about the

          24        possibility about the number of systems that the

          25        utility is responsible for to make the clients
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           1        with, the age of the systems dealing with and

           2        various different reasons of problems that may

           3        occur that were not planned for and the utility

           4        initially finds themselves out of compliance.

           5             As long as we see that the utility is trying

           6        to achieve compliance and improving on the numbers

           7        between what we saw in the last rate case, that

           8        primarily is in response as far as what we believe

           9        is an improvement, the utility attempting to

          10        improve the service and to meet better compliance.

          11             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Can I follow up?

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's it?

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Can I follow up?

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yeah, please.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  In the same vein as the

          16        compliance issues regarding the Peace River system,

          17        while the company is participating in the pilot

          18        project, those costs are going to be passed along

          19        under the pro forma on Issue 3.  Is this the most

          20        cost-effective remedy for complying with the

          21        outstanding enforcement issue?

          22             MR. REIGER:  Well, perhaps we can get the

          23        utility to talk a little bit about what's going on

          24        with Peace River.  It appears to be that they had

          25        this monitoring pilot program going on, and I
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           1        believe they decided to, as far as the form of

           2        treatment, that they're proceeding on with trying

           3        to develop the planning towards getting permitting

           4        to accomplish that goal.  To get updated, I believe

           5        I would refer to the utility and see what's the

           6        latest going on with that.

           7             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.

           8             MR. MAY:  Commissioner Brown, can I have

           9        Mr. Lucweiller explain the gross alpha particle

          10        pilot program at Peace River?

          11             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Certainly.

          12             MR. LUCWEILLER:  The consent order for Peace

          13        River Heights arose from an exceedance of the MCL,

          14        maximum contaminant level, for gross alpha.  We

          15        looked at the data at that time, and the data was

          16        inconsistent.  The gross alpha number was over the

          17        MCL, but the components of gross alpha, there's two

          18        natural radionuclides that can contribute to gross

          19        alpha:  Uranium and radium 226.

          20             You add those together and they were much

          21        lower than the gross alpha number.  They're done by

          22        different tests.  There was a recent report done by

          23        the AWWA research foundation or the water research

          24        foundation by the Wisconsin State Laboratory of

          25        Hygiene that studied this in-depth, an entire
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           1        one-inch-thick document that explained the

           2        phenomenon that this is an artifact of the

           3        analytical method that has been used and selected

           4        by EPA for years.

           5             We did testing with other methods, we sent

           6        samples to the Wisconsin state health labs, we

           7        convinced ourselves and most -- and most reviewers

           8        of the data that the gross alpha was an artifact of

           9        the analysis.  However, in the process of doing

          10        that, we found that the radium 226 levels were

          11        close to the MCL, below but close.  As a result, we

          12        negotiated with Florida DEP that they would have us

          13        test every two months for two years and if four --

          14        if two samples exceeded the MCL -- that's not the

          15        way the federal rule is written for compliance --

          16        we would begin implementation or design of

          17        treatment.

          18             In May or March of this year, the second

          19        sample exceeded the MCL.  However, the system has

          20        been for all that time in compliance with the MCLs

          21        for radium and for uranium and for gross alpha.  So

          22        the system has been in compliance, but we've

          23        triggered a marker that DEP put down, and we have

          24        gone ahead and proceeded with the design for that

          25        treatment.
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           1             The particular treatment that we're proposing

           2        does not generate a waste stream.  We talked to DEP

           3        and to a lot of other folks about systems that were

           4        in place in Florida, and there are basically four

           5        different kinds of treatment for radium:  Ion

           6        exchange; HMO, hydrous manganese oxide

           7        co-precipitation; reverse osmosis; and this WRT

           8        absorptive media, disposable media solution.

           9             The first three all generate some kind of

          10        radiological waste stream that Florida DEP and the

          11        state -- and the county health departments have not

          12        completely addressed.  And many states are just

          13        beginning to address that now.  The WRT process

          14        does not have that issue.

          15             We have dealt with radiological issues in four

          16        other states, particularly in New Jersey where this

          17        was a big issue of what do you do with the

          18        radiological material that you've removed, and

          19        chose the WRT treatment system there, and are very

          20        glad that we did because of that issue.

          21             We do have -- we've had experience with all of

          22        the other treatment systems except RO.  We've done

          23        ion exchange and we've done HMO and, because of the

          24        waste stream issues involved, WRT is the best

          25        solution.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And most cost-effective?

           2             MR. LUCWEILLER:  And most cost-effective.

           3             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

           4             With regard to -- if I may?

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Sorry.  If any other

           7        Commissioners have questions on point here, please

           8        feel free to jump in.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Nobody else has got their

          10        light on.

          11             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

          12             With regard to Jasmine Lakes and Palm Terrace,

          13        the warning letters that were associated with those

          14        service areas, DEP found there was no rule

          15        violation but ordered the utility to pay 23,000 in

          16        penalties relating to the percolation pond and the

          17        groundwater rule violations for Jasmine Lakes.

          18        What was the reason?

          19             MR. LUCWEILLER:  Exceedance in the ground

          20        water on a couple of occasions of the sodium level.

          21             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  But they didn't find that

          22        the utility violated a rule per se?  They still

          23        ordered penalties be assessed?

          24             MR. LUCWEILLER:  That's correct.

          25             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Dose OPC have any
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           1        background or knowledge about this, the reason?

           2             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  No.  But I do have an

           3        unrelated issue relative to customers who are here,

           4        so when it's convenient I'd like to address that to

           5        the Chair.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

           7             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  At this point they're ready

           8        to depart but they don't want to interrupt the

           9        proceedings.  So at the Chair's convenience, if we

          10        could take a ten-minute break to allow them to

          11        filter out and then -- and get loaded on the buses

          12        and resume, it might help ease any disruption in

          13        the proceedings.  But I don't want to -- I just

          14        want to bring that to your attention, and they're

          15        of course willing to do that whenever it's

          16        convenient for the Chair.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we're close enough

          18        to when we were talking about having a dinner

          19        break, so I think this may be an opportune time, if

          20        the buses are going to leave.

          21             Once again, I do want to thank you all for

          22        coming out here.  I know this was not an easy thing

          23        to do and I know it's costly for you guys to rent

          24        buses and to come out here.  So I do appreciate

          25        your involvement, and I'm sure you guys are
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           1        probably home before we're done here.  So travel

           2        safe home, and we'll continue on from there.

           3             We'll take a -- we'll take an hour break for

           4        dinner.  We'll take an hour dinner break.

           5             If I can just -- just get your attention.

           6        I've been overruled, and we're only going to break

           7        for dinner until 7:00.  So find a vending machine

           8        somewhere.

           9             (Break taken.)

          10             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Mr. Mariano would like to

          11        just briefly address the Commission when you

          12        reconvene about the situation with the buses, and

          13        then he has to leave to get on the buses.  He just

          14        wanted to make a brief comment, and I just wanted

          15        to bring that to your attention.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We were -- I guess we're

          17        back in order now.

          18             Commissioner, please.

          19             MR. MARIANO:  I just wanted to say we had a

          20        little mixup with the bus contract, you might say,

          21        the legal requirements.  That bus driver needs to

          22        be back in a short period of time.  They didn't

          23        allow for another bus driver, so both buses had to

          24        leave.  At least one of the buses would have

          25        stayed.
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           1             And I just want to relate to you, I think you

           2        saw the passion of the people.  It's not real easy

           3        to get people up here like this.  We had community

           4        support to bring those people here.

           5             So, please, even though they're not here right

           6        now, just remember what they've said comes from the

           7        heart, and please take that into consideration.  I

           8        thank you very much.  Again, it's been very helpful

           9        for the people to get to voice their concerns and

          10        the way you've conducted the matter as we go.

          11        Thank you all.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you for coming.

          13             Okay.  We are back to I believe

          14        Commissioner Brown had the floor.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          16        And in the interest of time, I've shortened my list

          17        of questions to -- and eliminated most of them

          18        except for just two left.

          19             And this is a question for staff.  While I

          20        understand staff has monitored and considered the

          21        complaints that were filed with the Commission as

          22        part of its monitoring plan, we saw in the

          23        presentation, and in Attachment 2 on page 165 of

          24        staff's rec, that there about 5400 calls from May

          25        10th to December 10th that the utility received,
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           1        although I do believe only 792 of them are actually

           2        classified as complaints.  Do you think that this

           3        is a disproportionately significant number in terms

           4        of quality of service?

           5             MS. GOLDEN:  For considering the percentages

           6        that we looked at, of the -- those calls where they

           7        actually do talk to a customer service

           8        representative, it was an average of 792 per month,

           9        that that accounts for around 12 to 15 percent of

          10        the calls that they get every month are calls that

          11        a customer actually does need to talk to a customer

          12        service representative.

          13             It is a high number, but looking at it in

          14        terms of percentages, it's about 2.4 percent of

          15        Aqua's customer base.  So it's our opinion that,

          16        looking at the entire company, that that is not

          17        excessive, although we would certainly like to see

          18        better numbers than that.

          19             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  One of -- one of the

          20        customers testified and provided a handout with

          21        numbers reflecting other large water utility

          22        companies that we regulate.  Would you agree with

          23        those numbers and -- and that the -- Aqua is the

          24        most significantly high recipient of customer calls

          25        and complaints?
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           1             MS. GOLDEN:  Yes, Commissioner.  And what we

           2        did, we took his analysis just a little bit

           3        further.  He looked at the largest seven companies.

           4        We compared it to the complaints we get from all of

           5        the water and wastewater companies.  And for 2010,

           6        Aqua's complaints accounted for 41 percent of all

           7        the water and wastewater complaints that the

           8        Commission received.  So his number was higher

           9        because he focused just on those seven.  We looked

          10        at the total base, but it does account for a large

          11        percentage.

          12             And if you want the exact number, the

          13        Commission received 350 complaints from customers

          14        of water and wastewater companies in 2010.  144 of

          15        those were from Aqua customers.

          16             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.  I had a --

          17        last question.  I have a question for the utility

          18        company regarding the phase 2 monitoring plan, and

          19        I know that the utility company also has a future

          20        phase 3 monitoring plan.  I read it somewhere in

          21        the recommendation.  Is that -- is that right?

          22             MR. MAY:  Yeah.  It's the secondary water

          23        quality.  There's a second phase of the secondary

          24        water quality, so there is another group of

          25        companies that did not have the same esthetic
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           1        issues that the first seven did.  But, for

           2        instance, Arredondo Farms, and as Mr. Lucweiller

           3        said, we are, you know, prepared to include Jasmine

           4        Lakes in light of the concerns we heard today in

           5        that.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  That's excellent.  Do

           7        you -- does the company intend to recover its costs

           8        associated with the monitoring plans through --

           9        through its rates?

          10             MR. MAY:  Well, I think that's a great

          11        question and I think it highlights really why we're

          12        here.  If I could get staff to distribute, it's an

          13        order, it's a 2007 order that involved an electric

          14        utility.  And the reason I wanted to bring it to

          15        your attention is that it's -- I'll let you have

          16        the order first.

          17             But I've highlighted -- on page 7 I've

          18        highlighted the relevant portion of the order.  And

          19        again, I think it underscores two points that I'd

          20        like to make.  One is how costs are recovered in

          21        the water utility industry.  And two, why we're

          22        here so soon.  I mean, I can -- I can appreciate

          23        the questions.  I can kind of feel that, you know,

          24        why are you back so soon, and I just wanted to

          25        explain, and it's a -- I'm not saying it's an
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           1        arcane distinction of the law, but it's a very

           2        meaningful distinction in the law of Florida that a

           3        lot of people miss with respect to utility

           4        regulation.

           5             The order you've got before you involved water

           6        contamination, trihalomethanes and haloacetic

           7        acids, which is normally issues with respect to

           8        water utilities.  It's -- it's an MCL under the

           9        Safe Drinking Water Act.  In this case, FPL, which

          10        as you know is in the business of providing not

          11        water but electricity, there was a groundwater

          12        contamination at its Martin power plant.  And

          13        trihalomethanes and haloacetic acid was identified

          14        as contaminating the ground water.

          15             The issue was brought to DEP's attention.  DEP

          16        and FPL entered into a consent order, which I think

          17        we all understand is not a scarlet letter or a

          18        death sentence.  It's actually applauded by the

          19        environmental regulators.  They like utilities in

          20        the regulated community to get together.  And so

          21        FPL and DEP agreed upon a corrective action plan

          22        which involved a fairly significant cost of a pilot

          23        project to clean up the water contamination.

          24             Now, under Florida law, as the order before

          25        you shows, FPL was given assurances by the

                                                                        222

           1        Commission that it could recover the cost of the

           2        project even before it started to incur the cost.

           3             We don't have that luxury in the water utility

           4        industry.  Florida law requires us to implement the

           5        consent order, expend the capital, hire the

           6        consultants, incur the costs, hire the lawyer, hire

           7        the consultants, hire the engineers and the

           8        accountants, come before you in a rate case.  We

           9        don't like being here.  We really don't like being

          10        here.  And if we had our druthers, we wouldn't be

          11        here.

          12             But as I said in my opening, we've made

          13        investments to improve the capital infrastructure

          14        of this system.  And we're entitled under the law

          15        to a fair return on those investments.  And again,

          16        I don't want to belabor the point, but I think it's

          17        an important point to understand as to why we're

          18        here so soon, because I can detect that.  I see it,

          19        you know, why are you back?  Well, that's the

          20        reason.  Again, it's not by choice.  We've made

          21        investments, we've made capital improvements.  Not

          22        one of the systems that Commissioner Edgar listed

          23        as potentially carved out, not one of those systems

          24        falloutside of the Safe Drinking Water Act

          25        standards.  Not one of them.
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           1             And you say there's three open consent orders.

           2        Actually this morning the Jungle Den consent order

           3        was closed.  I would challenge anyone in this room

           4        to show me a utility with 87 systems without a

           5        consent order open.

           6             And I would again respectfully submit that

           7        quality of service and customer service is a number

           8        one priority for this company.  And it's been a

           9        number one priority since they've come to Florida,

          10        and that priority has even become stronger over the

          11        last couple of years.

          12             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  If I may.  And thank you

          13        very much for your -- I guess the answer would be

          14        yes, and I understand -- and I appreciate the order

          15        and I'm aware of the law.  And the question is, if

          16        this Commission is on the path of finding marginal

          17        service, then if we required additional monitoring,

          18        those costs would be passed on to the ratepayers or

          19        requested by the utility company to be passed on to

          20        the ratepayers, and it's just something that I

          21        think we all need to consider when -- when --

          22        broadening the scope and when making our motion, or

          23        when addressing Issue 1 on this.

          24             I'm done with my questions.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

           2        And I agree with Commissioner Brown, and I think

           3        the way the staff framed Issue 1 was, you know, is

           4        the quality of service provided by the utility

           5        satisfactory, and the next step is, what action

           6        should be taken.  And I think when we determine the

           7        action that should be taken in Issue 1, if we do

           8        disagree with staff, we can look into those

           9        considerations.

          10             And I guess, you know, not to be repetitive,

          11        but maybe I can just say it a little differently.

          12        And I appreciate the representative from Aqua's

          13        description of, you know, for example, the boil

          14        water notices.  And I -- you know, I believe the

          15        fact that there are policies and procedures in

          16        place that are correct, that are appropriate, and

          17        one thing that I -- that I do know from personal

          18        experience is you have the policies and procedures

          19        in place, and then whether or not people follow

          20        those.

          21             And our staff does not have the resources to

          22        monitor whether or not policies and procedures in

          23        place, and I think what they do rely on is our

          24        customer complaints as an indication as to whether

          25        or not policies and procedures are effective or

                                                                        225

           1        being implemented correctly.  And I think that's

           2        what we face here are, you know, a large amount of

           3        customer complaints, both that, you know, attended

           4        and spoke here and also throughout the service --

           5        the customer hearings throughout the service area.

           6             And I think that -- I think, given additional

           7        time, the programs in place to address customer

           8        service will work.  I hope they do.  Again, I just

           9        don't see that those improvements have been made at

          10        this point to indicate that customer service is

          11        being addressed adequately.

          12             That's all the comments I have.

          13             MR. CURTIN:  Commissioner Graham, if I could

          14        respond briefly to the leak issue before the dinner

          15        break or the snack break, I just want to respond

          16        quickly in 60 seconds or so.

          17             Yes, if you read Aqua's answers to

          18        interrogatories from OPC, they do have a leak

          19        policy.  They actually specifically said they have

          20        no proactive leak policy.  It's a reactive leak

          21        policy, similar to their billing issues.  They had

          22        issues and procedures on billing errors but nothing

          23        proactive.

          24             Arredondo Farms and YES Communities has

          25        specifically requested on numerous times, give us
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           1        your ten top billers, water users, because they

           2        most likely have leaks and we will try to fix their

           3        leaks.  They refused that.  We've asked them,

           4        please tell us who is not on wastewater, who's not

           5        on water, because we will go talk to them and find

           6        out why they're not on there, because they have to

           7        be.  They refused that.

           8             We actually -- I mean, excuse me -- Arredondo

           9        Farms has instituted a gold key service where we

          10        will actually go and we look at each meter, we

          11        write it down.  We come back a month later or a

          12        couple of weeks later, we write it down again so we

          13        can discover the high users, so then we could do

          14        what Aqua should be doing to clear this up.

          15             So that only adds to their bad debt expense,

          16        both for the billing, which is actually a more

          17        serious issue than the leaks, the billing issues,

          18        which we cannot, Arredondo Farms and YES

          19        Communities cannot do anything about, because we

          20        don't know who's not being billed for this, who's

          21        not being billed for that, whose meter -- the

          22        meters are working but the electronic signal device

          23        is not.  We don't know that.  Only Aqua knows that.

          24        So that adds to their bad debt expense, which

          25        they're trying to get reimbursed here.
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           1             Simply, I think Commissioner Edgar identified

           2        several facilities.  I don't know if all 87 of the

           3        facilities that Aqua has has experienced these

           4        problems.  I know Arredondo is and I know from what

           5        I've heard here today from all these other

           6        ratepayers, the other, Jasmine, Zephyr Shores,

           7        those also are experiencing those issues.

           8             So we know at least six systems which are

           9        experiencing those issues and which respectively

          10        some sort of monitoring program or some sort of

          11        carve out or something should be done, for at least

          12        those systems where that have been identified as a

          13        systematic problem.

          14             Thank you.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May?

          16             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I just want to

          17        clarify.  Mr. Curtin has mentioned that we refused

          18        to give him the names of customers.  I just want to

          19        explain exactly what the utility has done.

          20             I've practiced before this body for about 30

          21        years and I've been chastised on seven different

          22        occasions for releasing customers' name and

          23        address.  And in addition, because of identity

          24        theft, company utilities have been sued for that.

          25             We are more than willing and have -- were
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           1        prepared to produce the names of the customers to

           2        Mr. Curtin, but we've asked that the names and the

           3        addresses, the proprietary customer-specific

           4        information be kept confidential.  We're not

           5        withholding that information.  I want the record to

           6        be very clear on that.

           7             No. 2, with respect to proactive activities or

           8        proactive policies with respect to billing issues,

           9        again, billing is a number one priority.  Customer

          10        service and billing are huge priorities for the

          11        company.

          12             Just to give you a couple of examples of

          13        proactive policies in place to address billing

          14        issues before the bill is actually sent, the

          15        company has a billing exception team, which on a

          16        daily basis reviews bills before they go out for

          17        high bills, for zero consumption bills and other

          18        billing anomalies.  The purpose of this review is

          19        to catch problems before the bills go out.

          20             There's also a zero read initiative, which was

          21        rolled out in 2010.  This initiative was designed

          22        to investigate why a meter may read no consumption

          23        and therefore require a longer bill period, which

          24        would require back billing, which is permissible,

          25        but it's something the utility doesn't want to do.
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           1        Again, that's an initiative that we've initiated

           2        around the country, and it's specifically important

           3        in Florida, because with the seasonality of the

           4        customers in Florida, some meters may read no

           5        consumption and not be defective.  In other areas

           6        where you don't have seasonal customers, in other

           7        states where you don't have this number of seasonal

           8        customers, a zero read probably means you've got a

           9        meter problem.  But in Florida it requires a little

          10        more digging, but the company is looking at that.

          11             And then the third thing is the field service

          12        technicians are extensively trained to ensure that

          13        new meters are properly synchronized with the

          14        electronic read device.  And so the company is

          15        doing things proactively, and I wanted to set the

          16        record straight.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Guys, we're not going to go

          18        back and forth.

          19             Any more questions from the board on Issue No.

          20        1?  Do I hear a motion from somebody on Issue No.

          21        1?

          22             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I'd like to make a

          23        comment if I can.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          25             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Before -- do you want
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           1        to -- okay.  I think that it's apparent there's a

           2        disconnect between the utility company and the

           3        customers.  It's clear from today and from the

           4        record that we've seen.  I have concern about the

           5        magnitude of customer complaints and, you know,

           6        I -- like Commissioner Balbis had an opportunity to

           7        listen to those audios, and we've heard, you know,

           8        same complaints here as well as on those audios

           9        about quality of water and the dissatisfaction with

          10        the overall service.

          11             In good conscience I find it hard to say that

          12        there's satisfactory service, and as Commissioner

          13        Edgar earlier alluded to, with the marginal service

          14        level, I think at best it appears to be marginal

          15        for the systems, and I don't know if it's limited

          16        to the seven or if it's limited to the additional

          17        ones that were discussed here today.  But it does

          18        appear that there's a systematic issue concerning

          19        quality of service.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  One of the biggest problems

          21        you run into here, and as everybody keeps on

          22        saying, it's a secondary standard.  This is where

          23        it comes to the gray area, is where does the DEP

          24        shop stop and where does our job start?  I mean,

          25        they actually have standards, and these guys are
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           1        meeting for the most part DEP standards.  And so we

           2        can arbitrarily say that the water is not of good

           3        quality, but what is that?  You know, until we

           4        develop our own standards or maybe we work through

           5        the Legislature or through DEP where they create a

           6        different standard, but right now the standard is

           7        the DEP standard, and they are hitting the DEP

           8        standard.

           9             If we have our own color standard, probity

          10        standard, you know, PPM standard, hardness

          11        standard, whatever standard you want, we can go

          12        down that path.  I mean, I wouldn't necessarily

          13        suggest it.  I think that's something that's

          14        probably best left over in the DEP's hand,

          15        somewhere where they can monitor it and stay on top

          16        of it.  But as it is right now, you're talking

          17        about it's more of an arbitrary standard, and I

          18        think you start -- you start getting into a gray

          19        area.

          20             I mean, I'm fine, you know, if you -- if we

          21        want to go down that path, but I --

          22             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  All right.  I don't think

          23        that's what I'm suggesting.  I'm not suggesting

          24        that we go down that path certainly, nor am I

          25        suggesting that quality of service is limited to
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           1        just the product, the quality of the product.  I

           2        think, taking into consideration all of the

           3        factors, the three variables under quality of

           4        product, operating conditions, attempt for the

           5        utility to address customer satisfaction, taking in

           6        the totality, I -- that's where I have come up with

           7        this deduction of marginality.

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I guess what I'm

           9        looking for now, and I'll move on to the other two

          10        lights that are on, but we need to move forward,

          11        and if we're not in line where staff should be,

          12        where off of staff recommendation should we be, or

          13        should we start tweaking this so we can move

          14        forward and going from Issue 1 to Issue 2.

          15             Commissioner Brisé?

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17        I guess I'll couch my comments this way and sort of

          18        see where we can go.  I too have an appreciation

          19        for the fact that there is a true potential

          20        disconnect between customers and the company.  And

          21        I think that disconnect may be a result of a

          22        history, and I think some of it may also be a

          23        result of current events.  I think there's a

          24        combination there.  As I listen today, there may be

          25        a combination of those things.
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           1             But I'm also concerned about what that does to

           2        the customer if we were to consider granting

           3        something saying that service is satisfactory and

           4        which would lead into a potential rate increase.

           5        But at the same time, if we look at going down the

           6        path of marginal, what then does that trigger?  And

           7        that's the big question that I have.  Because if we

           8        go down the path of marginal, then we're in essence

           9        saying, these are some things that you have to

          10        correct, and the only way you can correct those

          11        things is by getting these resources.  Where are

          12        you going to get the resources from?

          13             The same individuals who have that disconnect

          14        who at this point probably don't have the trust in

          15        the company or the confidence that the company is

          16        going to do what they expect to be done with the

          17        additional rates that -- with the additional funds

          18        that they are being charged.

          19             So that's where I am, and I don't know if the

          20        marginal route is -- is the best approach, but, you

          21        know, I'm not sure what is the correct route.  So

          22        that's where I'm at.

          23             So I don't know if anybody else has something

          24        they can help me get to a better place.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I've got a question for
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           1        staff and then I'll go to Commissioner Balbis.  I

           2        apologize.

           3             Earlier there was talk, and I can't remember

           4        if it was Public Counsel or who was speaking about

           5        it, but there was a program set up where they were

           6        actually monitoring the calls that came in.  And it

           7        got to the point where the determination was made

           8        that they were doing a sufficient job as far as how

           9        they're interacting with the customer and how

          10        they're responding to the customer.  Is -- tell me,

          11        did I hear that correctly, is that all factual, and

          12        what happened to that program?

          13             MS. DANIEL:  Commissioner, that was in the

          14        first phase of the monitoring.  This most recent

          15        was what we consider phase 2.  And in the first

          16        phase of the monitoring, the company was required

          17        to give us audiotapes of their customer service

          18        representatives' conversations with customers.  And

          19        our staff listened to hours upon hours of those

          20        tapes and came to the conclusion that the customer

          21        service representatives -- the question was, were

          22        they being rude to the customers or were they

          23        handling the customer calls in a professional

          24        manner.  And the staff recommendation was that

          25        with -- with perhaps one exception, that the
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           1        customer service representative was handling the

           2        call in a professional manner.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, as I continue on down

           4        this path and I guess I find myself walking down

           5        this path, maybe there's other monitoring things

           6        that will make some of you more comfortable going

           7        down that path.  And one of the things that

           8        Commissioner Brown set up earlier, where she was

           9        talking about if the water is turned off, how long

          10        before it gets turned on, maybe that's got to be a

          11        standard that you want to set moving forward.

          12        Maybe there's some other standards out there that

          13        you heard people complain about that we need to set

          14        moving forward.

          15             Commissioner Balbis?

          16             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          17        And two comments and then I'll offer a suggestion.

          18             One, I agree with your earlier statement and

          19        the water quality issues.  And I think, as I stated

          20        earlier, and I recognize, and again, looking at the

          21        treatment methods that they have, that I would

          22        expect hardness, I would expect color and hydrogen

          23        sulfides, so -- and my concerns are more on the

          24        customer service disconnect that exists, so I just

          25        want to be clear for that.  And I certainly don't
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           1        think us establishing our own goals or criteria for

           2        secondary water quality is necessary.

           3             But I guess a question to staff and maybe a

           4        suggestion so as not to have a costly monitoring

           5        program for the utilities which, again, will just

           6        be borne by the ratepayers.  We have customer

           7        service folks that, you know, log complaints,

           8        et cetera, which -- I guess my question would be

           9        for staff.  What do you recommend or what do you

          10        track now that perhaps you can report to the

          11        Commission on a -- on a -- you know, whether it's

          12        monthly or quarterly or whatever it may be so we

          13        can keep an eye on how, whether it's something just

          14        simple as number of complaints, or I guess tell the

          15        staff what you monitor now, what do you generate

          16        now so that we can look at it and not have an undue

          17        rate burden from an expensive monitoring program

          18        where there might be a simpler way to do it.

          19             MS. DANIEL:  The Commission's consumer

          20        activity tracking system, CATS, as we refer to it,

          21        is a system by which when a customer calls the

          22        Public Service Commission and wishes to register a

          23        complaint, that complaint is logged in, the company

          24        is notified, given an opportunity to respond, and

          25        that's the process that we use now.
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           1             As far as I know, we track numbers of

           2        complaints.  There are -- there's information

           3        available.  I'm not sure if a report is generated

           4        periodically, but it is easy to generate reports,

           5        because we did that in the phase 2 monitoring of

           6        this.  We -- we produced monthly reports from that

           7        CATS system to show the number of complaints that

           8        came in, how long the complaints had been open and

           9        so forth.

          10             As far as the nature of those complaints, that

          11        really is just dealt with on a

          12        complaint-by-complaint basis as far as I know,

          13        working with the company and the customer to ensure

          14        that the complaints are resolved.  But whether

          15        there is any -- how many billing complaints or, you

          16        know, rudeness of the utility or improper

          17        disconnects or so forth, that information is

          18        available.  I do not believe it's necessarily

          19        compiled on a periodic basis, but it certainly

          20        could be done.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Please.

          22             MS. DANIEL:  Was that --

          23             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  No, I appreciate the

          24        summary of what we look at and what we track,

          25        because I knew we had that tracking system in
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           1        place.

           2             MS. DANIEL:  And then you wanted

           3        recommendations.

           4             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And so maybe I would

           5        look to -- or perhaps you can answer this as well.

           6        What would staff recommend as far as having an easy

           7        system, using the system we have to track it, that

           8        would provide a pretty good indication as to

           9        whether or not this disconnect is being solved or

          10        not, so that, again, they don't go through an

          11        expensive process, yet we have some sort of

          12        semblance of whether they're improving.

          13             MS. DANIEL:  If I could back up just one step

          14        as far as disconnects are concerned.  My personal

          15        observation has been that, as you heard this

          16        morning, customers bring -- brought bills today.

          17        I'm not sure that the customers know that the

          18        Commission is a resource for filing a complaint.

          19        They know to work through their utility, but I

          20        don't know that customers truly understand that the

          21        Commission is another avenue for them to use for

          22        resolving complaints.

          23             That having been said, we're getting the tip

          24        of the iceberg, so we can do what you're

          25        suggesting.  I can identify those areas that need
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           1        to be monitored or tracked and so forth.  But the

           2        Commission is getting the tip of the iceberg.  One

           3        of the reports that Martha generated showed 5,000

           4        calls per month going to Aqua from Florida

           5        consumers.  A very small number of those, less than

           6        500, made it to a Aqua customer service

           7        representative for conversation.  Otherwise they

           8        were checking their balances or whatever through an

           9        automated system.

          10             Ten, 11 complaints per month made it to the

          11        Commission.  Maybe the same issues, maybe different

          12        issues.  I'm not sure.  But there's a little bit of

          13        a disconnect there in terms of the amount of

          14        information we're going to have to be available to

          15        do the thing that you're suggesting, and that is

          16        use a cost-effective internal mechanism that we

          17        already have.

          18             We can identify those issues, and I think the

          19        things that have, you know, been brought up here

          20        have -- how quickly the company is turning the

          21        water back on, those sort of issues, are customers

          22        getting the boil water notices.  If customers knew

          23        to let us know about those complaints, that might

          24        resolve some of it.

          25             Another issue is do customers know that they
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           1        can contact DEP for some issues like that.  DEP

           2        really is the agency that would be concerned about

           3        whether they were doing the proper boil water

           4        notices.

           5             Was that helpful?

           6             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Somewhat.  And maybe I

           7        can -- in the interest of moving forward, since we

           8        have one issue here, I'm wondering, you know, I

           9        think it might be prudent for me to move that we

          10        consider the quality of service to be marginal and

          11        then have a discussion on what happens next.  I

          12        mean, I don't know if that helps or just makes it

          13        worse.  I don't know.  I'm just trying to move

          14        forward a little bit on this.

          15             But sounds like the staff has a way to monitor

          16        it.  But back to staff again, I probably should ask

          17        this to begin with, would you be comfortable with

          18        what you have in place to be able to address the

          19        Commission as to, yes, your quality of service is

          20        improving or not with the -- with something that

          21        you could create?

          22             MS. DANIEL:  Other than the Commission's

          23        complaint tracking system or --

          24             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Or using that system.

          25             MS. DANIEL:  Using that system, if we're only
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           1        getting 10 complaints per month, and you saw the

           2        volume of customers here --

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I'm sure -- I'm -- I'm

           4        not sure, but I'm -- we can probably do this, but

           5        I'm not sure you want to do this.  You can put the

           6        PSC customer number down there and it can be on

           7        their bill and you can get those phone calls, you

           8        know, if you want to go down that path.

           9             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  But I would add, the cost

          10        associated with requiring the utility company to

          11        put those on every bill, I don't know if that would

          12        have a significant rate impact.  Anything we do --

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's not going to cost

          14        anything to put it on the bill.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Is that correct?

          16             MR. MAY:  I don't think putting a PSC number

          17        on the bill would create any undue cost on the

          18        utility.  But, you know, it's -- I want to be

          19        careful how I say this because --

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I was careful when I said it

          21        too.  And I'm just thinking out loud.

          22             MR. MAY:  It's -- this rate case has many of

          23        those same characteristics that you're going to see

          24        in any other electric case or water case.  You've

          25        got a utility that thinks it's done the right
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           1        thing, made improvements.  You've got customers who

           2        don't want to pay the increased rates and they're

           3        passionate about it and they have every right to be

           4        here and make their voices heard.  You have

           5        legislators here who are representing their

           6        constituents, as they should.

           7             But there's -- and I want the record to be

           8        clear.  There's a dynamic in this case that's very

           9        unique.  You have several groups and individuals

          10        who are not customers and they're not parties, you

          11        heard one of them this morning or earlier today,

          12        say that they're hovering at the periphery and they

          13        continue to disseminate what I believe to be

          14        misleading and inflammatory information.

          15             One of those entities has made it clear that

          16        they seek to create a regulatory fire storm to

          17        force AUF to sell its systems to governmental

          18        entities at a fire sale price.  It's been said --

          19        we have the tape this morning -- earlier today.  We

          20        have the comment made at the Sebring hearing, New

          21        Port Richey hearing.

          22             Respectfully, I don't believe that tactic

          23        comports with law, and I want the record to reflect

          24        that these types of tactics have given rise to the

          25        United States Supreme Court decision in the City of
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           1        Lafayette v. Louisiana Power & Light.  It's 435

           2        U.S. 389 on page 1123.  I'm not going to say any

           3        more about that, but that case made it clear that

           4        these types of tactics can expose a local

           5        government to antitrust liability.

           6             Now, that said, there's been questions as to

           7        whether we're willing to sit down with the

           8        governments.  Absolutely.  Absolutely.  But Aqua is

           9        not like an equity firm or some entities that may

          10        pick up a utility and want to flip it, make a few

          11        bucks and get out.  Aqua has been in the utility

          12        business for 125 years --

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May?

          14             MR. MAY:  Yeah?

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we're going down the

          16        wrong path.  Let's stick with the quality side of

          17        it.  I think Mr. Willis is over there and he's got

          18        all the solutions we need right now to move

          19        forward.

          20             MR. MAY:  I guess just the point I wanted to

          21        make is, if you go to just for sheer number of

          22        complaints and make that as a criteria for

          23        obtaining a rate case, there will never be a

          24        utility in the state of Florida get a rate

          25        increase, because the message is pretty clear, you
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           1        look on the blogs.  I see them every night.

           2        Complain, complain, complain.  And I just wanted to

           3        make that point and also to cite the case.  Thank

           4        you.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

           6             Mr. Willis?

           7             MR. WILLIS:  Thank you, Chairman.  Getting

           8        back to Commissioner Balbis's question on a way to

           9        continue a review of this company to assure they're

          10        on the right track that doesn't cost much, staff

          11        has listed on page 155 and 156 of the

          12        recommendation the seven -- I guess it's seven to

          13        eight metrics that the company already produces

          14        internally that were agreed to by OPC and the

          15        company in phase 2 monitoring.  My understanding,

          16        those metrics are internal with the company and

          17        they produce those on a monthly basis.  That's

          18        something they can still supply that doesn't cost

          19        them anything else.  That's a reasonable way for us

          20        to continue looking at the company to assure that

          21        they're headed in the right path.

          22             Ms. Daniel was right when she was talking

          23        about the fact that we only see at the Commission

          24        level the complaints that can't get resolved

          25        somehow with the company.  But if you're really
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           1        interested in how many complaints are being filed,

           2        that's more where you're going to look at that,

           3        because those were broken down by the highest

           4        number of complaints, whether they all went

           5        through -- how many went through the automated

           6        voice mail system just for looking at what your

           7        bill balance was, or something else.

           8             And the ones that really had to have a

           9        customer service representative look at those,

          10        they're broken down by the type of complaint.

          11        That's something produced by the company that

          12        doesn't cost anything.  That's something you can

          13        continue.  You can continue saying we want to

          14        assure you're still going down the right path.  We

          15        want to make sure your metrics don't get out of

          16        hand.  We want to see that you're going to continue

          17        to improve.

          18             I think a lot of those metrics go to that.

          19        There's a couple of metrics they were close to

          20        making but didn't make.  That's another way to look

          21        at those metrics to make sure they are trying to

          22        make those metrics.

          23             And we can also produce what we've been

          24        producing.  Those are internal reports.  We can

          25        produce those easily.  And they can be broken down.
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           1        When the calls come in to the call center, they are

           2        earmarked as a billing complaint issue, a quality

           3        of service issue.  We can break those out, with my

           4        understanding, as to what type of complaint they

           5        are.  Even if we only get 11 a month, we can

           6        certainly do that with the Aqua system.

           7             So I just want to let you all know that's

           8        another avenue for you to look at, if you're

           9        looking at something that's not going to cost a lot

          10        of money.  That shouldn't cost any money, because

          11        it's already produced.

          12             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  You were right that he

          13        did have all the answers.  I do like that

          14        recommendation.  Again, if the rest of the

          15        Commission would like to continue for that -- for

          16        the utility to provide that information to staff I

          17        think would be a good indicator as to how they're

          18        doing to improve the disconnect.  Whether or not

          19        they agree there's a disconnect, it should be shown

          20        in that information at the very least, and that's

          21        really where I wanted to go, just to continue to

          22        watch this and make sure that they stay on that

          23        right path.

          24             I think we've seen improvement in the phase 2

          25        monitoring report.  You know, we've seen the curve
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           1        going up, and let's just, you know, take the time

           2        to see where they end up.  So that's really the

           3        goal that I have for this item.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar?

           5             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Just to

           6        follow along that same line, I would just point out

           7        that if the information on page 156 is something

           8        that we think is useful or would be useful to

           9        continue, that staff and others have found to be

          10        useful information to try to follow up on these

          11        things, point out that our staff would of course

          12        have -- and especially if we direct so -- the

          13        ability to do data requests to follow up on

          14        specific items or categories of items from that

          15        information that would be, so they can take it that

          16        next step further, which would not necessarily be

          17        additional cost.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          19             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I have a question for

          20        Mr. Jaeger about whether, if this Commission does

          21        find that the quality of service is marginal, do we

          22        have to address what remedies or recommendations in

          23        this proceeding, or can we spin it off at a later

          24        proceeding?  Does it have to be addressed at this

          25        juncture?
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           1             MR. JAEGER:  I'm sorry.  I'm not understanding

           2        your question.  If we find it's marginal --

           3             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And we want to continue a

           4        monitoring plan or if we want to explore other --

           5        other directives, if -- can we -- do we have to do

           6        it at this juncture?

           7             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  I think what you're

           8        trying -- I think basically when there is -- when

           9        you're doing quality of service, there's three

          10        things that we -- that the Commission can do.  If

          11        it's unsatis -- or even if it's not satisfactory or

          12        marginal, you can reduce the rate of return on

          13        equity.  And what I have to do is -- I'm sorry.  I

          14        don't think I'm answering your question.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  This is good.  But go

          16        ahead.

          17             MR. JAEGER:  But we always start with Hope

          18        Natural Gas and Bluefield, and that is you must

          19        give the utility an opportunity to earn a fair rate

          20        of return on its investment.  We're a substitute

          21        for a monopoly and we can't have this

          22        unconstitutional taking.

          23             Then the next case I go to is the Wilson case

          24        v. Bevis is a '92 case, and says if you can -- as

          25        long as you keep them in that -- you know, we
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           1        always have 100 basis -- we find a midpoint and we

           2        keep 100 basis points, and you can do -- inside

           3        there you can do whatever you want just about in

           4        the rate of return as long as you keep them in that

           5        range.  We've given them bonuses.  That was the

           6        Gulf versus Bevis case, and then we penalize them.

           7             And then in the last case, Chuluota, we didn't

           8        give any rate increase, and that is based on two

           9        other cases, one of them being North Florida Water

          10        Company, it's a '74 case, where they denied a rate

          11        increase for inefficiency.  And then in a '68 case

          12        they also denied a rate increase.

          13             But those are the only two cases and those are

          14        very egregious.  There was both inefficiency and

          15        insufficiency, and so -- and they did not -- one

          16        they didn't give the rate increase until they made

          17        the improvements and the other one they just didn't

          18        give a rate increase.

          19             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And those were -- the

          20        quality of service was deemed to be unsatisfactory,

          21        particularly in the Chuluota, but the other two

          22        cases, what were they deemed to be?

          23             MR. JAEGER:  I think they were deemed to be

          24        unsatisfactory on those also.  Well, one's a -- let

          25        me look at the '74 case.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And the dialogue that I'm

           2        having with Mr. Jaeger here, is that I just want to

           3        see the options that we have, what type of action

           4        we have to take right now with regard to Issue 1,

           5        and that's kind of the path that I was leading him

           6        on.

           7             MR. JAEGER:  As I say, the '68 case was a

           8        telephone case and so that's -- you know, that's

           9        different, but it's still got the same idea,

          10        inefficiency of service and they weren't going to

          11        allow the improvements.  And then the '74 case is

          12        North Florida Water Company versus Bevis, and this

          13        was -- they had infiltration and inflow,

          14        unaccounted for water, they had bad billing, meter

          15        problems.  And it was like, we can't help it that

          16        you're incompetent.  We're not going to give you a

          17        rate increase.  But basically this case says that

          18        when you find that it's insufficient or inefficient

          19        or, you know, that it's just unsatisfactory, then

          20        these cases have allowed you to deny the increase

          21        completely.  But if you only find it marginal, then

          22        I'd be worried that -- if we go outside that rate

          23        of return.

          24             The one other thing we do, we sometimes have

          25        held the president accountable and docked the
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           1        president some of his salary because he should be

           2        running this and making sure that this doesn't

           3        happen.

           4             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  But these are all

           5        unsatisfactory.  You're going down a different path

           6        than what we're talking about.

           7             MR. JAEGER:  Well, you can do the rate of

           8        return within range for marginal.  And after that,

           9        I'm not sure about the present -- Marshall, you

          10        had -- or Jennifer?

          11             MS. CRAWFORD:  Jennifer Crawford for legal

          12        staff.  Mr. Jaeger is absolutely correct.

          13        Depending on what the Commission finds, there are

          14        certain consequences that the Commission can

          15        implement with regards to quality of service or

          16        unsatisfactory marginal quality of service.

          17             I want to ask -- am I understanding your

          18        question is in part the consequences but also what

          19        additional steps should the Commission take?  My

          20        idea being should the Commission provide some

          21        guidance to the utility for what direction it would

          22        like to see it go, what quantification the company

          23        should strive for?  In other words, what can it do

          24        to improve the quality of service to a level that

          25        this Commission would deem satisfactory?
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           1             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  You're reading my brain.

           2             MS. CRAWFORD:  Okay.  That we will have to

           3        defer to staff.  So I thank you for the

           4        clarification.

           5             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

           6             MR. JAEGER:  We've done phase 1 and we've done

           7        phase 2, and I think we can always do a phase 3,

           8        and I don't think it has to be done today.  Or we

           9        could tell them to go back and maybe again meet

          10        with OPC and staff and figure out a phase 3 for

          11        what -- how we want to do these reports or the CATS

          12        or what else we might do, and make it so it's not

          13        costly.  Like if the utility comes in in another

          14        year and we've gone through another -- made them go

          15        through some costly steps if we don't want to

          16        increase rate case -- or the expense that the

          17        customers have to pay.

          18             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Was that a motion?

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  No.  I --

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Did somebody move that we do

          22        phase 3?

          23             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  I'd like to move that we

          24        find Aqua's quality of service marginal and

          25        recommend they continue with the monitoring plan
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           1        as, you know -- I like the seven metrics that were

           2        again already produced by the utility and at low

           3        cost, and if staff agrees that's the way to gauge

           4        customer service.  So I would move that they

           5        continue to provide that information, and staff at

           6        a regular basis provide that information to us so

           7        we can watch this.  Because, again, I think the

           8        utility is on the right path of improvement.  They

           9        just need more time to implement these programs.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What other -- what other

          11        negative effects does it have on the utility by

          12        rating it as marginal?  Does that just allow for us

          13        to do further monitoring or --

          14             MR. WILLIS:  You can take many steps.  You can

          15        say that the utility is marginal and you expect

          16        improvement and do nothing else at that point until

          17        the next case, or you can take it even further.

          18        You do have the ability to reduce the company's

          19        rate of return by at least to the low end of the

          20        range of reasonableness, which is normally 100

          21        basis points from the midpoint.  You can reduce it

          22        anywhere within there, within that range.  That's

          23        another avenue you can take.  The Commission has

          24        gone further, but that's normally when you deem it

          25        to be unsatisfactory.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  So if we declare

           2        it to be marginal, we're going to start this phase

           3        3 monitoring, can we send the staff back with the

           4        company and figure out specifics, or do we need to

           5        come up with the specifics now and what we're going

           6        to be monitoring and what the effects -- what's

           7        going to be -- how is that going to affect their

           8        bottom line sort of thing, so to speak.

           9             MR. WILLIS:  Certainly.  You can certainly do

          10        that.  Last time, that's exactly what happened.  As

          11        a result of the last rate case, which actually came

          12        out of a hearing process, the Commission ordered

          13        staff and the parties to get together and come up

          14        with that type of monitoring plan and bring it back

          15        to the Commission.  That's how the monitoring plan

          16        came to be.  We brought that back within that same

          17        docket and the Commission agreed to that monitoring

          18        plan.

          19             You could do that as part of this PAA process

          20        but we wouldn't be able to implement that type of

          21        meeting until the PAA was not protested.  If the

          22        PAA became final, we would at that point have those

          23        meetings and bring back something separately to the

          24        Commission on what that monitoring plan would be.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And the fact staff has been
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           1        here and they heard what the customers had to say

           2        and they also heard what the utilities had to say.

           3             And was that what your motion was,

           4        Commissioner Balbis?

           5             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

           6        That's exactly what my motion was.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That was moved and seconded.

           8             Any further discussion?

           9             We've got Commissioner Brisé.

          10             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          11        The only thing I want to make sure that, unlike

          12        last time, that I'm sure that at some point we're

          13        going to come back to this very issue.  And I want

          14        to make sure that everyone that is here today, if

          15        we agree that these are seven things that we're

          16        going to look at, that when we come back, if we

          17        come back, these are the seven things that we all

          18        agree that we're going to look at.  We establish a

          19        range of what is reasonable and what is not

          20        reasonable, and we all agree on those things so

          21        that when we come back there isn't a conversation

          22        saying that there are eight or nine or ten other

          23        things that we should have considered but we're

          24        not -- we have not considered, and that we want to

          25        include that as part of the conversation.  I want
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           1        to make sure that that is tightened up, and so if

           2        this would provide a potential opportunity for a

           3        discussion on that, so that we can lay those things

           4        out.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, now, my understanding

           6        is that, assuming the PAA goes forward, staff would

           7        have to sit down with the utilities, come up with

           8        the details, bring that back to us, and at that

           9        point we accept it.  Is that --

          10             MR. WILLIS:  Chairman, I would propose that

          11        staff sits down with the utility and the

          12        intervenors at this point to come up with a -- with

          13        an agreement between all intervenors and the

          14        utility company and staff as to what any type of

          15        monitoring plan ought to be, and bring that back to

          16        you.

          17             The other avenue I think you need to look at

          18        too, is since you're looking at -- at making

          19        quality of service marginal, is that as far as

          20        you're going to take it, or are you going to

          21        consider a basis point reduction or something like

          22        that?  I didn't know if that was part of your

          23        consideration at this point.  Or is that something

          24        you're going to wait to find out, depending on the

          25        monitoring plan, whether there should be a future
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           1        type of adjustment?

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think as we go through

           3        these issues we may decide we want to go back to

           4        Issue No. 1.  But I think -- well, let's hear the

           5        rest of the Commissioners.

           6             Commissioner Edgar.

           7             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

           8             Question, Commissioner Balbis, just so I

           9        understand the motion.  A finding of marginal, are

          10        you intending that to be for all 80 plus systems?

          11        And then -- yes or no.  And then also for a phase 3

          12        monitoring plan, would that also be for all 80 plus

          13        systems?

          14             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  The first part of your

          15        question, Commissioner Edgar, I think at this time,

          16        with the information that's been provided to us

          17        with, again, a narrow look at, you know, seven

          18        systems for the secondary water quality, for

          19        example, that's all the information we have, and

          20        then you compound that with the complaints that

          21        were heard, both entered into the record, either in

          22        the customer hearings or here today, I don't have

          23        enough information to identify okay, these 30 out

          24        of the 80 plus, or these -- you know, I think

          25        systemwide, since Aqua has one billing system, has
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           1        one, you know, umbrella implementing all the rates

           2        and all the customer service, I think it's

           3        appropriate to deem it marginal, again on the

           4        customer service issues, for the entire system.

           5             And I forgot the second part of your question.

           6        I'm sorry.

           7             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  That's okay.

           8             May I?

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          10             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Oh, I just remembered.

          11        I'm sorry.  The second part was whether or not the

          12        monitoring program would be for all.  I think I

          13        would look to staff to develop that with the

          14        intervenors or OPC and the utility.  Again,

          15        something that gives a good representation of the

          16        customer service improvement.  So whether that's

          17        seven systems, 80 systems, I'd like for staff and

          18        the parties to work that out.  That is clearer.

          19             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes, thank you.  That

          20        helps a great deal.  And one of the things I'm

          21        wrestling with is, just as you've said, it's hard

          22        from what we've heard to know if that customer

          23        dissatisfaction, which raises concerns about

          24        quality of service in our minds, does apply to all

          25        80 systems or not.  Then it's kind of like it's
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           1        hard to know if we were -- if there was an interest

           2        or if the information pointed toward pulling some

           3        systems out as marginal, with the understanding

           4        that that would then focus resources perhaps more.

           5             It's likewise difficult for me to say not a

           6        single system is satisfactory, and that's kind of

           7        what I'm wrestling with.  And I don't know if -- if

           8        I may ask -- if it's okay to ask the staff, because

           9        they of course have looked at all of that

          10        monitoring information much more closely.

          11             MR. WILLIS:  Thank you, Commissioner.  I would

          12        point out that the metrics that I talked about are

          13        of Aqua regulated systems in Florida.  They're --

          14        I'm not sure that they're all broken out where you

          15        can exactly derive every single system where

          16        these -- in other words, what I'm trying to say is

          17        we don't get all these metrics by system.  We can

          18        probably get information through data requests,

          19        like Commissioner Edgar asks, where these things

          20        are all specifically coming from, if we see a big

          21        rise in something.  But the metrics that come in

          22        are regulated systems in Florida as a total.

          23             So, getting down to Commissioner Edgar's

          24        point, it's going to be difficult if you just pull

          25        seven or eight systems out and say those are the
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           1        ones that we wanted to monitor.  It's going to

           2        cause us to go a little bit further than what I was

           3        talking about, and have some derivations of this

           4        metrics that are not currently doing now.

           5             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you.  I guess just

           6        to clarify that, it would be for the entire system.

           7        It sounds like the metrics match that as well.  And

           8        so hopefully that clarifies it.

           9             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  That does help.  Thank

          10        you.

          11             And I'm -- on a similar point, I know that

          12        there are -- to follow up to one of the points that

          13        Mr. Willis made about do we want to include

          14        anything else in for Issue 1, two points.  I would

          15        think that if we're going to go by groupings and

          16        work our way through the rest of it, that we may

          17        have a larger discussion on Issue 19, which does --

          18        is ROE, and that might address one point that

          19        Mr. Willis raised at that time.

          20             And then the other, I know in the briefing

          21        that I had with staff, one thing that was brought

          22        to -- or was highlighted for me was, you know,

          23        we've got kind of a closeout of the previous

          24        docket, and then the one that's here, and so

          25        procedurally I would like to ask staff, would it be
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           1        useful for us to go out and close out -- go ahead

           2        and close out phase 1 monitoring, phase 2

           3        monitoring, in order to address some of those

           4        remaining or lingering issues, or if we're being

           5        duplicative enough to the point where that would

           6        not be necessary.

           7             MR. WILLIS:  Commissioner, I -- to your point,

           8        I think it's very appropriate to close out the old

           9        docket.  Everything that you were talking about

          10        doing can be easily handled within this docket, and

          11        there's no need to keep that old docket open.  It

          12        doesn't really serve a purpose at this point.

          13             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I guess I would just make

          14        that suggestion as we move forward on Issue 1.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So is that an amendment to

          16        the Balbis amendment?

          17             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  If Commissioner Balbis

          18        would consider a friendly amendment, that we go

          19        ahead and close out the earlier docket as part of

          20        our finding of marginal.

          21             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Then, yes, I do amend my

          22        motion to again consider all of the systems

          23        marginal as far as quality of service, and direct

          24        staff to meet with the utilities and the parties to

          25        develop a monitoring plan following the metrics
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           1        that are included in the phase 2 monitoring plan

           2        and present that to the Commission.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And also take into account

           4        the testimony that we heard, so we know which --

           5        where some of the focus needs to be.

           6             That's been moved and seconded.  Any further

           7        discussion?  Staff, is that clear, before I call

           8        for a vote?

           9             MR. WILLIS:  I believe it's perfectly clear.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I like that, Mr. Willis.

          11             All in favor say aye.

          12             (Unanimous.)

          13             Those opposed?

          14             By your action you have approved Issue No. 1

          15        on Item No. 17 as moved and amended.  We are going

          16        to Issue No. 2.  Thank you very much, Commissioner

          17        Balbis and Edgar and Brown and Brisé.

          18             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioner, I'm Bart Fletcher

          19        with Commission staff.  Issue 2 is staff's

          20        recommendation to approve audit adjustments to

          21        which the utility agrees should be made.

          22        Specifically there were two audits performed by

          23        staff.  One was to examine the allocated affiliate

          24        transactions of the utility sister companies.  The

          25        other audit was to examine the books and records of
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           1        AUF itself.

           2             From these audits there were eight findings,

           3        again, that the utility agreed should be made.  Two

           4        of them actually increased the rate base for water,

           5        wastewater Band 2.  The other findings reduced O&M

           6        expense collectively by over a quarter million

           7        dollars in order to remove acquisition cost,

           8        sponsorship cost, out of period cost, and

           9        unsupported cost, as well as to amortize

          10        nonrecurring expenses.

          11             Staff is prepared to answer any questions you

          12        may have.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors.

          14             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of the agenda,

          15        Office of Public Counsel supports staff's

          16        recommended adjustments.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Utility?

          18             MR. MAY:  We certainly agree with the staff

          19        adjustments.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I like what I'm hearing.

          21             Commissioner Edgar.

          22             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I would move the staff

          23        recommendation on Issue 2.

          24             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and
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           1        seconded.  Any further discussion on Issue No. 2?

           2        Seeing none, all in favor say aye.

           3             (Unanimous.)

           4             Those opposed?

           5             By your action you have approved Issue No. 2.

           6             Issue No. 3.

           7             MR. DEASON:  Commissioners, I'm Jared Deason

           8        with Commission staff.  Issue 3 concerns staff

           9        recommendation regarding pro forma plant.  Staff

          10        recommends that pro forma plant be decreased by

          11        $410,693 for water and $658,663 for wastewater for

          12        undocumented support, and also make corresponding

          13        adjustments to accumulated depreciation,

          14        depreciation expense, and property taxes.  And

          15        staff is available for any questions.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?  Hold on just a

          17        second.  Did you have a question now or --

          18             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yeah.  I just wanted to

          19        point out that this was one of the items that we

          20        had a modification on the errata.

          21             MR. FLETCHER:  Correct.  If I may add, on the

          22        errata sheet, it's on page 1, this, the pro rata,

          23        it affects page 37 of IssueIssue 3, and you can see

          24        it on the first page of the errata sheet, and it

          25        actually goes all the way to correcting staff
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           1        analysis paragraphs for the trucks, accumulated

           2        depreciation, depreciation expense on page 42.  On

           3        page 2 of the errata sheets it update -- you can

           4        see the changes to Table 3-6 and 3-7.  On page 3 of

           5        the errata sheet you can see the -- on the write-up

           6        of the pro forma property taxes on page 43 through

           7        44, and as well as Table 3-8, and then the

           8        conclusionary paragraph for Issue 3 on page 44 is

           9        on page 3 of the errata sheet, and it -- lastly, on

          10        page 4 at the top, on page 45 of Issue 3, Table

          11        3-9, you can see the changes highlighted in yellow.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you very much.

          13             Public Counsel?

          14             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of the agenda,

          15        staff [sic] would support staff's recommended

          16        adjustments.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          18             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, as I

          19        indicated in my opening, this is the one issue that

          20        we had a philosophical difference.  But looking at

          21        the recommendation as a whole, we would rather not

          22        take a position, but we can certainly not oppose

          23        this if the recommendation is approved.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

          25             Commission board?  Let's go with Balbis.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I

           2        just have one or two questions, because I did

           3        notice that on some of these items that are in

           4        Table 3-3 there's a significant difference between

           5        the utility requested amount and the staff

           6        recommended amount, and that's on page 40.

           7             Just going from the top, the wastewater

           8        treatment plant upgrade, where the utility

           9        requested 240,000 and staff is recommending

          10        414,000, staff can explain why those amounts are

          11        different.

          12             MR. DEASON:  I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the

          13        specific plan adjustment?

          14             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Sure.  In Table 3-3, the

          15        second item, Arredondo Farms, WWTP upgrade, where

          16        the utility requested 240,000 and staff recommended

          17        414,000.

          18             MR. FLETCHER:  Yes.  Based on the

          19        documentation supported -- provided by the utility,

          20        they did support an increased amount that they did

          21        spend on that particular project.  The 240,000

          22        represents an estimate or budgeted amount found in

          23        the MFRs, but the project ran over that budgeted

          24        amount and the utility did spend that significant

          25        amount more money on that project.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And there are quite a

           2        few projects.  I guess from a -- my personal

           3        standpoint I like to see that, you know, dollars

           4        that are spent on -- rate dollars that are spent

           5        being invested in the infrastructure.  I think

           6        everyone agrees that these systems are older

           7        systems, and I like to see that, you know, if

           8        there's a dollar spent it's spent in improving the

           9        system and improving the service to the customers,

          10        so just to start with that.

          11             But again, there are several items, and I can

          12        go through them if you'd like, but just to, you

          13        know, the weir and walkways where the utility

          14        requested an amount and staff recommended zero.  If

          15        you can just go through what the concept was and

          16        why those items were left out.

          17             MR. DEASON:  Yes, Commissioner.  There were

          18        several items where there was a zero amount.  There

          19        were three specific projects in this where they

          20        were deferred.  In other words, the company decided

          21        not to go forward with the project, so there was a

          22        zero amount for those.  There were also several

          23        projects where there was just no documentation,

          24        there were no invoices or executed contracts to

          25        justify any amount that was spent on those

                                                                        268

           1        particular projects.

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  That's all the questions

           3        I have.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

           5             Commissioner Brown?

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  No questions.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do I hear a motion?

           8             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Move to approve staff's

           9        recommendation on Issue 3.

          10             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and seconded

          12        to approve staff recommendation on Issue 3.  Any

          13        further discussion?  All in favor say aye.

          14             (Unanimous.)

          15             Any opposed?

          16             By your action you've approved staff

          17        recommendation on Issue No. 3.

          18             Issue No. 4.

          19             MR. WALDEN:  Commissioners, I'm Tom Walden on

          20        Commission staff, and I will be presenting issues 4

          21        through 10.

          22             These issues involve unaccounted for water,

          23        infiltration and inflow, and used and useful

          24        calculations.  As an overview, we've already

          25        discussed that many of these systems are old, many
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           1        of these systems are built out, and many of these

           2        systems were found to be 100 percent used and

           3        useful in the last rate case.

           4             Issue 4 is staff's recommendation concerning

           5        excess unaccounted for water, and essentially we

           6        are agreeing with Aqua's adjustments, although with

           7        a -- through a data request we found one system

           8        where we made an adjustment, but the rest of the

           9        systems we agreed with Aqua's adjustments.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          11             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Commissioners, we had a

          12        disagreement as to how the used and useful was

          13        calculated.  I believe as part of your handouts

          14        we've passed out -- are we just addressing No. 4?

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

          16             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Because you did the

          17        introduction for all of those.  Okay.  I will limit

          18        myself to No. 4 then.  And for purposes of the

          19        agenda, we would support staff's recommendation.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Utility?

          21             MR. MAY:  We support staff's recommendation.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

          23        Commissioner Balbis?

          24             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I

          25        just want to confirm with the utilities, although
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           1        the composite unaccounted for water seems to be

           2        reasonable, but there were some systems that there

           3        were some higher amounts and that the utility is

           4        going to address those issues.  Although it's still

           5        at 1.05 percent, for example, there may be systems

           6        that have a higher unaccounted for water.

           7             MR. RENDELL:  Commissioner, in response to

           8        staff data request on those specific questions, the

           9        majority of those were in some of the -- some of

          10        the very specific systems we're doing the secondary

          11        water projects.  For instance, in the Highlands

          12        County for the Leisure Lakes, Lake Josephine, we're

          13        currently flushing to deal with the hydrogen

          14        sulfides.  We are now installing an outage system

          15        that will actually remove that, and so those

          16        flushing amounts will go down.

          17             So we did respond to the Commission staff data

          18        request concerning those high uses.

          19             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you.  That's all I

          20        had, and I move approval of Issue 4 if there are no

          21        other questions.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and seconded

          23        staff recommendation on Issue 4.  Any further

          24        discussion?  All in favor say aye.

          25             (Unanimous.)
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           1             Any opposed?

           2             By your action you've approved staff

           3        recommendation on Issue 4.

           4             Issue 5.

           5             MR. WALDEN:  Issue 5 begins on page 48 of the

           6        staff recommendation, and this issue addresses the

           7        percentages of used and useful for water treatment

           8        plants.  We're recommending adjustments for nine

           9        systems, and the calculations that we have relied

          10        upon, our basis is Commission rules, Rules

          11        25-30.4325 and 25-30.431.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          13             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  As I was stating earlier, we

          14        had passed a handout earlier to you, and we have a

          15        disagreement as to the used and useful percentages

          16        that staff has adopted for some of the systems.

          17        And we have one that's labeled Water Treatment Used

          18        and Useful, and that addresses Issue 5.  And our

          19        basic disagreement I think is also outlined on that

          20        summary sheet of the issues as to our rationale for

          21        the differences.

          22             And essentially we have a disagreement with

          23        staff's treatment of build out for those

          24        facilities, and we also have a disagreement as to

          25        who should bear the burden when a system is bought
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           1        that's oversized.  And we believe that allowing for

           2        a higher used and useful than is actually being

           3        used by the customers continues to lead to

           4        unaffordable rates, and certainly with Aqua's --

           5        from everything that you've heard today, their

           6        rates are the highest in the state, and at this

           7        point we need to do everything that we can to bring

           8        those rates down into a reasonable range.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  At the beginning of what you

          10        said, you said you had a disagreement on -- did you

          11        say build out?

          12             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Correct.  In my

          13        understanding, Mr. Reilly is the attorney that is

          14        specifically addressing it, and I think he can

          15        probably go to the specifics of our disagreement on

          16        the build-out issue and how that's applied from the

          17        rule, as opposed to how the staff has been applying

          18        it.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I just need a little bit

          20        more detail, please.

          21             MR. REILLY:  Well, the rule on used and useful

          22        allows for alternative calculations when there are

          23        six important justifications for it.  Our engineer

          24        looked at a number of these systems and found that

          25        there was a -- when there was a tremendous
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           1        materiality and there was a tremendous amount of

           2        stranded capacity, he looked closer at the --

           3        whether, in fact, it was or was not built out, and

           4        in those systems where there was a single well.

           5             So he did an analysis and determined that --

           6        that in fairness to the customers that this

           7        provision, (3), should be utilized and an analysis

           8        should be made.  First, if it was, in fact,

           9        purportedly a build out, is it truly built out or

          10        is there a plant that is 40, 50 percent used and

          11        useful under the current service territory, but, in

          12        fact, substantial territory near that service

          13        territory could, in fact, in the future use that

          14        capacity.

          15             So when the last order was issued in the last

          16        case, they said Public Counsel didn't go far

          17        enough, that they really needed to look to use this

          18        (3) to really determine whether the system that was

          19        originally built was prudently designed.  And then

          20        the question is if it was not, who should bear the

          21        cost of that imprudent design of -- of building a

          22        plant that's twice as big as needed for build out.

          23             So -- so under those circumstances, he looked

          24        at several of the systems and they -- and that's

          25        why you have such a divergence.  The engineer
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           1        determined that the alternative approach was

           2        appropriate and that all these costs, sometimes

           3        material costs, and all this risk of having over

           4        built for treatment should not all be borne on the

           5        customers.

           6             And if, in fact, this does go to hearing, it's

           7        his intention to bolster and refine and provide a

           8        different record evidence in this case if it goes

           9        to hearing than was presented in the last case that

          10        address those two particular issues.  Whether, in

          11        fact, it is or is not truly built out and whether

          12        the issue of prudency of the design of the system

          13        in the first place was even correct.  And if that

          14        mistake was made, that mistake should not be

          15        100 percent borne by the customers.

          16             And this is why you have this tremendous

          17        divergence between a system that might be 30 or

          18        40 percent used and useful versus it being deemed

          19        built out -- or excuse me -- deemed 100 percent.

          20        So it's a matter of whether the alternative

          21        calculation allowed by your rules in fairness to

          22        the customers should, in fact, be employed.

          23             That's the basis, and if this does go to

          24        hearing it would be his intention to provide that a

          25        different analysis -- additional analysis on
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           1        original design, whether it is built out and

           2        whether, in fact, it is fair to the customers to --

           3        that -- to a plant that might be 40, 50, 60 percent

           4        that's never going to be needed to serve the

           5        current customers must be somehow put in the

           6        revenue requirement.  And he had to have a way to

           7        deal with that equitable issue, and, you know, with

           8        the number of these systems you'll see some

           9        diverge.  Those will be where those issues would be

          10        addressed.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          12             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's analysis on

          13        the used and useful and would point out that the

          14        used and useful percentages for these systems were

          15        established in the last case.  Would respectfully

          16        submit that OPC is attempting to relitigate an

          17        issue and we find it ironic since they're also

          18        complaining about rate case expense.  Seems to be

          19        an unnecessary effort to relitigate an issue that

          20        the Commission determined after considering

          21        evidence in the last case.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You just had to take the

          23        opportunity to poke them in the eye, didn't you?

          24             Commission staff -- I mean, I'm sorry, board.

          25             Commissioner Edgar.
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           1             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I move the staff

           2        recommendation.

           3             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           5        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue 5.  Any

           6        further discussion?  Seeing none, all in favor say

           7        aye.

           8             (Unanimous.)

           9             Any opposed?

          10             By your action you've approved staff

          11        recommendation on Issue 5.

          12             Issue 6.

          13             MR. WALDEN:  Issue 6 can be found on page 52

          14        of the recommendation, addresses storage tanks for

          15        the water systems, and staff is recommending that

          16        the storage be found 100 percent used and useful.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          18             MR. REILLY:  There's not an issue on the

          19        storage.

          20             MR. MAY:  Agree with staff.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

          22        Commissioner Edgar?

          23             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Move staff.

          24             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Moved and seconded, move
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           1        staff recommendation on Issue No. 6.  All in favor

           2        say aye.

           3             (Unanimous.)

           4             Any opposed?

           5             By your action you approve Issue No. 6.

           6             Issue No. 7.

           7             MR. WALDEN:  Issue No. 7 begins on page 53 of

           8        the staff recommendation.  It addresses water

           9        distribution systems and the used and useful

          10        percentages for those.  Our adjustments are

          11        recommended in the recommendation paragraph for 19

          12        of the systems involved in this case, where we are

          13        suggesting those systems -- or we're recommending

          14        that those systems are less than 100 percent used

          15        and useful.  And the basis -- excuse me.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Go ahead.

          17             MR. WALDEN:  The basis for our recommendation

          18        is drawn heavily from the last rate case, where

          19        many of the systems were 100 percent used and

          20        useful, mostly due to the systems being built out.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

          22             Public Counsel?

          23             MR. REILLY:  Basically the same position as

          24        stated before.  He did an analysis in this case so

          25        the distribution would be the lot count method and
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           1        how much of the system was in fact still yet to be

           2        used.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           4             Aqua Utilities?

           5             MR. MAY:  Aqua agrees with staff

           6        recommendation.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

           8        Commissioner Edgar.

           9             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I would move staff.

          10             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          12        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue 6.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Seven.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Seven.  Any further

          15        discussion?  Seeing none, all in favor say aye.

          16             (Unanimous.)

          17             Any opposed?

          18             By your action you've approved Issue No. 7.

          19             We are now to Issue No. 8.

          20             MS. DANIEL:  Commissioners, on page 4 of the

          21        errata sheet, staff would like to make an oral

          22        modification on page 58 to remove the last sentence

          23        of the first page that says Table 9-1 shows Aqua's

          24        requested and staff's recommended use and useful

          25        percentage for the wastewater treatment plants.
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           1        There is no Table 9-1.

           2             MR. WALDEN:  Commissioners, if we could hold

           3        up on that just a minute.  That's Issue 9 and I

           4        believe we're on Issue 8.

           5             MS. DANIEL:  I apologize.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I was going to say, you lost

           7        me.

           8             MR. WALDEN:  Issue 8 begins on page 55.

           9        It's -- the topic of this issue is infiltration and

          10        inflow, and staff's recommendation is that there be

          11        a reduction in expenses due to excessive amounts of

          12        infiltration and inflow.  We have a table on page

          13        56 that details those recommendations.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          15             MR. REILLY:  We're not questioning it for

          16        purposes of this agenda.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          18             MR. MAY:  Aqua is not opposed to this

          19        recommendation.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

          21             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Move approval of staff's

          22        recommendation.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          25        seconded, approval of staff recommendation on Issue
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           1        No. 8.  Any further discussion?  All in favor say

           2        aye.

           3             (Unanimous.)

           4             Any opposed?

           5             By your action you've approved staff

           6        recommendation on Issue No. 8.

           7             That brings us to Issue No. 9, Ms. Daniel.

           8             MR. WALDEN:  Commissioners, Issue No. 9 begins

           9        on page 57.  This is staff's recommendation

          10        addressing the percentages of used and useful for

          11        wastewater plant.  And as Ms. Daniel was pointing

          12        out, on the top of page 58, the first paragraph,

          13        the last sentence refers to Table 9-1.  We don't

          14        have a Table 9-1.

          15             The staff recommendation for this issue is

          16        adjustments for seven systems to find those systems

          17        less than 100 percent used and useful.  And again,

          18        the basis for our recommendation is Commission

          19        rules for wastewater treatment plants.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Daniel, did he handle

          21        all that for you this time?

          22             MS. DANIEL:  Excellent.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let the record show that

          24        Ms. Daniel said he was excellent.

          25             Public Counsel?
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           1             MR. REILLY:  Again, our engineer did use the

           2        25-30.32 rule to do all of his used-useful

           3        analysis.  I think most of the difference comes,

           4        again, with this built-out issue and whether we

           5        have this tremendous amount of stranded capacity

           6        and whether it's appropriate to look at that from

           7        a -- from fairness to the customer, so that would

           8        be the major difference.  If given the opportunity

           9        and this does go to hearing, it would be our

          10        intention to bolster and refine that argument and

          11        provide another record that this Commission could

          12        look at.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          14             MR. MAY:  We're not opposed to staff's

          15        recommendation.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

          17        Commissioner Edgar, followed by

          18        Commissioner Balbis.

          19             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I would

          20        move staff.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          22        seconded.  Commissioner Balbis.

          23             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Just one comment.  Just

          24        to point out one of the questions I had with staff

          25        is whether there was an adjustment, less excessive
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           1        I and I, and I'm just glad to see that everything's

           2        tied together, so just a comment that I'm in

           3        support of the motion.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any further discussion?  All

           5        in favor say aye.

           6             (Unanimous.)

           7             Any opposed?

           8             By your action you've approved Issue No. 9.

           9             That puts us to Issue No. 10.

          10             MR. WALDEN:  Issue No. 10 begins on page 60 of

          11        the recommendation.  This addresses the staff

          12        recommendation for wastewater collection systems.

          13        We are recommending reductions to seven systems, as

          14        listed in the recommendation paragraph, again,

          15        based on our interpretation of -- well, actually we

          16        do not have a rule on -- on wastewater collection

          17        system.  We do have a rule on growth, but the

          18        primary reliance for this recommendation is from

          19        the last rate case, where most of the systems are

          20        100 percent used and useful, and we have made these

          21        adjustments based on the lot count density review.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          23             MR. WALDEN:  So --

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  Go ahead.

          25             MR. WALDEN:  In summary, we're recommending
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           1        reductions to seven systems.

           2             MR. REILLY:  Essentially the same.  We do the

           3        lot count, but the issue of build out also plays

           4        into this issue as well, so we would attempt to

           5        make a more refined argument in the next case.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So you only half agree with

           7        it?

           8             MR. REILLY:  We definitely disagreed with the

           9        way the built out has been utilized in creating a

          10        higher used and useful than we think is

          11        appropriate.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I thought when he mentioned

          13        lot count you were going to jump onboard and say

          14        you're with it.

          15             MR. REILLY:  If it was truly kept to, we'd be

          16        in favor of it.  The built out does cause us

          17        concern.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If nothing else you guys are

          19        consistent.  I appreciate that.

          20             Aqua Utilities?

          21             MR. MAY:  We don't oppose staff's

          22        recommendation.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board?

          24        Commissioner Brisé, didn't you say you move staff?

          25             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Sure.
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           1             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           3        seconded.  All in favor say aye.

           4             (Unanimous.)

           5             Any opposed?

           6             By your action you've approved Issue No. 10.

           7             MS. LINN:  Commissioners, I'm Tonya Linn with

           8        Commission staff.  Issue 11 is staff's

           9        recommendation to increase other deferred debits by

          10        $14,042.  AUF requested $365,422 for other deferred

          11        debits.  Staff recommends 379,464.

          12             We would also like to add an oral modification

          13        from the errata sheet.  The Table 11-1 shows in the

          14        last rate column $93,048.  That was combined with

          15        agreed upon adjustments from Issue 2.  It should

          16        total $14,042.

          17             Staff is prepared to answer any questions the

          18        Commission may have.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Hold on just a second.  I

          20        need to find that.  Okay.

          21             Public Counsel?

          22             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of agenda,

          23        Office of Public Counsel has no objections to

          24        staff's adjustments.

          25             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's
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           1        recommendation.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What's that you say,

           3        Commissioner Brisé, move staff?

           4             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Move staff.

           5             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           7        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 11.

           8        All in favor say aye.

           9             (Unanimous.)

          10             Any opposed?

          11             By your action you've approved staff

          12        recommendation on Issue No. 11.

          13             Issue No. 12.

          14             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, Issue 12 is

          15        staff's recommendation regarding the appropriate

          16        accrued taxes for inclusion in working capital.

          17        Our adjustment of $1.1 million approximately is

          18        consistent with the Commission's decision in the

          19        last case.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          21             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purpose of the agenda we

          22        support staff's recommended adjustments.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          24             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's

          25        recommendation.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

           2             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Move staff.

           3             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           5        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 12.

           6        All in favor say aye.

           7             (Unanimous.)

           8             Any opposed?

           9             By your action you approve Issue No. 12.

          10             Issue No. 13.

          11             MS. LINN:  Issue 13 is staff's recommendation

          12        to increase deferred rate case expense by $107,880.

          13        AUF included $719,224 in its filing for deferred

          14        rate case expense.  Staff recommends deferred rate

          15        case expense of $827,104.  This includes prior rate

          16        case expense of $437,969 and current rate case

          17        expense of $389,135.  There's also an oral

          18        modification shown on page 4 of the errata sheet.

          19             And staff is prepared to answer any questions

          20        you may have.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          22             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Public Counsel has no

          23        objection to staff's recommended adjustments, with

          24        the exception that if any adjustments are made to

          25        rate case expense as the Commission votes out Issue
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           1        28, I guess, that those would be flowed back into

           2        this issue as appropriate.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Makes sense.

           4             Aqua Utilities?

           5             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's

           6        recommendation.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown, was that

           8        a motion to move Issue 13?

           9             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  It is.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Moved and seconded to

          11        approve Issue 13.  Any discussion?  All in favor

          12        say aye.

          13             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Wait, hold on.  I just

          14        want to make sure it's clear that with, again, any

          15        adjustment to the upcoming issue would flow back,

          16        and I don't know if we need to clarify that in

          17        the --

          18             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  That's implicit in --

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  She's a lawyer.  She knows.

          20        That was implicit in her motion.

          21             It's been moved and seconded.  Any further

          22        discussion?  All in favor say aye.

          23             (Unanimous.)

          24             Any opposed?

          25             By your action you've approved Issue No. --
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           1        that was 13.

           2             We're now going to Issue No. 14.

           3             MS. LINN:  Issue 14 is staff's recommendation

           4        to decrease AUF's requested working capital by

           5        $952,621.  This is a fallout calculation for Issues

           6        2, 11, 12, and 13.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

           8             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of the agenda

           9        conference, OPC has no objections to staff's

          10        recommended adjustments.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          12             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's

          13        recommendation.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar?

          15             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I would move staff as a

          16        fallout issue.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          18        seconded, staff recommendation for Issue No. 14.

          19        All in favor, please say aye.

          20             (Unanimous.)

          21             Any opposed?

          22             By your action you've approved Issue No. 14.

          23             Issue No. 15.

          24             MR. DEASON:  Commissioners, Issue 15 has to do

          25        with staff's recommended rate base for water and
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           1        wastewater.  Aqua requested a rate base of

           2        $36,347,777.  There is an oral modification on page

           3        4 of the errata sheet at the bottom of the page.

           4        Staff is recommending a rate base of $20,242,872

           5        for water and 13,781,735 for wastewater.

           6        Additionally, Table 15-1 has been updated to show

           7        these specific adjustments regarding each

           8        individual rate band.

           9             This is a fallout issue regarding the

          10        adjustments the staff has made from Issues 2 to 14,

          11        and we're available for any questions.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          13             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel has

          14        no objection to staff's recommendations.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          16             MR. MAY:  No objections.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Move approval of staff

          19        recommendation.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          22        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 15.

          23        Any further discussion?  All in favor say aye.

          24             (Unanimous.)

          25             Any opposed?

                                                                        290

           1             By your action you've approved Issue No. 15.

           2             Issue No. 16.

           3             MR. SPRINGER:  Good evening, Commissioners.

           4        I'm Michael Springer.  Issue 16 is the appropriate

           5        capital structure to use for rate setting purposes.

           6        We believe the appropriate capital structure for

           7        AUF is the revised schedule 1 included in the

           8        errata.  Staff is available to answer your

           9        questions.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          11             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel has

          12        no objection to the recommended adjustments by

          13        staff.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          15             MR. MAY:  We agree with the recommendation.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          17             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Move approval of staff's

          18        recommendation on Issue 16.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's been moved and

          20        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 16.

          21        Any further discussion?  Seeing none, all in favor

          22        say aye.

          23             (Unanimous.)

          24             Any opposed?

          25             By your action you approve No. 16.
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           1             Let's go to Issue 17.

           2             MS. SALNOVA:  Good evening, Commissioners.

           3        I'm Natalia Salnova on behalf of Commission staff.

           4             Issue 17 addresses the appropriate amount of

           5        accumulated deferred income taxes to include in the

           6        capital structure.  Staff recommends an increase of

           7        approximately $736,000 over the amount collected in

           8        the utility's filing.

           9             The primary driver for the increase is bonus

          10        tax depreciation allowance provided by the small

          11        business job set and the tax relief act.  Staff

          12        adjusted the balance of accumulated deferred income

          13        taxes to reflect deferred income tax effects of

          14        bonus tax depreciation related to the past year

          15        plan and pro forma plan.  The company did not

          16        include the tax effect in its filing.

          17             Recognizing zero cost deferred taxes and the

          18        capital structure uses the overall cost of return

          19        charged the ratepayers.  Staff recommends the

          20        appropriate amount of accumulated deferred income

          21        taxes to include in AUF's capital structure is

          22        2,192,385.

          23             Staff is available to answer any questions you

          24        may have.

          25             MR. FLETCHER:  I'd just like to add that the
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           1        errata correction for Issue 17 is on page 5 of the

           2        errata sheet.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Got you.

           4             Public Counsel?

           5             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel has

           6        no objection to staff's recommendation.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

           8             MR. MAY:  No objections, Mr. Chairman.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          10             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Move staff.

          11             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          13        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 17.

          14        All in favor say aye.

          15             (Unanimous.)

          16             Any opposed?

          17             By your action you've approved Issue No. 17.

          18             That moves us to Issue No. 18.

          19             MR. SPRINGER:  Issue 18 is the appropriate

          20        cost rate for short-term and long-term debt.  There

          21        is no short-term debt, and staff believes the

          22        appropriate cost rate for long-term debt is

          23        5.1 percent.

          24             Staff is available to answer any of your

          25        questions.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

           2             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel has

           3        no objection to staff's recommendation.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

           5             MR. MAY:  We agree with staff's

           6        recommendation, Mr. Chairman.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

           8             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I did have a question

           9        that came up during the customer meetings about the

          10        utility.  It's for the utility, if you don't mind.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yeah, sure.

          12             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  For the utility

          13        considering longer term debt financing options that

          14        would moderate or reduce current rates.  Has the

          15        utility explored?

          16             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chair?

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, please.

          18             MR. MAY:  Commissioner Brown, yes, the utility

          19        is always vigilant on looking at the most

          20        cost-effective debt structure appropriate, and I

          21        can defer to Mr. Rendell, but I'm confident that

          22        that's the case.

          23             MR. RENDELL:  I agree with that statement.  We

          24        continually look to see if we can refinance any

          25        long-term debt to get a better interest rate.  Our
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           1        combined rate -- or overall combined rate, 5.1, is

           2        relatively low compared to financial markets at

           3        this time.

           4             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I'd like to move staff

           5        recommendation.

           6             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           8        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 18.

           9        Any further discussion?

          10             Seeing none, I actually have to tell you I was

          11        kind of impressed on how low that rate was.

          12             Any further discussion?  Seeing none, all in

          13        favor say aye.

          14             (Unanimous.)

          15             Any opposed?

          16             By your action you approve Issue No. 18.

          17             Issue No. 19.

          18             MR. SPRINGER:  Issue 19 is 9.67 percent is the

          19        appropriate rate of return on equity based on the

          20        leverage formula currently in effect.

          21             Staff is available to answer your questions.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          23             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Public Counsel has no

          24        objection to the rate of return of common equity of

          25        9.67, although we would like to express any support
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           1        for a reduction in that related to the finding of

           2        marginal service that the Commissioners might deem

           3        appropriate.  We think that that would be

           4        appropriate.  Although we hadn't addressed it

           5        originally on our handout sheet, based on today's

           6        discussion we would fully support some sort of

           7        return on equity reduction to -- due to the

           8        marginal service.  Thank you.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you have any

          10        recommendations?

          11             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I think your staff said you

          12        could go as low as 100 basis points for that with

          13        marginal service, and, I mean, if this is a

          14        continuing and ongoing problem, so we would support

          15        going to the 100 basis points.  Now -- but

          16        definitely a reduction in the ROE for this company.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          18             MR. MAY:  We certainly don't agree with OPC on

          19        this one.  We would agree with staff's

          20        recommendation and would point out that using the

          21        leverage formula produces an ROE of 9.67.  We're

          22        currently earning an ROE of 9.75, so this is a

          23        reduction in and of itself.  And would also point

          24        out that, in instances where the Commission has

          25        reduced ROE, I'd like you to consider those
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           1        instances.  The factual instances were much more

           2        egregious than I believe that are here.

           3             For instance, in the case that Mr. Jaeger

           4        mentioned earlier, the Gulf Power Company v. Wilson

           5        case, a Supreme Court decision, the Commission

           6        reduced the ROE of that electric utility by 50

           7        basis points, but it was only after finding

           8        criminally corrupt practices and gross

           9        mismanagement, which reflected a gross disregard

          10        for ratepayer and public service.  I don't think

          11        those findings are reflective here, and we would

          12        respectfully submit that no reduction in ROE is

          13        warranted.

          14             MR. SPRINGER:  I would just like to bring --

          15        bring the attention to the errata sheet on this

          16        one.  It's not a material difference, but the

          17        equity ratio changed from 61.22 on page 5 of the

          18        errata sheet to 61.31.  So before you vote I just

          19        wanted you to know that.  Excuse me.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's quite all right.

          21             MR. CURTIN:  And if I may, Commissioner, talk

          22        about the ROE issue on behalf of Arredondo Farms.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          24             MR. CURTIN:  Respectively, we also believe

          25        that the Commission should take some account of a
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           1        reduction in the ROE.  Obviously we want -- to ask

           2        you a recommendation of how much to do it is kind

           3        of asking someone, the principal, how hard do you

           4        want to be paddled.  Obviously Aqua doesn't want to

           5        be paddled hard and we would like them to be

           6        paddled hard.

           7             You know, last rate increase they had out here

           8        you -- the Commissioners put them on a monitoring

           9        plan.  Respectively, they failed that monitoring

          10        plan.  They have a marginal service here and they

          11        came back to this Commission asking for another

          12        large rate increase with failing their own

          13        monitoring plan.  So they have failed again on

          14        that, and I think the only way that putting them on

          15        a phase 3 monitoring plan would get them to

          16        actually do something about their service issues is

          17        to hit them in the ROE, because obviously that's

          18        where the purse strings area.  When you hit them in

          19        the ROE, they will do something about their

          20        service.

          21             So respectively we also request a reduction in

          22        ROE, and we did ask for that in our memorandum.

          23             Thank you.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May?

          25             MR. MAY:  Just very briefly.  Mr. Rendell
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           1        reminded me of the history in our last rate case.

           2        To get to 9.75 the Commission reduced our ROE by I

           3        think 100 basis points, so we had -- we had been

           4        whacked, if you will, the last case.

           5             Subsequently, in the last time we were here

           6        back in March the Commission indicated we had made

           7        substantial improvement.  Obviously you all have

           8        made a determination today that it is marginal, but

           9        still I would urge you to consider this historical

          10        fact, that we had been penalized in the past with

          11        an ROE reduction, and, you know, quite frankly

          12        we -- we -- in order to get out of this kind of

          13        cycle we're in, we believe a 9.69 or a 9.67 percent

          14        ROE is basically really minimally what we need to

          15        make the investments to move forward as a viable

          16        company.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          19        I just have a comment and then a question for

          20        staff, and I guess in response to the

          21        representative from Arredondo, I believe.

          22             I think looking at what phase 2 monitoring

          23        report stated in staff's original recommendation on

          24        quality of service, I think clearly the utility is

          25        making an attempt to do so in the -- to increase
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           1        the quality of service.  And the question for staff

           2        is, with this continued monitoring, do we have an

           3        opportunity to readdress this issue, if, say, six

           4        months down the road, seven months down the road,

           5        or whatever it may be, we see indications that

           6        quality of service is decreasing or there's no

           7        attempt, you know, so can we revisit that or is

           8        that our one shot at it?

           9             MR. WILLIS:  Commissioner Balbis, I would

          10        imagine that when we meet with the parties we will

          11        come back with a plan for the Commission to approve

          12        that would basically have a time frame in which the

          13        staff would bring back something to the Commission

          14        as far as where we deem the quality of service to

          15        be at that point, based on all of the parameters

          16        that the Commission agrees on.

          17             If at that time you see something going wrong,

          18        haywire with the Commission -- with the company and

          19        how their metrics are falling, you can certainly

          20        address that the rate of return might be reduced at

          21        that point.  That might require another proceeding

          22        to actually do a rate reduction at that point.

          23             In the last case I believe the Commission said

          24        that if, for instance, Chuluota system, there was

          25        talk there that if the consent order was lifted and
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           1        quality of service improved, that the ROE would be

           2        brought back to normal, but in that case they'd

           3        have to come in for a rate case since there was no

           4        increases granted.  That's something you could do

           5        as far as looking at it.

           6             If you wanted to apply a penalty now -- in

           7        other words, if you wanted to apply some form of

           8        penalty now, it could be alleviated later on.  If

           9        you saw that metrics were rising and the company

          10        was doing better, you could take that away at that

          11        point.

          12             MR. JAEGER:  Commissioner Balbis, this is

          13        legal, Ralph Jaeger.  I agree with Marshall on

          14        everything.

          15             I think if you wanted to give them some

          16        leeway, you could do a reduction, and then if they

          17        get better then we could come back in another PAA

          18        just on that limited issue to raise the rate of

          19        return.  Or if they got worse we could do a more

          20        reduction if you were going to stay within that

          21        range of reasonableness.  And so if you like did 50

          22        basis points or 75, then you could go either way

          23        after we do this phase 3 monitoring and come back

          24        and adjust the rates as -- based on their

          25        improvement or continued slide.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So I guess the question

           2        would be what would be an easier proceeding, the

           3        reduction of the ROE at a later date or allowing

           4        them to come in for an increase?

           5             MR. WILLIS:  An easier proceeding?  It

           6        wouldn't be easy.

           7             It all depends on what you're trying to do,

           8        Commissioner.  If you believe that the company --

           9        and then you have voted already that the company's

          10        quality of service is marginal.  If you believe

          11        that that warrants at this point in time some form

          12        of reduction, it would be easier for them to come

          13        back later on after review of metrics and have that

          14        taken away and raised back up to a normal rate of

          15        return that staff has recommended, if you agree

          16        with that return.

          17             The opposite direction, to try and take away

          18        something later on is going to be a much harder

          19        proceeding, in my opinion.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Mr. Chairman?

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And let me see if I

          22        understand what Mr. May said before.  Last rate

          23        case they had they -- the 100 basis points were

          24        pulled back.  Assuming if the monitoring goes

          25        through, they would get the 100 basis points back
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           1        this time.

           2             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry.  I

           3        misspoke.  Mr. Rendell just reminded me it was a 50

           4        basis points reduction.  It was 100 basis points

           5        for Chuluota and 50 basis points for the other

           6        system, reduction.  I apologize.  I just --

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's all right.

           8             MR. MAY:  -- confused that.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So 50 points?

          10             MR. MAY:  Yes.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So if --

          12             MR. WILLIS:  Mr. May is correct.  He is

          13        correct on that.  He didn't speak to --

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So it was 50 basis points.

          15        And since I guess according to what we're saying

          16        right now, they didn't hit that level that they

          17        wanted, so they would stay still 50 points down

          18        until they hit that level.  And I guess what

          19        Mr. May was trying to say is if you decrease it

          20        again, then you're hitting them the second time,

          21        because the basis points are already down.  Is that

          22        correct?  I'm just trying -- I'm thinking out loud.

          23        I'm trying to understand.

          24             MR. WILLIS:  I wouldn't want to speak for

          25        Mr. May, but the company was already reduced by 50
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           1        basis points in the last case, and you're saying

           2        that it's still marginal.  You have indicated that

           3        it has improved somewhat, so I'm not sure you want

           4        to go below 50 basis points.  You could continue

           5        the 50 basis points going forward, if that's your

           6        desire, with the idea that if they -- if they show

           7        improvement, we bring it back to the Commission,

           8        and you agree they've shown improvement enough to

           9        have them relieved of that 50 basis points, at that

          10        point they could have their rates increased for

          11        that extra 50 basis points to be brought back.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mary Anne is over there

          13        yelling and screaming, so let me go over there so

          14        we don't get in trouble, and I'll come back.

          15             MS. HELTON:  I was awakened.  I'm not sure

          16        that I agree exactly with some of the comments that

          17        have been made with respect to our ability to go

          18        back and reduce ROE further at the end of any kind

          19        of a monitoring review.  I'm much more comfortable

          20        with reducing it now.  I think that the

          21        conversation that we have with respect to not

          22        reducing it any further than what it was in the

          23        previous case makes a lot of sense to me and is

          24        solid.

          25             If you wanted to make that conditional such
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           1        that if at the end of the monitoring period they

           2        have shown some -- some concrete improvement such

           3        that you feel comfortable bringing their ROE back

           4        to the middle of the range that's laid out in the

           5        formula, I think that is something that you can do.

           6             I am not comfortable with you making it middle

           7        of the range now and then at some point throughout

           8        the monitoring process reducing that.  I think that

           9        that would require some type of an additional rate

          10        proceeding that is similar to what we're doing here

          11        today.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Once again, I'm trying to

          13        figure this out.  My understanding is we are

          14        currently a half a step down from last time, and

          15        had they made the improvements we would have given

          16        that half step back up.

          17             MR. MAUREY:  Mr. Chairman, there is some

          18        confusion.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Everybody wants to talk.

          20             MR. MAUREY:  I don't know how we got down this

          21        path.  There was no 50 basis points light.  At the

          22        hearing, staff recommended an ROE midpoint.  The

          23        Commission approved a different midpoint.  That's

          24        not a 100-basis-point reduction.  It just happened

          25        to be 102 basis points less than what staff
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           1        recommended.  That was not a reduction.  The only

           2        100-basis-point reduction applied to the Chuluota

           3        system, and it's on page 70 of the order that --

           4             MR. JAEGER:  I'm in full agreement with

           5        Mr. Maurey.  That's what we discussed at one of the

           6        briefings.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I thought you were in full

           8        agreement with Marshall -- I mean Mr. Willis over

           9        there.

          10             MR. JAEGER:  I am.  And Mr. Maurey -- I think

          11        Marshall wasn't saying anything -- he didn't know

          12        anything about the ROE, I don't think.  But

          13        basically we went round and round on the ROE in the

          14        080121 docket, and they had all kinds -- a lot of

          15        times we just do the leverage graph, but they had

          16        all kinds of testimony.  The leverage graph showed,

          17        like Andrew said, and the Commission went with 100

          18        basis points lower for the midpoint, and then they

          19        took another 100 basis points for Chuluota and said

          20        the midpoint was the 9.7 --

          21             MR. MAUREY:  The 9.75 was the ROE midpoint for

          22        Aqua in the last rate case.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  Let's go to

          24        Commissioner Balbis -- I'm sorry, Brown.

          25             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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           1        I was about to jump out of my seat like Ms. Helton

           2        as well.  Ms. Helton -- when we were talking about

           3        the different types of proceedings and when we

           4        would -- and do that.

           5             I did want to point out, and I'm grateful that

           6        you pointed out that the last rate case the ROE was

           7        set at 9.75.  Here, right now what it's set at is

           8        9.67.

           9             I just want to make sure what we do is legally

          10        defensible, and if -- and it complies with case law

          11        and precedents, and I just wanted to make that

          12        point out on the -- to the rest of the

          13        Commissioners and also to get confirmation and

          14        comfort with the rest of the Commission staff with

          15        regard to reductions in any basis points.

          16             MR. JAEGER:  If you determine that the

          17        midpoint of the ROE should be 9.67, then you may

          18        reduce that, pursuant to the Wilson case and some

          19        other cases, by 100 basis points, and you would

          20        stay within the range and not be athwart of any

          21        undue taking, or it would be legally by our

          22        analysis of the court cases.

          23             So first of all you set the mid -- what the

          24        midpoint would be under a normal situation.  You

          25        can say the 9.67 using a leverage graph, and then
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           1        you can say -- take 100 basis points off if you

           2        think the marginal service deserves a

           3        100-basis-point reduction.  That would be the

           4        maximum that you could take and stay within the

           5        range.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's do this.  Let's take a

           7        five-minute break.  Do you want to go before or

           8        after a five-minute break?

           9             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I'm going to jump out of

          10        my chair, Mr. Chairman.  Third in line.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Our poor court reporter over

          12        there, her fingers get to rest every two hours.  If

          13        you want her to go, I mean, we can let you speak,

          14        or if you want to be first person when we come

          15        back, Commissioner Edgar.

          16             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Can you give me 45

          17        seconds?  She's nodding.  Good.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar.

          19             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  And thank

          20        you.  I appreciate that.  And I have been kind of

          21        jumping out of my chair, because some of the

          22        discussion of the discussion and the decision on

          23        ROE at the last case did not jive with my memory,

          24        and although there were pieces of that discussion

          25        I've tried to erase from my memory, I have gone
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           1        back in the last 48 hours and reread the entire

           2        transcript.

           3             And I would point out that there was

           4        substantial discussion, and we went round and round

           5        and round, and to the extent that there were

           6        actually two concurring opinions written just

           7        specifically on this point of ROE and how to get

           8        there, one of which was mine, which I still agree

           9        with, by the way.

          10             Absolutely anything we need to do I want us to

          11        have to the best of our ability a strong rationale.

          12        I think that's important for the company and for

          13        other cases that will come before us.  I also will

          14        point out that some of the discussion that caused

          15        us to go round and round at the last time and maybe

          16        has not been completely highlighted tonight is that

          17        part of the reason for the change is the change in

          18        the leverage formula.

          19             And one of the concerns at the last hearing or

          20        the last -- in the last rate case when this was

          21        discussed was that there was a finding of marginal,

          22        and -- but yet there also had been a recent

          23        previous vote to adopt a leverage formula, which a

          24        number of the Commissioners seemed to feel was too

          25        high for the facts that were before us, but yet
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           1        trying to find some consistency in adopting a

           2        leverage formula, and then soon after perhaps not

           3        utilizing it in an instant case.  I think that's

           4        accurate.

           5             In this instance, what -- what I would suggest

           6        is that, you know, a little while ago I made a

           7        suggestion that we reach a finding of satisfactory

           8        on a majority of the systems and marginal on a

           9        smaller portion, and we decided to go in a

          10        different direction, and I supported that in the

          11        interest of the full discussion and reaching

          12        consensus.

          13             But I think a finding of marginal should have

          14        some impact.  I also think that we need to

          15        recognize that we have said as a body and our staff

          16        has shown us in -- in factual review and analysis

          17        and documentation that progress has been made, that

          18        there has been a real effort to make improvement,

          19        and that some improvement has been made.  But by

          20        making a finding of marginal we have said you're

          21        not there yet, and I think that should have some

          22        impact.

          23             So before we go on break, Mr. Chairman, I

          24        would suggest that that issue of us having adopted

          25        a leverage formula and that leverage formula by
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           1        virtue of the passage of time and other

           2        circumstances being different than the leverage

           3        formula that was before the Commission before

           4        should enter into our thought process, and I will

           5        just put out there for us to think on, you know, a

           6        reduction of maybe 25 to 50 basis points per the

           7        discussion I've had.

           8             Because of the progress that we have said has

           9        been made, I would not support anything more than

          10        50 points.

          11             And I thank you for the opportunity to speak

          12        before the break.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let me see if I understand.

          14        You're still saying though for that reduction to be

          15        on everything and not what you originally said and

          16        just part of that?

          17             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes.  Because what I had

          18        suggested was not the finding that we adopted.

          19        Therefore the other piece of it no longer flows.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I don't think that motion

          21        was ever made.  I think you talked about it, but --

          22             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Correct.  I didn't make

          23        the motion.  I made the suggestion and there did

          24        not seem to be support.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I just wanted to let
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           1        you know that the motion was never made.

           2             That all being said, well, let's take a

           3        five-minute break.  Actually let's get back here at

           4        five minutes after the hour.

           5             (Break taken.)

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right, guys.  Let's get

           7        ready.  Okay.  I appreciate you guys all being

           8        quick with the break.

           9             We are on Issue No. 19 and Commissioner Edgar

          10        let's say still has the floor.

          11             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          12        And I'll put this out there in light of my earlier

          13        comments.  Less succinct than I would have liked

          14        them to be, but hopefully relatively clear.  I

          15        would move that we reduce the staff recommendation

          16        by 25 basis points as a reflection of our findings

          17        on Issue 1, and any other issues that would need to

          18        be adjusted to flow from that, we ask the staff to

          19        take care of that.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's been moved and

          22        seconded to decrease staff recommendation by 25

          23        basis points?

          24             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now I guess the question I
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           1        have, this is going back to your original

           2        statement, do you want to do this for the entire

           3        system or for the ones that we just seem to be

           4        having issues with?

           5             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I think we address that

           6        in Issue 1.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Just asked the

           8        question.

           9             Any other discussion?

          10             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Unless somebody else

          11        wants to move that we revisit Issue 1, but in light

          12        of our decision on Issue 1, I -- I think that the

          13        two issues should be consistent.

          14             MR. JAEGER:  Commissioner Edgar, Ralph Jaeger.

          15        I have a clarifying question.  We usually set the

          16        midpoint and then you reduce it by 25 basis points.

          17        Is that what you're --

          18             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  So the midpoint would be

          19        the 9.67 that is the leverage -- that reflects the

          20        leverage formula calculation.

          21             MR. JAEGER:  And then reduce that 25 basis

          22        points?

          23             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes, sir.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          25             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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           1        And I support the motion.  Again, I just want to

           2        recognize that the utility has made strides, and I

           3        recognize that.  I think, again, the curve is

           4        starting to move up.  We want to continue that

           5        momentum, provide an incentive to the utility to,

           6        again, at the end of the monitoring period if we

           7        see that these problems have been solved, then of

           8        course we'd move forward with that other easier

           9        proceeding that general counsel's office is

          10        comfortable with, go from there.  So with that I

          11        would support the motion.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

          13             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          14        and I support the motion and I just want to

          15        recognize that we could have gone 50 points, so I

          16        think we went to 25, in recognition that there is

          17        forward progress, and we certainly hope that there

          18        will be continuing forward progress, and maybe

          19        we'll be at a point where we can eliminate that

          20        reduction.  So that's our end goal.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other discussion?

          22        Commissioner Edgar?

          23             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I would just say, for

          24        any -- anybody who's interested in further

          25        discussion on this point, I would recommend my
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           1        concurring opinion in the last rate case.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff recommendation on

           3        Issue No. 19, as amended by Commissioner Edgar, has

           4        been moved and seconded.  Any further discussion?

           5        Seeing none, all in favor say aye.

           6             (Unanimous.)

           7             Any opposed?

           8             By your action you have approved Issue No. 19.

           9             Issue No. 20.

          10             MS. SALNOVA:  Issue 20 addresses the

          11        appropriate weighted average cost of capital.

          12        Based on the proper components, amounts, and cost

          13        rates associated with the capital structure, staff

          14        recommends the appropriate weighted average cost of

          15        capital for AUF is 7.39 percent.

          16             Staff is available to answer your questions.

          17             I apologize.  Please refer to page 6 of the

          18        errata sheet for modifications.  And also please

          19        note that Issue 20 is impacted by Issue 19.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?  I'm sorry,

          21        hold on a second.

          22             Commissioner Edgar?

          23             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I was just going to say,

          24        my understanding is this is a fallout issue, and if

          25        there are no concerns by the parties, I would move
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           1        staff.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

           3             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel has

           4        no objection to staff's recommendations as amended

           5        to show the Commission's vote in Issue 19.

           6             MR. MAY:  We agree.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and it's

           8        been seconded.  Any further discussion on Issue No.

           9        20?  Seeing none, all in favor say aye.

          10             (Unanimous.)

          11             Any opposed?

          12             By your action you've approved Issue No. 20.

          13             No. 21.

          14             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, Issue 21 is

          15        staff's recommendation to disallow fines and

          16        penalties assessed to the utility.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          18             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Public Counsel has no

          19        objection to the staff recommendation.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          21             MR. MAY:  We agree.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

          23             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Move staff.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          25        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 21.
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           1        All in favor say aye.

           2             (Unanimous.)

           3             Any opposed?

           4             By your action you've approved Issue No. 21.

           5             Issue No. 22.

           6             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, Issue 22 is

           7        staff's recommendation of the appropriate allocated

           8        affiliate rate base and operating expenses.

           9             Briefly, AAI, the utility's parent, has two

          10        divisions that allocate costs to its subsidiaries

          11        in the various states.  These two divisions are

          12        Aqua Services, Inc. and Aqua Customer Organization.

          13        Staff recommends four specific adjustments to

          14        reflect additional AAI customers beyond the test

          15        year, reduction of corporate IT costs associated

          16        with divestitures, removal of normalization and

          17        pro forma executive salary increases, and removal

          18        of executive bonus compensation.  These adjustments

          19        represent a total revenue requirement reduction of

          20        approximately a quarter million dollars.

          21             Staff is prepared to answer any questions you

          22        may have.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          24             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel

          25        doesn't object to staff's disallowances as far as
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           1        they go.  We have previously handed out what we

           2        would make as further reductions to the affiliate

           3        charges.  We addressed this in our opening and

           4        briefly again.  Aqua Utilities' management fees and

           5        cost affiliate charges are 60 percent higher than

           6        the average of all other water and wastewater

           7        utilities.  That's based on staff's analysis.

           8             As we pointed out in our earlier comments on

           9        page 83, staff uses as part of its analysis of

          10        the -- I want to say reasonableness of their own

          11        O&M costs was this analysis of all other O&M

          12        expenses.  As we pointed out earlier, there was a

          13        mathematical error, and they compared the total

          14        cost of all water and wastewater utilities -- or

          15        wastewater customers, but then only divided by the

          16        number of water customers, and that significantly

          17        skewed the number to $399.  When you make the

          18        correction and divide by the correct number of

          19        customers, it brings down the total average cost to

          20        $241, versus Aqua's $392.

          21             We also did an analysis from OPC on similarly

          22        situated class C customers for management fees per

          23        ERC.  Aqua's cost was $201 versus all the other

          24        class Cs, which was 160.

          25             And, you know, I think this goes to
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           1        demonstrate that there's just really no economies

           2        of scale that Aqua is bringing to these customers,

           3        especially through the affiliate charges.  And

           4        there's no explanation of why these affiliate

           5        charges have raised -- have increased more than

           6        250 percent in the last two years.  I mean -- and

           7        there's no documents for at least 130 percent of

           8        those increases.  And your own MFRs require that if

           9        there's an increase in any specific category of

          10        costs beyond what CPI and inflation would account

          11        for, they're supposed to provide an explanation of

          12        that.  There was none provided.

          13             So, you know, we're not saying they shouldn't

          14        have any management or affiliate costs.  We're just

          15        saying they should remain at the same level that

          16        they had in 2008.  You shouldn't give them an

          17        increase in these management costs.  They just

          18        haven't justified it.

          19             And, contrary to staff's assertion in the

          20        recommendation, it's not Office of Public Counsel's

          21        obligation to prove or disapprove their costs.

          22        It's the utility's burden to prove and justify the

          23        costs that they're asking for recovery from the

          24        customers.

          25             So I do think we have brought to the table
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           1        reasons that this Commission should disallow this

           2        increase for this specific charge.  And, as we

           3        stated before, the total disallowance would be

           4        $1,343,095.  And we think that that is fair to the

           5        customers.

           6             And, you know, at some point, if they could

           7        provide justification for an increase, that would

           8        be fine.  But I just, frankly, cannot see in this

           9        economy how you can justify 250 percent increase.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          11             MR. MAY:  First, we strongly disagree that

          12        there's been a 250 percent increase.  Our

          13        calculations show it's around 3.5 percent, so it's

          14        not 250 percent.

          15             The second issue that I'd like to point out is

          16        this kind of cost comparison that Ms. Christensen

          17        is engaged in was the very type of cost comparison

          18        that the First District Court of Appeal and

          19        Sunshine Utilities of Central Florida v. PSC

          20        objected to and overturned.  It's an apples to

          21        oranges opinion.  I think staff has got it exactly

          22        right on page 85.  You see that to disallow

          23        affiliate charges solely on -- based on the

          24        purported cost structures of other entities would

          25        ignore the actual cost incurred by AUF and violate
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           1        fundamental principles of cost of service

           2        regulation.

           3             I would also point out in the handout that

           4        OPC, they mention a Virginia study.  What they

           5        overlook is the fact that AUF supplied a Florida

           6        study, which showed that their allocated costs are

           7        below the cost that they would have incurred had

           8        they had to go outside of the corporate structure

           9        and retain their own outside consultants, own

          10        outside engineers, accountants, et cetera.

          11             So we think staff's got it right.  We would

          12        agree with staff's recommendation.

          13             MR. FLETCHER:  Chairman, if I may.  I didn't

          14        point out the oral modifications that were on the

          15        errata sheet at the bottom of page 6 and the top of

          16        page 7 for this issue.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sounds good, for the record.

          18             Commissioner Brisé, followed by

          19        Commissioner Brown.

          20             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          21             If staff could just clarify for me and maybe

          22        for the record the claim of the mathematical error.

          23             MR. FLETCHER:  Yes, Commissioner.  On page 83

          24        of the staff's recommendation, that corresponds to

          25        OPC's handout, page 3, staff put this section in
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           1        there not as a basis for the reasonableness of

           2        Aqua's affiliate costs.  It was only for comparable

           3        purposes only, as mentioned in the first sentence.

           4        I will admit that is an error on my part.  I took

           5        all 133 utilities that filed a 2009 annual report.

           6        I had the numerator correct.  I did not have the

           7        denominator correct at the -- reflecting the

           8        wastewater customers.

           9             I will say, as for comparable purposes, the

          10        midpoint of the range is it goes from a low of $58

          11        all the way up into the thousands of dollars per

          12        customer.  Aqua is below the midpoint, just for

          13        comparable purposes.  So I -- the number that's

          14        reflected on page 3, the 241, yes, that is the

          15        average.

          16             But again, that was not the basis for staff as

          17        far as the reasonableness of the affiliate

          18        transactions.  That is delineated through the case

          19        law of the Sunshine case that was mentioned.  That

          20        is on a prior Commission decision that says that

          21        you have to look -- you cannot make a blanket

          22        adjustment.  You have to look at specific -- which

          23        staff did in this issue; we had four specific

          24        adjustments.  You have to look at the individual

          25        transactions and make specific concerns with

                                                                        322

           1        transactions.  You cannot make a blanket adjustment

           2        on an average or comparison.  There's too many

           3        variables that go into that.  You have to compare

           4        similar duties and responsibilities to make sure

           5        you're doing an apples to apples comparison.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So from -- from what you're

           7        explaining now, that even though there might have

           8        been a slight error, the outcome still remains

           9        virtually the same?

          10             MR. FLETCHER:  That is correct.  That was not

          11        the basis as far as the reasonableness, that

          12        paragraph that is on page 83 of our recommendation.

          13        That was only for comparable purposes only.

          14             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          16             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17             Mr. Fletcher, has the utility proved its

          18        burden for these charges?

          19             MR. FLETCHER:  I believe they have, with

          20        staff's adjustments, the remaining amount, yes.

          21             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Do you know why there's a

          22        discrepancy between OPC's suggestion that there's a

          23        250 percent increase and the utility company's

          24        suggestion that there's only a 3.5 percent

          25        increase?
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           1             MR. FLETCHER:  When you look at the management

           2        fee, there were some reclassifications where the

           3        management fees in the last case were in other O&M

           4        expense accounts, and that can account for that

           5        difference.  I'm not -- I have not seen the

           6        utility's calculation regarding the 3 percent, but

           7        I do know that that is a reason why there would be

           8        that difference.

           9             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Can I briefly address that?

          10             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Certainly.

          11             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And I'm going to let

          12        Ms. Vandiver do that, because she is our accountant

          13        and she looked in-depth at that issue.

          14             MS. VANDIVER:  In order to consider what the

          15        company was saying, the MFR pages has a schedule

          16        called the O&M benchmark, and it asks for the

          17        company to show what they had in their last case

          18        and what they had in the current case.  And on

          19        management fees, the company said they reclassified

          20        some accounts.

          21             So we considered that, and we did go back and

          22        we looked at the company didn't give numbers, they

          23        just make a blanket statement.  So we went and we

          24        looked at all the contractual services as well as

          25        the miscellaneous expense, which is what they said
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           1        they reclassified money from.

           2             And even using that analysis, we found that

           3        what was in the prior test year of 1.9 million was

           4        now 3.2 million, for a 1.3 million increase, which

           5        is about 67 percent increase.

           6             So I don't know where they got the 3 percent

           7        either, but in the best of situations it's still

           8        67 percent higher in our view.

           9             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And if I may.  Aqua, can

          10        you please explain?

          11             MR. RENDELL:  Commissioners, certainly.  It is

          12        true.  What staff said is true.  And there's

          13        several things that occurred.  In the previous

          14        case, 19 -- sorry, 2007, we booked the allocated

          15        costs and miscellaneous expense in 675.  Subsequent

          16        to that, in 2010 we started, we believe,

          17        appropriately recognizing contractual services

          18        management fees, which is 634, 734.

          19             Along with that in 2010, we also stopped

          20        recording some of the direct charges, like IT

          21        maintenance, some of the contracts, some of the

          22        other ones that were in other accounts, like I

          23        believe it's 634 and I think 632, and also started

          24        recording those in management fees.

          25             So what we looked at is the net effect of
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           1        that, and the 3 percent increase is actually from

           2        2009 to 2010, the corporate charges going from

           3        approximately 874,000 to 905,000.  We answered well

           4        over 200 interrogatories, and a significant amount

           5        of those were the allocations.  We also answered

           6        staff data requests.  So we believe we supplied

           7        enough information to -- for OPC to get this

           8        adjustment.

           9             There's one other point I do want to mention

          10        and real briefly, is there was also an allocation

          11        or change in allocation on IT projects that staff

          12        has recommended.  I think we have a philosophical

          13        difference, and I'll briefly mention it, because

          14        it's not at this point where we're going to

          15        protest, but I think it's something we want to

          16        discuss with staff.

          17             They identified some IT projects, some

          18        software, and what they relied on is a similar case

          19        in Utilities, Inc., where they brought some

          20        divestitures back, so it wasn't reallocated.

          21        What -- what's missing is there were numerous

          22        pieces of that software that was never allocated to

          23        their systems, because they were never on that

          24        software.  They had their own billing.  They had

          25        their own software that -- they never used that.
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           1             So I just bring it up as that's just one

           2        philosophical point that we disagree with.  But as

           3        a whole we support staff's recommendation.

           4             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Was that a motion I heard?

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I'd like to hear some

           7        comments, if any other Commissioners have comments

           8        on --

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar, followed

          10        by Balbis.

          11             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  The issue of the

          12        accounting for affiliate charges is one that we've

          13        had lots and lots of discussion about in this room

          14        over the years.  And it's always, you know,

          15        somewhat of a difficult one because, let's face it,

          16        it's putting, you know, money into -- into the

          17        charges that will ultimately flow to the customers.

          18             In this instance, I think that the staff did a

          19        good job of balancing all of those interests

          20        consistent with the case law and with previous

          21        decisions of this Commission.  And unless there is

          22        further discussion that makes me think that maybe I

          23        need to rethink that, at this point I would support

          24        the staff recommendation.  But I certainly want to

          25        hear the remaining comments.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I

           3        just have a quick question for the utility.

           4             On page 80 of the recommendation there's a

           5        discussion about the additional employees,

           6        specifically engineers.  And as a recovering

           7        professional engineer, I just have a question as

           8        far as you list the services that the in-staff or

           9        on-staff engineers provide, and it seems to me

          10        they're providing more administrative services as

          11        far as obtaining, repairing RFPs, et cetera.

          12             Can you -- I mean, I assume they're doing

          13        other things, especially with some of the comments

          14        given by Aqua representatives on technical detailed

          15        engineering knowledge.  Can you just expand what

          16        other roles those professional engineers take in

          17        the organization?

          18             MR. MAY:  Sure.  With the Chair's permission,

          19        Mr. Lucweiller can address that issue as far as the

          20        expanded role of the engineers for the company.

          21             MR. LUCWEILLER:  I take it your question is

          22        about the Aqua services engineering services?

          23        Yeah.  I mentioned the Chuluota case.  Myself and

          24        Mike Pickel, who works for me in compliance, and

          25        Dr. Hertz, who is our Ph.D. lab manager, were on
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           1        every weekly call on the Chuluota case for almost a

           2        year while that project was going on.  We have an

           3        engineer in New Jersey who has been helping with

           4        the design of the Sunny Hills tank and the WRT

           5        treatment systems in Peace River Heights, because

           6        New Jersey has some of the largest and the most WRT

           7        systems in -- in -- for radium treatment.

           8             Those are the kinds of engineering services

           9        that we provide.  We have -- every four months we

          10        have compliance assurance program meetings where,

          11        by phone or in person we meet with the Florida

          12        staff and review all outstanding compliance issues,

          13        water quality issues, alternative engineering

          14        solutions to those, and provide guidance on where

          15        to go on those kinds of projects.

          16             So we're collectively spending a lot of time

          17        in Florida on Florida issues in Bryn Mawr.

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you.  I just

          19        wanted to make sure that, again, those services, if

          20        you're comparing it to other outside professional

          21        engineers in services that are similar, and it

          22        sounds like they would be.  So with that I don't

          23        have any other questions and would support the

          24        motion.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So it was moved by
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           1        Commissioner Edgar, seconded by Commission Balbis,

           2        staff recommendation on Issue No. 22.  Is that

           3        correct?

           4             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All in favor say aye.

           6             (Unanimous.)

           7             Any opposed?

           8             By your action you've approved Issue No. 22.

           9             Issue No. 23.

          10             MR. MOURING:  Thank you.  Commissioners, I'm

          11        Curt Mouring with Commission staff.  Issue 23

          12        addresses staff's recommendation for specific

          13        adjustments to O&M expenses for sludge hauling,

          14        contractual services accounting, and contractual

          15        services legal.

          16             Staff is prepared to answer any questions you

          17        may have.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          19             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of agenda,

          20        staff -- or Office of Public Counsel has no

          21        objection to staff's recommendation.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

          23             MR. MAY:  We agree with the recommendation.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          25             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Move staff.
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           1             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           3        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 23.

           4        All in favor say aye.

           5             (Unanimous.)

           6             Any opposed?

           7             My understanding is Issue No. 24 is deleted?

           8             MR. MAUREY:  That's correct.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So Issue 25.

          10             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, Issue 25 is

          11        staff's recommendation of the appropriate director

          12        and office liability insurance.

          13             Staff is prepared to answer any questions you

          14        may have.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          16             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of agenda,

          17        Office of Public Counsel has no objection to the

          18        recommendation.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          20             MR. MAY:  We agree with the recommendation.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

          22             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Move staff.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I have a question.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  It's been moved and

          25        seconded.  Now your discussion.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  All right.  I have a

           2        question for staff and for the utility.

           3             In the last Aqua rate case, didn't the

           4        Commission disallow this expense?

           5             MR. FLETCHER:  Yes, they did.  And since that

           6        time, there have been a change in the Commission's

           7        practice regarding the DOL insurance.  There was

           8        the TECO and Progress Energy rate cases, where

           9        those were both hearing cases that the Commission

          10        stated there is a benefit to ratepayers and the

          11        cost should be shared equally between the

          12        ratepayers and shareholders.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And I just want to point

          14        out to my fellow Commissioners that sometimes in

          15        different coverage policies it does include

          16        protection for -- personal protection for

          17        employees, directors, officers, and I wanted to ask

          18        Aqua if they are aware if this is duplicative of

          19        any existing E and O coverage that the utility

          20        company currently has, and whether this just

          21        provides additional protection for the officers and

          22        employees.

          23             MR. MAY:  Can you give me one second to

          24        consult with --

          25             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Certainly.
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           1             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman?

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes?

           3             MR. MAY:  We're confident it's not

           4        duplicative, that it's additional D and O insurance

           5        for the directors and officers.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  And I guess the

           7        benefit to the ratepayers -- and this is more of a

           8        question for the utility company and meeting its

           9        burden -- is that you would -- what is the benefit

          10        to the ratepayers?

          11             MR. MAY:  I think that the benefit that was

          12        articulated by the Commission with respect to Tampa

          13        Electric Company and other electric utilities and

          14        in the staff recommendation is that it's really

          15        part of doing business in a publicly -- it's an

          16        expected part of participating in a publicly traded

          17        company, and in order to attract competent

          18        directors and officers, it's expected in the

          19        marketplace to have this type of coverage.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

          21             MR. MAY:  Thank you.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any further discussion on

          23        Issue 25?  Commissioner Balbis?

          24             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Mr. Chair, I move

          25        staff's recommendation.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

           2        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue 25.  All in

           3        favor say aye.

           4             (Unanimous.)

           5             Any opposed?

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Aye.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Let the record show

           8        one dissenting vote.

           9             Issue No. 26.

          10             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, Issue 26 is

          11        staff's recommendation regarding the appropriate

          12        salary and wages-employees expense.

          13             We're prepared to answer any questions you may

          14        have.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          16             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  As we indicated in our

          17        handout, we have an objection to including any

          18        increases in salary and wages.  We are of the

          19        opinion that, given the current economic state and

          20        given that nobody or virtually nobody is getting

          21        any raises, including Aqua's customers, and they've

          22        been in here within the last two years and did

          23        receive a rate increase at that time, that it's not

          24        warranted here, and there should be a further

          25        reduction of 267 dollars, 269.  I should say that
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           1        again.  $267,269.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

           3             MR. MAY:  We disagree with OPC on this one as

           4        well.  I think the staff's analysis is entirely

           5        consistent with your recent rulings with respect to

           6        the various Utility, Inc.'s rate cases where this

           7        type of increase was allowed, and we think from a

           8        precedent standpoint and from just due process that

           9        it would be reasonable to extend that same increase

          10        here, and we think it's not overreaching.  We think

          11        the amount of the increase is entirely reasonable.

          12             And in light of the reduction in ROE, we think

          13        that in order to continue to remain viable and to

          14        move forward as you all have instructed us to, I

          15        think it's important for us to have this expense

          16        recognized.  Thank you.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

          18             Well, I'm going to have to say that I agree

          19        with OPC on this one.  It's a tight time for

          20        everybody, and I just find it hard to justify.

          21             Commissioner Balbis?

          22             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          23        And I too agree with OPC on this in that -- you

          24        know, but I'm very conscious about any precedent

          25        setting action that we take.  And one of the
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           1        discussions I've had with staff on this issue is,

           2        you know, obviously -- maybe not obviously, but,

           3        you know, I consider Aqua to be somewhat unusual

           4        case in that, with the recent rate case that just

           5        happened two years ago, to take that into account

           6        as well.

           7             And I guess the question for staff as far as

           8        any previous decisions by the Commission to

           9        disallow this type of increase.  I know we've done

          10        it for executives, and I agree with OPC on this.

          11        But if you can just kind of lay the groundwork of

          12        what we did in the past.

          13             MR. FLETCHER:  Well, actually in the last

          14        case, Commissioner, the Commission limited to the

          15        price index in the '08 case rather than 3 percent.

          16        We recommended limited to 3 percent in this case

          17        because of a more recent decision, posthearing

          18        decision, where the Commission allowed in January a

          19        3 percent increase for a water company.

          20             And also I want -- I think it's been -- had

          21        the help of Paul Stallcup to look up -- let me find

          22        the page here.  We had a -- just to look at where

          23        Florida was regarding the employment and wage by

          24        state in the third quarter of 2010.  And for

          25        Florida, the increase percentage was 2.8 percent.
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           1             So as a result of that, for Florida we believe

           2        the 3 percent that's in our recommendation is just

           3        further support that a 3 percent increase is

           4        reasonable.

           5             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So I guess to confirm,

           6        you're basing that on that data that shows a

           7        3 percent increase for Florida?

           8             MR. FLETCHER:  That was subsequent to our

           9        recommendation.  We looked for other areas about

          10        what is particularly just happening in Florida, and

          11        it did reveal a 2.8 percent in employment and wage.

          12        And again, that database was listed by state, and

          13        that's what it revealed for Florida.

          14             For our recommendation purposes, it was solely

          15        based, the 3 percent was based on that recent

          16        posthearing decision for a water case in St. George

          17        Island.

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And I guess just for the

          19        Commission, you know, just my personal comments, I

          20        guess, or opinion, would be that, you know, Aqua

          21        has come in for an increase due to the additional

          22        infrastructure improvements that are needed.  And I

          23        think that's something that we obviously are

          24        considering and looking at to make sure that all of

          25        these expenditures are prudent.  And I think it's a
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           1        real reason, you know, again, to invest in the

           2        infrastructure, because it's an aged system,

           3        et cetera.

           4             And again, you know, relying on a study that

           5        shows, you know, the 3 percent wage increase rather

           6        than this is a unique case, have infrastructure

           7        needs that we need to address, again, I tend to

           8        agree with OPC on this issue.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown, followed

          10        by Edgar.

          11             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I think

          12        Commissioner Edgar originally discussed this at the

          13        beginning of Issue 1 in her support -- and

          14        encourage her support over OPC's decision on this

          15        issue.  I also wholeheartedly support the decision,

          16        primarily because I don't think the utility company

          17        has justified the need nor the reason for the

          18        increase, any increase whatsoever.  Given the

          19        current economic climate in Florida that staff has

          20        acknowledged in its recommendation, and not only in

          21        Florida and throughout the country, there's no way

          22        that we can approve a rate -- an increase.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar?

          24             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          25        And, yes, this is -- when I first sort of threw out
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           1        a composite suggestion, this is one of the items

           2        that I suggested that we consider, the OPC

           3        position, and I still agree with that.

           4             In response to some of the comments from the

           5        staff, the recent case that they referred to in

           6        Franklin County, that is a case that I participated

           7        in the hearing and the decision, and in my mind

           8        that can be distinguished by a couple of factors,

           9        one of which is simply the size of the -- that

          10        system in relation to the large number of systems

          11        that we're dealing with here.

          12             And a second factor is the -- in my mind a

          13        very different presentation that we had from the

          14        customers in that case versus what we've had from

          15        the customers in this case.

          16             So with that in mind, I would support that we

          17        move to -- I would move that we adopt the OPC

          18        position on this issue.

          19             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Which is -- can we restate

          21        that for the record?

          22             MR. MAUREY:  Excuse me, Chairman, if I may.

          23        We saw the number that OPC came up with, the

          24        267,000.  In our normal deliberations, we ran a

          25        sensitivity of what it would be if we kept salaries
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           1        flat, and we came up a different number than the

           2        267.  So if you're moving OPC's adjustment, we

           3        can't match to it at this point.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's hear your different

           5        number and how you got there.

           6             MR. FLETCHER:  Commissioners, if I may.  What

           7        we looked at is the MFRs for accounts 601, 701.

           8        That's salaries and wages for employees,

           9        specifically for the normalization and pro forma

          10        adjustments that the utility is requesting, and

          11        then also the contractual services management

          12        increases for salaries that's in that account from

          13        the affiliate or sister companies, and then also

          14        from the ACO affiliate salary increases in account

          15        636 and 736, respectfully, for water and

          16        wastewater.

          17             We come up with a total normalization and

          18        pro forma adjustments there of 241,000.  We have

          19        already made adjustments in Issue 26 to reduce that

          20        salaries from 601 by 51,579, and then in Issue 22

          21        for the contractual services management and other,

          22        made adjustments accordingly.  What we see is the

          23        leftover salary of $185,691 as far as the salary

          24        that's left to be adjusted for the increases.  The

          25        associated payroll taxes associated with that is
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           1        about $12,116, for a total revenue requirement

           2        impact grossed up of 207,000.

           3             I have looked at the utility's -- OPC's table

           4        on page 4 with regard -- page 4 with regard to

           5        the -- this issue.  I think there must be some --

           6        I'm just not able to reconcile the disconnect.

           7        Maybe it's for nonjurisdictional systems.  Maybe it

           8        deals with the termination and new hires adjustment

           9        that's already been addressed in Issue 2, where

          10        there was agreed upon adjustment of over 100,000 to

          11        deal with that one, and I don't believe that

          12        there's any further adjustment required for the new

          13        hires and termination.  Maybe that's the reason for

          14        reconciliation.  I'm not sure.  I was not able to

          15        reconcile that number with OPC during the break.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          17             I'm not exactly sure, because I don't have

          18        the -- my Excel spreadsheet with me, but I believe

          19        our differences are the amount on the top of page

          20        94, that 98 -- $9,807.  And there's another $714

          21        for executive, acquisition of corporate development

          22        salaries.  My understanding was that those were

          23        coming out of different accounts, and so I only

          24        used the 41,058 in the adjustment, and that's the

          25        bulk of my difference, I believe.  But...
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           1             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I guess, just to clarify, it

           2        was our intention to remove the increase for

           3        salaries and wages, and I guess however we get

           4        there, we started with staff's numbers, and there

           5        may just be a minor point of disagreement of

           6        whether or not we're removing -- we don't want

           7        to -- they've already recommended removing some of

           8        it.  We want to remove the remainder of it.  And in

           9        our calculation it came up to 267,269.

          10             And staff is almost there with us, and I think

          11        we just need to figure out if we're talking dollars

          12        that have been previously recommended be removed or

          13        dollars that need to be removed.  It may take us a

          14        minute or two to reconcile with them.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner?

          16             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17             The -- and I think we're all basically saying

          18        the same thing.  The intent of my motion was that

          19        there would be no change in salaries and

          20        wages-employees as a result of this rate case, but

          21        that the status quo would remain.  And I am

          22        comfortable if the full Commission is comfortable

          23        delegating administratively to the staff to do the

          24        computations to arrive at the proper figure.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You are reading my head.
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           1        That's been moved and seconded.

           2             Any further discussion?  Seeing none, all in

           3        favor say aye.

           4             (Unanimous.)

           5             Any opposed?

           6             By your action you've approved Item No. 26.

           7        I'm sorry, Issue No. 26.

           8             We're now at Issue No. 27.

           9             MS. LINN:  Commissioners, Issue 27 is staff's

          10        recommendation to reduce bad debt expense by

          11        $3,199.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          13             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  For purposes of agenda, OPC

          14        has no objection to staff's recommendation.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua?

          16             MR. MAY:  No objection.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

          18             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Move staff.

          19             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Second.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

          21        seconded, staff recommendation on Issue No. 27.

          22        All in favor say aye.

          23             (Unanimous.)

          24             Any opposed?

          25             I've got a question.  Let me see if I can't
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           1        simplify this a little bit.

           2             Public Counsel, Issues 28 through 49.  Which

           3        one of those are you going to object to staff

           4        recommendation?

           5             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I think we have one

           6        remaining issue related to rate case expense, and

           7        as to the rest of the recommendation, our response

           8        would be the same as we've had, which is we're not

           9        opposing any objection to the recommended

          10        adjustments from staff.  And we generally do not

          11        take positions on rate design issues.  So as far as

          12        those are concerned, we're not objecting, we're

          13        just taking no position on those.

          14             So at the Chairman's pleasure I can address

          15        rate case expense, and that should probably

          16        conclude our actual --

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So 28 is the only one that

          18        you say you have an objection on?

          19             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Correct.  That's the only

          20        one that we would wish to speak directly to.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          22             Aqua Utilities, is there one remaining that

          23        you will have an objection to staff recommendation

          24        on?

          25             MR. MAY:  We can agree to the remainder of the
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           1        issues.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Commission board, is

           3        there one from 29 on that any of you would like to

           4        speak to, have any questions to, or have an

           5        objection to?

           6             Commission Balbis?

           7             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd

           8        like to discuss Issue 30 briefly.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          10             Staff, let's hear 30.

          11             MR. MOURING:  Commissioners, Issue 30

          12        addresses staff's recommendation for pro forma

          13        adjustments to O&M expenses.

          14             I would like to point out there is an errata

          15        correction to Table 30-1, and that's on page 7 of

          16        the errata sheet.  Where the total column reflects

          17        a negative 83,359, that should be a positive

          18        83,359.

          19             And staff is prepared to answer any questions

          20        you may have.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          22             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you.  Just a quick

          23        comment and then the real issue at hand.

          24             One, sprinkled throughout this recommendation

          25        is, again, the 2.9 percent increase, and I assume
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           1        that any fallout from the previous decision by the

           2        Commission would be applied to this issue as well.

           3             MR. MOURING:  That's correct.

           4             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And then really

           5        the point I wanted to discuss for Aqua Utilities is

           6        the issue with the City of Lake Worth Utilities and

           7        the Lake Osborne system.  If you can explain the

           8        situation there, and -- because that's one item

           9        that does concern me.

          10             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chair?

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, please.

          12             MR. MAY:  Commissioner Balbis, Aqua has been

          13        in extensive discussions with the City of Lake

          14        Wales [sic] on this issue.  Mr. Rendell has been

          15        part of those discussions, and, with the Chair's

          16        permission, I'd ask that Mr. Rendell give you an

          17        update and give you some background and answer any

          18        questions that you may have.

          19             MR. RENDELL:  Yes, Commissioners.  This is one

          20        that Aqua is very concerned with.  This came about

          21        through answering some questions from staff, which

          22        is actually directly related to a letter written by

          23        the Lake Worth Civic Association.  In reviewing or

          24        answering the questions asked by staff, we

          25        discovered, unbeknownst to us, that the City of
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           1        Lake Worth increased our bulk rate.  They passed an

           2        ordinance last August and they increased the rates

           3        in October.  We were not notified of the increase

           4        until we received the bill in January.

           5             To put it in perspective, we filed the rate

           6        case in September, so this was after we filed the

           7        rate case.  We were unaware.

           8             When the City of Lake Worth passed their

           9        resolution or passed their ordinance, they did two

          10        things.  One is they changed the rate that we were

          11        being billed under from a general service rate to a

          12        multifamily rate.  They also implemented an

          13        inclining block rate structure.  The significance

          14        of that is under the multifamily rate, the blocks

          15        are extremely low.  They're something like zero to

          16        2,000, 2,00 to 4, 4 to 8.

          17             We are not a multifamily user.  We're not a

          18        condominium, we're not an apartment.  We make it up

          19        of I believe 467 homes.  They're individual

          20        residential homes.

          21             So we immediately began discussions with the

          22        City.  We contacted the City and we said, you know,

          23        first of all, when did this occur, why weren't we

          24        notified.  They sent us the agreement.  The

          25        purchased water agreement was entered into in 1974,
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           1        significantly long time ago with Lake Worth

           2        Utilities, which was a standalone.  We basically

           3        inherited that agreement when we purchased it in

           4        2003, and we have had no issues up until now.

           5             We calculated the potential increase, and

           6        right now under their rate structure we're paying

           7        an increase of $125,000.  We're trying to get that

           8        either renegotiated through a bulk rate, or at

           9        least put us back on a general service, or, if that

          10        doesn't work, then a single family residential.

          11        That would cut that increase in half, down to

          12        approximately $62,000.  It will still be an

          13        increase, but at least it will save some

          14        pass-through costs to our customers.

          15             We've -- we've reached out to them, we've met

          16        with them.  They're currently -- Ms. Wallingford

          17        has talked to them.  They're waiting for a proposal

          18        from us.  They indicated that they would sit down

          19        and try to work out an arrangement, either a bulk

          20        rate or some other alternative.  They would have to

          21        take that back to the city council.

          22             They recently renegotiated a bulk rate with a

          23        town called I believe Lake Claire or something to

          24        that effect.  There was another town that had a

          25        similar bulk rate that expired.  What we're
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           1        concerned with is they were trying to also impose

           2        additional capacity fees.  They're trying to go

           3        back and collect some capacity fees, which would be

           4        a significant -- it would be an investment of about

           5        1.5 million.  We contend that we don't -- we're

           6        not -- have to pay that.

           7             So we still have some negotiations to do.

           8        We're -- they indicated it would be several months,

           9        if an arrangement can be made, before they can even

          10        get it back to the council, so we're looking at

          11        maybe September or October.  But to this day we're

          12        still paying the invoices that we supplied to staff

          13        to show this increase.

          14             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          15             And thank you for that information.  And I am

          16        familiar with that area, as it's not too far from

          17        where I live.  And I know that, you know, one of

          18        the challenges with this area, it's not within the

          19        city limits of Lake Worth, so they're struggling I

          20        would assume with representation with the City of

          21        Lake Worth and really getting -- you know, I think

          22        they're having difficulties with that.

          23             And I'm not sure what we can do as a

          24        Commission, if anything.  I know that, at least for

          25        other areas within Aqua's service territory, I
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           1        mean, the elected officials were at the state

           2        legislative level were involved, and I don't know

           3        if you've gone that route or can encourage those

           4        customers, because I think it's an issue where,

           5        again, at a 125,000-dollar increase that wasn't

           6        expected to be in an existing agreement, you know,

           7        it's just something that, seeing this when we're

           8        trying to look at, you know, prudent and reasonable

           9        costs and seeing this increase, that almost seems

          10        arbitrary.  It's just kind of frustrating, you

          11        know, what we can do as a Commission.

          12             And I don't know if staff, any recommendation

          13        of what we can do, if anything at all, or just grit

          14        our teeth.

          15             MR. FLETCHER:  If I might, Commissioner.  On

          16        page 105 of the recommendation, we actually speak

          17        to where -- resulting from the outcome of the

          18        company's negotiation with the City of Lake Worth,

          19        we require them to notify us within 30 days.  The

          20        fact is now Aqua is paying that increased rate now.

          21        A part of the 125, half of that would be not

          22        changing the customer class.  That would be just of

          23        the rate increase.  The other half of the 125 is

          24        related to switching them from the class of

          25        service.
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           1             Once they report to us the outcome of that, if

           2        they are able to reach negotiations where they're

           3        able to get back to what they've been charging

           4        since 1974, back to the other customer class, then

           5        what we can suggest, once we receive that

           6        information that we've recommended here, would

           7        suggest a pass-through decrease of the purchased

           8        water at that time, that the company basically file

           9        a pass-through decrease, if they're able to reach

          10        that negotiation.

          11             But they are paying those increased costs now.

          12        That's the reason why staff recommended the

          13        included in rates now, because that is an actual

          14        expense they are incurring, they're actually having

          15        to pay.

          16             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And just to close,

          17        again, if it is just a pass-through, I just want to

          18        make sure that there's still the incentive and the

          19        encouragement, you know, that you have to try and

          20        negotiate this and fight this as much as possible,

          21        even though it is a pass-through.  But, again,

          22        any -- you know, the sensitivity to the rates for

          23        the customers I think is important.

          24             So that's all the comments I had on this item.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Anything else from 29
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           1        through 49?

           2             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, Issue 34

           3        regarding the rate cap threshold.  Hold on a

           4        second.  In the sub-city limit, this is a question

           5        for staff.

           6             What changes -- what changes need to be made

           7        because of the changes in the revenue requirement

           8        with regard to the rate thresholds?  And the

           9        question probably is directed to Paul,

          10        Mr. Stallcup.

          11             MR. STALLCUP:  Hello, Commissioner.  I'm

          12        Paul Stallcup of the Commission staff.  I'm

          13        handling the rate issues.

          14             If I got your question down right, how are we

          15        going to incorporate the changes in revenue

          16        requirements into these two parameters for the cap

          17        band.  I would recommend keeping the subsidy limit

          18        where it is and allowing the rate cap threshold to

          19        go down.  What that will allow us to do is to pass

          20        on the reduction in revenue requirements both to

          21        the capped bands as well as the uncapped bands.  If

          22        we held that rate cap threshold constant, the

          23        customers of those more expensive systems would

          24        still be paying the same high rates, because you're

          25        capping them at that level.  So I would recommend
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           1        reducing the rate cap threshold.

           2             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And I'd be curious to

           3        hear from OPC on that as well as utility,

           4        obviously.

           5             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I would say we generally

           6        don't address rate design issues because it may

           7        affect one group of customers --

           8             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  That's right.  My

           9        apologies.

          10             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  As -- opposed to others.

          11             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  My apologies.

          12             MR. MAY:  Commissioner Brown, I guess from our

          13        perspective, again, looking at the recommendation

          14        as a whole, we're not going to, you know, contest

          15        this issue.  But now that you've brought the issue

          16        up, if you're going to reduce the guidelines, I

          17        think it's important to realize and not to -- I

          18        know it's late and I don't want to get into a

          19        philosophical or an esoteric discussion about rate

          20        design, but these -- these are rate guidelines.

          21        They've never been flat-out absolute caps.  They're

          22        guidelines that Mr. Stallcup and his organization

          23        use to formulate fair and reasonable rates.

          24             That said, you know, we really don't have a

          25        position on that.  But I kind of bristle at the
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           1        thought that these are caps, because I think if you

           2        look back historically as to how this concept came

           3        about, it came about as a guideline, and it's kind

           4        of morphed into a cap.  But that's another issue

           5        for another day.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  But it does within the

           7        parameters of the statute in setting fair,

           8        reasonable, compensatory rates, so I do support

           9        staff's recommendation, and I like the fact that

          10        the cap will be lowered in correlation to the

          11        revenue requirements.  So I would like to move the

          12        item if there's no other --

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other items between 29

          14        and 49?

          15             Commissioner Brisé?

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you.  Item No. 35,

          17        appropriate rate thresholds, which go to the issue

          18        of affordability and how we got there with those

          19        numbers with the $90.  So if we can walk through

          20        that, that would be helpful.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff, can you brief us on

          22        35?

          23             MR. STALLCUP:  Yes, sir.  Issue 35 is the

          24        issue where we talk about the rate cap threshold.

          25        In implementing the cap band rate consolidation
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           1        methodology, staff concluded that $12.50 was the

           2        appropriate subsidy limit to use.  With that first

           3        parameter of the cap band method defined, the

           4        subsequent rate cap threshold -- in prior cases it

           5        had been called affordability, but in this case we

           6        think that this is a better way to identify it --

           7        is basically a fallout, because what staff has to

           8        do is bring you rates that are compensatory.

           9        That's required by statute.

          10             So when we implement the cap band method and

          11        we have the subsidy limit imposed, and we know we

          12        have to calculate compensatory rates, we basically

          13        back in to where that rate cap threshold is.  We

          14        try and keep it as small as possible, you know,

          15        being aware of the effect it has on customers, but

          16        it has to be subject to the constraint that the

          17        subsidy limit was not violated and that the

          18        resulting rates are compensatory.

          19             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.

          20             I suppose that OPC has an opinion on this.

          21             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Obviously we have an

          22        objection to the general affordability of these

          23        rates, and I think we've spoken to some of the

          24        individual components.  We still have yet to

          25        address rate case expense, and we don't address
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           1        rate design issue, and we do realize that some of

           2        this discussion is really a rate design discussion

           3        as to how do you set up the rates that each of the

           4        different classes will be required to pay.  Our

           5        general issue is with the overall rates to begin

           6        with, but we have no comments on the specific rate

           7        design issue.

           8             MR. MAY:  Just, again, I think it's important

           9        when you're thinking of looking at subsidy limits

          10        and affordability caps, they're inversely related.

          11        If you were to increase the subsidy limits, the

          12        affordability comes down.

          13             Again, issue for another day, but the electric

          14        utilities took this plunge 20 years ago.  The gas

          15        utilities did the same.  And if this -- if this

          16        state is really serious about affordable rates,

          17        long-term uniform rates are the way to go.

          18             You can't have neighborhood rates.  If you put

          19        a substation in Monticello, Florida, and Florida

          20        Power Corporation had its rates designed around the

          21        population of Monticello, those rates would be out

          22        the roof.  And at some point in time -- again, not

          23        for this evening or not for this case -- I think

          24        the state of Florida needs to look at uniform rates

          25        for water utilities.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Anyone else between 29 and

           3        49?  Can I get a motion to move staff

           4        recommendation on Issues 29 through 49, taking into

           5        account the changes that we made in Issue 26 with

           6        salaries and wages?

           7             MS. KLANCKE:  Chairman, may I add one note for

           8        the clarity of the record?  May I make one

           9        suggestion?

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          11             MS. KLANCKE:  On Issue No. 40, this issue

          12        addresses the appropriate monthly rates for water

          13        and wastewater systems.  Staff would like to

          14        suggest that, since the preceding issues will make

          15        definitive determinations with respect to the

          16        revenue requirement and the rate design, this issue

          17        is a mere fallout with regard to the calculation.

          18        Since you have made adjustments to the

          19        recommendation, staff requests administrative

          20        authority to calculate those to ensure that this

          21        issue reflects the most current rates based on the

          22        newest calculations, based on your determinations

          23        this evening.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think I heard Mr. Brisé

          25        say that he would move that recommendation.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Yeah, we'll move that

           2        one.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And I'll second it.  So it's

           4        been moved and seconded.

           5             Any other discussion on Issues 29 through 49,

           6        considering the changes we made to 26, and if there

           7        is any fallout from 28?

           8             Seeing none, all in favor say aye.

           9             (Unanimous.)

          10             Any opposed?

          11             Okay.  We are on Issue No. 28.  And before we

          12        start that, did we miss any of these issues?  I

          13        don't think we did.  So we're on Issue 28.

          14             Staff?  I'm sorry.  And thank you so very much

          15        for being patient with me jumping around like that.

          16        I saw a pattern and I thought I was going to jump

          17        on it.

          18             MS. LINN:  Issue 28 is staff's recommendation

          19        for the appropriate rate case expense.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Public Counsel?

          21             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  As we indicated in the

          22        handout that we provided, on page 4 we believe that

          23        the rate case expense for this case should be

          24        shared between the shareholders and customers,

          25        which would reduce the rate case expense by
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           1        $348,634.

           2             The -- one of the unique features with this

           3        case is that we are talking back-to-back rate

           4        cases.  The customers still haven't paid off the

           5        rate case expense from the last rate case, and

           6        they're being asked to foot basically a $700,000

           7        rate case expense for this rate case.  And, as we

           8        indicated in our description, that the -- you know,

           9        main motivator for a rate case is to -- for the

          10        benefit of the stockholders, and therefore there

          11        should be some sharing of rate case expense.  And

          12        it's a departure from the Commission staff normal

          13        practice, but normally water cases don't come in

          14        less than two years apart.  I mean, normally you

          15        have a span of three or four years, and the, you

          16        know, rate case expense is fully amortized.  That's

          17        generally speaking across the board for any type of

          18        rate increase.

          19             And I think, given this unique set of

          20        circumstances, I mean, plus generally just the

          21        condition of the economy, a sharing is warranted in

          22        this case.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Curtin, do you have

          24        anything to add?

          25             MR. CURTIN:  Well, we would support Office of
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           1        Public Counsel in that this rate -- this rate case

           2        expense should be decreased and decreased

           3        substantially due to the fact that this is a

           4        back-to-back rate increase, and the expenses should

           5        be shared by both the shareholders and stockholders

           6        of Aqua and the customers of Aqua.  Thank you.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Aqua Utilities?

           8             MR. MAY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           9             Commissioners, we strongly disagree with the

          10        50 percent sharing arrangement in rate case

          11        expense.  We think it's arbitrary and we think that

          12        it deviates from precedent.  We also would object

          13        to the notion that this rate case is frivolous.

          14        Historically, these systems that are subject to

          15        this rate case prior to 2008 had not had a rate

          16        case, a full-blown rate case, for around 16 years.

          17        We came in in 2008, we did not get anything close

          18        to what we needed to continue to operate.  We

          19        didn't appeal that decision, we rolled up our

          20        sleeves, we continued to do work on Chuluota, we

          21        completely refurbished that plant.  I know that's

          22        not part of this case.  We also made capital

          23        improvements to our other systems without any rate

          24        relief.

          25             We're here today because your staff looked at
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           1        our books and said, you need a rate increase.

           2        You're entitled to a rate increase.  It's not

           3        frivolous.  We also requested that this case be

           4        processed as a PAA.  Under civil rules of

           5        procedure, normally the interrogatories and

           6        discovery are limited to 30.  In my experience,

           7        I've never seen a PAA proceeding go over 30 or 50

           8        interrogatories at the most.

           9             Just to put this case in perspective about the

          10        amount of rate case expense, we didn't issue one

          11        interrogatory, we didn't take one deposition, we

          12        didn't issue a request for production of documents.

          13        We responded to 254 interrogatories from OPC.  We

          14        answered 131 requests for production of documents

          15        and produced thousands of pages.  We answered 230

          16        separate data requests from staff.

          17             I would respectfully submit that the rate case

          18        expense that is part of this case is reasonable and

          19        under law we should be entitled to recover it.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          21             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          22        I just wanted to state right out of the box that I

          23        don't understand why the parties first agreed to

          24        process this as a PAA, knowing the contentious

          25        nature, and then the amount of discovery that has
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           1        been produced as a result of the contentious nature

           2        is unfortunately going to cost the ratepayers at

           3        some level.

           4             And I don't think that going this route,

           5        knowing that this is contentious and is most likely

           6        going to be set for hearing, I don't know if this

           7        is the most cost-effective way to proceed.  And I

           8        just wanted to state that on the record.

           9             And I -- I see OPC has a comment.

          10             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, just briefly, this was

          11        not OPC's election.  This was purely the

          12        company's --

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Legally -- obviously,

          14        well, legally the utility company is entitled to

          15        process this by PAA.

          16             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Right.

          17             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  But --

          18             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yeah.  We were not in the

          19        process, or we weren't give a choice as to whether

          20        or not they elected to choose the PAA route, but we

          21        do feel we have an obligation to make sure that we

          22        fully vet the case, whether or not it goes to PAA

          23        or full hearing.  You know, there may be some cost

          24        savings if we go to hearing, if that's eventually

          25        what happens.  In future discovery, we're obviously
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           1        not going to duplicate the discovery that we've

           2        already produced.  So, you know, keep that in mind.

           3             We're not -- you know, we're not looking to

           4        duplicate the efforts if we end up going to a

           5        hearing.  There may be further discovery, but it

           6        will be based on what we've already done thus far.

           7             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I understand that the

           8        utility had to incur additional rate case expenses

           9        because of the voluminous amount of discovery that

          10        was requested by OPC, and I just want to

          11        acknowledge that I'm aware of it, I'm sensitive to

          12        it.  I wish we would have gone a different route

          13        and been more economical, but we are here today.

          14             And so I've particularly looked at a lot of

          15        the rate case expenses with some -- with scrutiny,

          16        you know, and I've broken it down.  And I know

          17        Commissioner Edgar had mentioned earlier on about

          18        agreeing with OPC's Item 28 position, but I did

          19        want to just go through some questions with staff

          20        first before we reach to any conclusion, if that's

          21        permissible.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.  Please.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  I know -- I know

          24        that staff made some adjustments to the legal fees

          25        to remove legal fees related to incorrect billing
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           1        and MFR deficiencies; is that right?

           2             MS. LINN:  Yes.

           3             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Yes?  Okay.  Are there

           4        any legal fees associated with consent orders,

           5        warning letters, or case litigation?

           6             MR. FLETCHER:  No, Commissioner.  This is

           7        strictly to process this rate case.  It doesn't

           8        have anything to do with the consent orders or

           9        anything like that.

          10             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Now, I know when we set

          11        rate case expenses, and particularly legal

          12        expenses, we don't necessarily look at the hourly

          13        rate of the attorneys, although staff has an

          14        opportunity to review the hourly rates; is that

          15        right?

          16             MR. FLETCHER:  That is correct.  We have in

          17        the past looked at hourly rates.  I can tell you

          18        from the hourly rate that was approved last time of

          19        $365 for -- you mentioned legal, and what they're

          20        requesting now, it's not a significant increase in

          21        the hourly rate, and we believe the hourly rate is

          22        reasonable in this case.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Wait.  I think the

          24        increase is 390, and that's for Mr. May, who is

          25        obviously a very respected partner and very well
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           1        accomplished, and I think he definitely certainly

           2        probably deserves his hourly rate.

           3             However, that being said, on page 80 of the

           4        staff recommendation, at the very bottom of page

           5        80, the last paragraph in the staff recommendation,

           6        although it is talking about the parent company, it

           7        does reference a 2009 billing rate for Florida law

           8        firms published in the 2010 economics and law

           9        office management survey conducted by the

          10        Florida Bar, and that indicated that the average

          11        billable hour is $247 an hour, which I believe is

          12        more akin to what attorneys retained by the Florida

          13        League of Cities get paid, which obviously if the

          14        Florida League of Cities pays for attorneys on

          15        behalf of a municipality, it's generally at the

          16        cost -- at the tune of -- it's as a result -- it's

          17        taking money out of taxpayer dollars.

          18             Now, that's completely separate.  We're

          19        talking about ratepayers' dollars here.  But, to

          20        analogize retaining outside counsel by a local

          21        government, and their hourly rate is typically

          22        between 200 and 300 dollars an hour average, I

          23        think that this survey that's cited in the staff

          24        recommendation is more in line with the hourly rate

          25        that we would find -- that we would consider as a
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           1        prudent cost and a reasonable cost in handling rate

           2        case expenses.

           3             Not to underestimate or undermine Mr. May's

           4        representation, but I think in keeping in line with

           5        the rest of the staff recommendation is more

           6        appropriate.

           7             MR. FLETCHER:  If I might, the 247, it is --

           8        that was what Aqua used to determine the hourly

           9        rate compared to the attorneys that they had on

          10        staff to handle general legal matters.  As far as

          11        what staff looked as far as the regulatory field,

          12        as far as legal counsel in our comfort level with

          13        regard to the 390, looked at recent cases, even for

          14        water and also in other industries, and the hourly

          15        rate is less than those others, and we were

          16        comfortable with that number.

          17             Namely the Florida Water Services, Inc.

          18        company that was mentioned earlier, a recent rate

          19        case, one of the attorneys that was assigned to

          20        that case, it was over $400 an hour.  I can tell

          21        you some of the FP&L and Progress --

          22             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Isn't that case on appeal

          23        though?  Isn't that case on appeal?

          24             MR. FLETCHER:  That one's on appeal, but we

          25        did look at other industries as far as attorneys
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           1        representing utility electric industry, and the

           2        hourly rate is much higher in the -- as far as

           3        representing utilities before the Commission.  We

           4        were comfortable with that number, of the 390.

           5             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.  And this is

           6        my last follow-up question, I promise.

           7             But this is a question directed towards OPC

           8        with respect to the staff recommendation, on rate

           9        cases obviously.  Do you believe that these

          10        expenses are unreasonable?  If you can elaborate

          11        your position.

          12             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes.  I mean, the short

          13        answer is yes, we think they're unreasonable.  We

          14        have indicated before that, you know, you're

          15        talking back-to-back rate cases.  I think the

          16        Commissioner's point regarding the survey that

          17        staff used to justify the affiliate charges of

          18        $247, if that's appropriate for affiliate charges

          19        and in-house general counsel, I think it would be

          20        appropriate to use that for general cases, because

          21        I don't particularly see a distinction between what

          22        an in-house counsel at a water utility, why they

          23        could not process a general rate case.  I mean,

          24        that would -- I would hope be within their general

          25        scope of practice, or their ability of general
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           1        scope of practice.  Or an outside counsel.

           2             And of course, you know, the water company has

           3        their right to retain whatever counsel they want.

           4        But the question here is, what should the customers

           5        be responsible for.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé?

           8             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

           9        and this question goes to OPC.

          10             So in terms of the rate case expense, are you

          11        suggesting that the fees that are looked at for

          12        this particular rate case generically are too high,

          13        or are you suggesting simply because of the nature

          14        of this particular rate case that we're going back

          15        to back and the other issues as reflected by

          16        customers, or would that be generic if this was a

          17        standalone without the circumstances that we're

          18        dealing with?

          19             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, actually I think the

          20        answer to your question is probably both.  I think

          21        we've got some case-specific issues here in the

          22        back-to-back pancaking of these rate cases, which

          23        is unique to what Aqua has done with the

          24        back-to-back two-year rate cases.  That's highly

          25        unusual for any utility, including the electric
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           1        utilities.

           2             I think the other thing is, is that it would

           3        probably be reasonable and prudent to start looking

           4        at the hourly cost of the rates of the attorneys

           5        and making some adjustments for what is the average

           6        and what municipals would do, because, like

           7        taxpayers, I think the point being made here is,

           8        like taxpayers, these customer groups are a captive

           9        audience, and they're required to contribute to

          10        rate case expense.

          11             The other thing is rate case and rate cases do

          12        go to the benefit of the stockholders.  They get a

          13        direct benefit from these companies coming in and

          14        making sure that they're earning within their

          15        authorized rate of return and not waiting too long

          16        in between rate cases.  But that's on the one hand.

          17             But on the other hand they should also carry

          18        the risk that if they come in too frequently, that

          19        they bear some of that burden of having too many

          20        and too frequent of rate cases.

          21             I mean, I think there is a balance to be had

          22        so that you are coming in frequently enough that

          23        you are collecting the appropriate amount for

          24        customers to make the capital improvements

          25        necessary, but not coming in too frequently that we
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           1        are causing rates to become more affordable and

           2        they're not being compensated by customer growth

           3        and other types of things, which we would hope

           4        would justify some of the expense increases that we

           5        see, or -- and I think that goes to earlier issues

           6        that the Commission has already addressed, but I

           7        hope that answers your question.

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I've got a question for

           9        Public Counsel.  Would you agree with Mr. May's

          10        assessment earlier that most of that legal expense

          11        was based upon interrogatories that were put out

          12        there by Public Counsel?

          13             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes and no.  We certainly --

          14        I think we have an obligation on behalf of the

          15        customers to try the best that we can to ferret out

          16        the costs and make sure that everything that

          17        they're requesting is justified.

          18             We had no option as far as how this case was

          19        processed.  That was purely the company's choice to

          20        choose to go the PAA route.  I might have on behalf

          21        of the customers, given all the comments you've

          22        heard today and contentious nature of this, chosen

          23        just to go to hearing, knowing that that may be

          24        ultimately where we end up.

          25             So I think you have to weigh the company's
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           1        choice of choosing to go a PAA route.  The last

           2        rate case they did not go the PAA route.  They went

           3        directly to hearing.  And as I said before, you

           4        know, as we -- if we proceed further in this case,

           5        you know, the discovery is going to be scaled

           6        accordingly.  We're not going to duplicate the

           7        discovery that's already taken place.

           8             So, I mean, there would be discovery no matter

           9        which way this case had been filed.  I think what

          10        we're running the risk of is having to have

          11        potentially more discovery than we would have

          12        otherwise if they had chosen to go the hearing

          13        route.  But, you know, we take the case as we find

          14        it, as well.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, it was, as you said,

          16        their legal right to go with the PAA, correct?

          17             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Absolutely.  But the

          18        customers, we did not have a choice as to whether

          19        or not they did it this way.  We obviously take the

          20        case as we find it.  And I guess the question goes

          21        to who should bear the risk of choosing to process

          22        the case PAA, and we would respectfully suggest

          23        that the company share some of that risk in this

          24        case.

          25             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chair?
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes?

           2             MR. MAY:  I know it's late.  I'm just

           3        confused.  The last rate case, we went full blown,

           4        full bore, formal hearing, $1.5 million in rate

           5        case expense.  I'm looking here at the rate case

           6        expense of $778,000.  That's half -- that's half of

           7        what the rate case was going full bore.  I just --

           8        I'm missing the point from OPC.  We chose to go the

           9        PAA route to save ratepayer money.

          10             And again, as I said in my opening, we're not

          11        asking to be treated any differently and we're not

          12        asking to be given special treatment.  We're just

          13        asking to be treated like every other utility that

          14        you regulate.

          15             We -- there's -- there are no performance

          16        metrics in customer service.  We -- this utility

          17        went out, proactively established its own customer

          18        metrics, aggressive customer metrics, to improve

          19        quality of service, and we're penalized for it.

          20             $75,000 is a .25 reduction in ROE.  Eliminate

          21        the hardworking employees' 3 percent rate increase,

          22        which you've given to the St. George Island utility

          23        workers and other utilities.  We come in and go the

          24        PAA route, we reduce the rate case expense in half,

          25        and now OPC says cut them in half again.

                                                                        372

           1             I -- I just -- at some point you establish

           2        rates at such a low level they fail to become

           3        compensatory, and I would respectfully submit that

           4        you're getting close to that point here.

           5             And again, staff has reviewed this rate case

           6        expense.  It's not just legal expense.  There are

           7        consultants.  In fact, the legal expense is not the

           8        major part of this rate case expense.  But that --

           9        I'll leave it at that.  It's a tough issue.  I know

          10        it's tough times, it's late at night, but I'm just

          11        missing the point of why OPC wants us to go to

          12        formal hearing when we cut rate case expense in

          13        half.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis?

          15             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          16        And this is something that I struggled with and I

          17        know I had discussions with staff as, you know,

          18        what prevents a utility just continuing to file for

          19        a rate case.  And I understand where OPC is coming

          20        from on the sharing of a risk.

          21             You know, I just have concerns that it may be

          22        somewhat arbitrary in nature, and regardless of

          23        whether it's a proposed agency action or a

          24        full-bore hearing, you know, the amount of

          25        discovery that's -- that OPC needs to become
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           1        comfortable with any decision is -- it is what it

           2        is.  So whether it's, you know, through the PAA

           3        process or full hearing process, you know, the

           4        discovery is going to be the discovery for OPC to

           5        be comfortable.  But again, I'm just concerned with

           6        the arbitrary nature of cutting it in half, whether

           7        it's arbitrary or not.

           8             With that -- and this is just something that I

           9        struggled with, and I would open up to the other

          10        Commissioners to provide their comments as well.

          11             MS. CRAWFORD:  Commissioners, with your

          12        permission, Jennifer Crawford for legal.

          13             I wonder if it might be helpful to take us

          14        back a step and look at the statute that addresses

          15        rate case expense, which is 367.081, subsection 7.

          16        It says that the Commission shall determine the

          17        reasonableness of rate case expenses and shall

          18        disallow all rate case expenses determined to be

          19        unreasonable.

          20             So the touchstone question is, is the

          21        requested expenses, are they reasonable, are they

          22        not reasonable.  No rate case expense determined to

          23        be unreasonable shall be paid by consumer.

          24             Historically and by statute that is the test

          25        to determine rate case expense.  We, to my
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           1        knowledge, have no historical basis for essentially

           2        implementing a risk sharing mechanism.

           3             In determining reasonable level of rate case

           4        expense the Commission shall consider the extent to

           5        which the utility has utilized such things as

           6        indexes and pass-throughs and also such other

           7        criteria as it may establish by rule.

           8             And I'm not aware of having the type of

           9        mechanism that OPC is discussing here having been

          10        established by rule.  So I would urge caution.  I

          11        think always the best place to start is the

          12        statute.  Is there some room for flexibility,

          13        possibly?  But I would always urge that we start

          14        there and see if that analysis is going to be

          15        sufficient to get the Commission where it needs to

          16        go.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I don't think that we

          18        are considering any type of risk sharing.  Of

          19        course, I can only speak for myself.  I think the

          20        big question is, and we've talked about this

          21        several times and we probably just need to go ahead

          22        and schedule it, is talk about the rate case

          23        expense.  And I know with Mr. Willis's group we've

          24        talked several times in our briefings about maybe

          25        somehow tying it -- these rates to an indicator,
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           1        and so therefore they're not coming in every two

           2        years, you know, for another rate case, and then

           3        maybe large expenses, they may come specifically

           4        for those.  And maybe that's something we need to

           5        look at moving forward.

           6             But if it's -- if it's a prudent expense and

           7        if it was tied to the rate case, it is what it is.

           8             Commissioner Edgar?

           9             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

          10             What seems like a very long time ago but was

          11        only a few hours ago, I think, I did put out there

          12        as kind of a strawman proposal to address all of

          13        the issues that are before us in kind of one fell

          14        swoop.  And in that proposal I did suggest that

          15        this was one item that maybe we would make a change

          16        from the staff recommendation towards the request

          17        that OPC had made before us.

          18             But I would point out that was in my mind part

          19        of kind of a package proposal, and since then, and

          20        with my full participation, we have on other pieces

          21        gone a slightly different direction, and therefore

          22        the fact I had put that out there, the

          23        circumstances have changed from where I was on

          24        that.

          25             I on the break had the opportunity to talk
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           1        with our legal staff about the statute more

           2        specifically and some of the ways we have as a

           3        Commission dealt with that statute with other

           4        issues that have come before us.  And, similar to

           5        the discussion that we have, I have a concern

           6        about -- I wish I could think of another word other

           7        than arbitrary.  But for lack of it, arbitrarily

           8        reaching in and tweaking or disallowing, you know,

           9        small features here or there.

          10             The fact of the PAA process in this instance

          11        being half or substantially less of a rate case

          12        expense than the full-blown hearing that we went

          13        through previously does resonate with me.  I also

          14        have to say I have a little concern and I'm tired

          15        too, so I want to measure my words carefully.  But

          16        I have -- you know, I have heard rhetoric.  Maybe

          17        it's purely rumor, maybe it goes beyond that, that

          18        on, you know, all parties of this case or all

          19        interested persons, that no matter what we do

          20        today, we're going to hearing.  No matter what we

          21        do today we're going full blown to the next steps

          22        to appeal.  And again, maybe that's rumor, maybe

          23        it's rhetoric.  I certainly don't want to give it

          24        any more than that.

          25             But if indeed that perception were to be out
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           1        there anywhere, that concerns me, because that

           2        negates the hard work that has gone into this and

           3        somewhat, you know, presupposes a result that I

           4        wouldn't have known how to predict exactly how we

           5        were going to go on every issue, and I think when

           6        you take all of the issues as a whole, I have

           7        confidence that we as a body, with the assistance

           8        of our staff and all parties, have been very

           9        deliberative and thoughtful and thorough and have a

          10        strong rationale for all points.

          11             Sure, some people, you know, one side maybe

          12        wins one here, another side wins one there, but

          13        when you take it all as a whole, it is thoughtful,

          14        it is rational.  It -- our decisions comport with

          15        precedent and lay out a path to go forward that

          16        gives the company some certainty and the customers

          17        absolutely their deserved due and recognizes

          18        progress and issues to be dealt with.

          19             So with all of that said, I am hopeful I would

          20        never ask any party to make a commitment one way or

          21        the other.  They certainly need to go back, look at

          22        all the numbers, look at all of the results, do

          23        what is in the best interest of their client and

          24        their positions.

          25             But I am hopeful that once the dust settles
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           1        from tonight, that perhaps there is no need to go

           2        into a full evidentiary hearing, and if that were

           3        the case then the PAA process would have well

           4        served all interests.

           5             So with all of that very long explanation,

           6        Mr. Chairman, if I may at this point, I will move

           7        the staff recommendation on this last remaining

           8        issue, and after our discussion and vote on that,

           9        would just like the opportunity to maybe wrap up

          10        some loose ends.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Amen and God bless

          12        Commissioner Edgar.  It's been moved and seconded,

          13        staff recommendation on Issue No. 28.

          14             Any further discussion?

          15             Customers Brisé?

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17        And I -- just to indicate, I think I will support

          18        the motion, simply because I don't think we have

          19        any clear reason why the rate case expense should

          20        be reduced by 50 percent, just outright like that.

          21        And that's my issue with it.  Neither do I believe

          22        that if there is a need to make a case that you

          23        should be punished for trying to make your case.

          24             Do I believe that there are other challenges

          25        that are particular to this case?  Absolutely.  Do
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           1        I believe that there are other circumstances that

           2        make this case more interesting than maybe some

           3        others?  Absolutely.  But I don't think that we

           4        could just simply, because of some of the other

           5        issues that we cannot necessarily mitigate just by

           6        waving a wand, that we should address that issue

           7        through the rate case expense.

           8             So for those reasons I'm going to support

           9        the -- the motion, but I do believe that this is an

          10        issue that we probably do need to talk about in the

          11        future with respect to rate case expense and sort

          12        of creating a system that doesn't allow for

          13        repeating rate cases to address the same issue over

          14        and over and over again.

          15             So with that, I think -- I just want to make

          16        clear that I'm going to support that and those are

          17        the reasons why I'm going to support the motion.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, Commissioner

          19        Brisé.

          20             Commissioner Balbis?

          21             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          22             And not to repeat my earlier comments on this

          23        issue, but I do support the motion.  And I do want

          24        to thank OPC.  I mean, I think it might have been

          25        floated out there that, you know, these additional
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           1        interrogatories and responses and several hundred

           2        of them, you know, may have required additional

           3        work from the utility, but I would assume that, you

           4        know, the ability to do that and the hundreds of

           5        responses that, you know, when you feel comfortable

           6        that you -- the information was provided to you,

           7        you were able to present to us, you know, your side

           8        on each one of these issues.  And I think that, you

           9        know, while the PAA process with $700,000 in rate

          10        case expense, you know, being -- sounds exorbitant,

          11        but if it does avoid the full hearing process, you

          12        know, with the ability for OPC to provide all of

          13        that, or have provided to them all of that

          14        information, I think it's a successful process.

          15             So with that I'll support the motion.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown?

          17             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          18             And I just want to let the parties know that

          19        I've been struggling with this issue since I read

          20        the case and listening to the arguments and reading

          21        OPC's position.  And I am having a hard time

          22        supporting OPC's position, which is why I wanted to

          23        get some comfort and ask you poignant questions

          24        regarding the haphazard standard of reducing it by

          25        50 percent.
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           1             I have a hard time just supporting a

           2        justification for just randomly selecting a

           3        50 percent reduction and nitpicking, particularly

           4        even expenses that staff has vetted and have found

           5        to be reasonable and prudent costs.

           6             So I will -- I will support the staff

           7        recommendation, with the caveat that I hope, if

           8        this is protested, that -- and I hope, if this goes

           9        to hearing, that the parties are -- do not

          10        duplicate efforts and do not produce additional

          11        discovery that's already been addressed, to

          12        minimize and be sensitive to the fact that there

          13        has been a significant amount of discovery

          14        conducted at -- in the PAA process.

          15             And I'd hate to see the parties come back with

          16        a 1.5 million request for rate case expense at the

          17        hearing level.

          18             So I would just like to point that out.  And

          19        with that, I would support -- I would like to move

          20        staff's recommendation on this item.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's already been moved and

          22        seconded.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Oh, sorry.  Whatever.

          24        I'm tired.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Seeing no other further
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           1        discussion, all in favor say aye.

           2             (Unanimous.)

           3             Anybody opposed?

           4             Commissioner Edgar?

           5             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           6             Just realizing that it is late and it has been

           7        a long discussion with lots and lots of technical

           8        issues and many numbers that are going to need to

           9        be calculated and reformulated and all of that, I

          10        would just ask that we give our staff kind of that

          11        over umbrella administrative discretion, working of

          12        course with the parties, to make whatever

          13        calculations are necessary in light of all of the

          14        decisions that we have made today, and including

          15        the modifications and errata, et cetera, on a

          16        go-forward basis.

          17             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chair?

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes?

          19             MR. MAY:  I just -- I'm compelled to ask one

          20        more question.  We're talking about a monitoring

          21        period, and I don't think you all have ever

          22        articulated the duration of that period.  And I

          23        think we're fully prepared to meet with OPC and

          24        Mr. Curtin and staff at your direction.

          25             But I think it would be helpful if we put a
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           1        time period -- got some direction with respect to a

           2        time period from you all.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you really want us to

           4        pick a time period?

           5             MR. MAY:  Could I pick one?

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Willis?

           7             MR. WILLIS:  Chairman, we did talk about that

           8        when we talked about that issue, and my suggestion

           9        was that that would be one of the things that we

          10        discussed with the intervenors and the utility

          11        company, as to exactly how long that monitoring

          12        period would last.  We will bring that back to you

          13        in a future recommendation for your approval.

          14             MR. MAY:  That's fair.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I believe Mr. Willis has got

          16        a lot of answers.

          17             I want to thank OGC -- Public Counsel, rather.

          18        You guys put a lot of effort into this.  I know

          19        sometimes people don't always feel like they win,

          20        people don't always feel like they lose, but I know

          21        a lot of effort went into this PAA, and hopefully

          22        it's a cost saving thing.

          23             I want to thank the utility company.  I know a

          24        lot of effort came from you as well, especially a

          25        lot of the hearings that were out there, and
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           1        sometimes you have to have thick skin.  And trust

           2        me, I know.  And I do appreciate what you went

           3        through.

           4             And, staff, let me say it's been a long day.

           5        It started very early this morning, and we're still

           6        here, and yet we're coming back again tomorrow.  So

           7        I do appreciate all that went into this.  I know a

           8        lot of you, if not all of you, worked this past

           9        weekend to get this stuff worked -- to get this

          10        stuff finished, and I want it to be said or known

          11        that we do realize you did that and we do

          12        appreciate the effort that you put forth, and you

          13        guys did good work.

          14             Commissioner Balbis?  Nothing from

          15        Commissioner Balbis.

          16             That all being said, I do thank you guys all,

          17        and travel safe home tonight.  Hopefully everybody

          18        stays awake until they get all the way to their

          19        bed.  And I look forward to seeing most of you

          20        tomorrow.  Thank you very much.  We're adjourned.

          21             (Agenda Conference concluded.)

          22                        *     *     *

          23
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